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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hydoo International Holding Limited
("Hydoo", the “Company”, "we", or “our’), together with its subsidiaries (the “Group"),
| am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 3
December 2015 (“FY2015" or the “Year™).

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

During the Year, the Group's revenue and gross profit reached approximately RMB3, 1664
million and RMB1,633.9 million, respectively, representing a decrease of approximately
5.8% and an increase of 16.8%, respectively (the revenue and gross profit for the financial
year ended 3| December 2014 (“FY2014"): RMB3,360.2 million and RMB1,399.0 million,
respectively). Basic eamnings per share for FY2015 were RMB13.9 cents (FY2014: RMBI2.7

cents).

The Board proposed a final dividend of HKI.5 cents per share (or equivalent to
approximately RMBI.26 cents per share) for FY2015 (“Proposed Final Dividend"),
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Company's forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) to be held on Friday, |3 May
2016.

MARKET AND OPERATION REVIEW

New development of the integration of trade and logistics sectors as the major driving

force of China’s economic growth

In light of the increasingly complicated international economic conditions and the lackluster
global economic recovery for the Year, China's economy maintained a GDP growth rate
of 6.9%. Despite this remarkable performance against all odds, the economic downturn
has yet to bottom out, various economic reforms have entered a crucial stage and the
opening up policy has faced new challenges. The sluggish market has also dampened the
Group's sales of properties. Both the development and operation management of trade

and logistics center projects have much room for improvement.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Nonetheless, China's total retail sales of social consumption goods exceeded RMB30
trillion for the first time in 2015, accounting for 66.4% of China's economic growth, which
marks a record high in |5 years. Undoubtedly, social consumption has become a major
driving force for economic growth. The improvement and diversification of consumption
structure and individual demands in China have stimulated the prosperous development
of the integrated trade and logistics sector and contributed to higher investment growth,

generating momentum for China’s economic growth.

Maintaining development pace and strengthening risk prevention and control

Amid the certain degree of tension in the market, it was important for the Group to
maintain its steady growth. During the Year, the Group adjusted the development pace
of its trade and logistics center projects based on its analysis on the market trends. The
Group expanded the geographical coverage of its business to the major cities under
China's “One Belt and One Road” strategy and launched its first overseas project in

Thailand.

Furthermore, the Group strengthened its risk prevention and control during the Year.
In respect of its development and construction business, the Group strived to manage
costs, cash flow and fund safety, and expanded financing sources in line with China's
“destocking” policies and the local government's preferential policies. In respect of the
Group's management, the Group strictly supervised and controlled the implementation of

the relevant management systems and processes.

Focusing on both operation and development and facilitating “Internet +” for business

diversification

In 2015, the Group had a breakthrough in its cooperation with major market players
by entering into strategic cooperation agreements with well-known leading enterprises,
such as Red Star Macalline Group and Easyhome Investment Group, to co-operate in
the management and operation of the Group's properties. This breakthrough fuelled the

dynamics and vitality of Hydoo's trade and logistics center projects.

In respect of business diversification, the Group expanded its business into the financial
sector, which is expected to cover equity investment, financial lease and the provision of
small loans. The Group has established Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Financial Leasing Co,
Ltd. (FIITAEREREREER A7) in Qianhai, Shenzhen, China, to provide
financial leases to both small and medium sized enterprises operating in the Group's trade
centers and also other potential customers. The Group has also set up a financial team
comprising individuals with extensive experience to facilitate the smooth operation of its

financial business in the future.
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The Group commenced the establishment of an integrated information platform for ©O20
e-commerce business in the beginning of 2014, with Mianyang project as the pilot project,
which was launched in October 2015. Leveraging the Group's trade and logistics centers
and internet technology, it aimed to form an integrated platform to provide traditional
large market with trading services through the intermet, ranging from online transfer and
transaction to online property management and financing. The platform was launched
and commenced operation during the Year and has been further optimized to provide
efficient and effective value-added services for merchants operating in the trade and

logistics centers.

[t was noteworthy that the Group entered into strategic cooperation framework
agreements with each of Shenzhen Zhong Shun Yi Financial Services Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Zhong Shun Yi"), Shanghai Tiandihui Investment Management Ltd. (“Shanghai Tiandihui")
and Vinux (beijing) information technology Co., Ltd. (“Vinux"). Capitalizing on the
“Internet+" initiatives, these agreements allowed the Group to lead the innovative
development of the trade and logistics industry with a platform-based, concentrated and
collaborative approach. Shenzhen Zhong Shun Yi is principally engaged in the provision
of financial and consumption internet services. The cooperation with Shenzhen Zhong
Shun Yi will allow the Group to capitalize on the advantages of Shenzhen Zhong Shun
Yi's technology, internet financing, online settlement and e-commerce. Shanghai Tiandihui
is principally engaged in the provision of warehouse management and logistics services
in China. The cooperation with Shanghai Tiandihui will make good use of the Group's
existing solid customer base and the relevant management data and platform and facilitate
the official launch by the Group of the online modem logistics business model. Vinux is a
holding company principally engaged in the provision of information technology solutions
and the establishment and management of urban operation networks through investment.
The Group will closely cooperate with Vinux in respect of smart city and smart
community construction projects to establish systems for the provision of value-added
services in the community, sales cooperation services for merchants and urban delivery
and logistics services. These systems will help to boost the sales and operating income of

small and medium-sized merchants operating in our trade and logistics centers.

PROSPECTS

2016 marks the beginning of China's “I3th Five-year Plan”. Although the Chinese
economy continues to encounter huge difficulties and challenges, which are unlikely to
be resolved in the near future, the Chinese government will continue to seek to maintain

medium to high speed growth and to stimulate medium to high-end sectors of the
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Chinese economy. The Chinese government places particular emphasis on innovation and
strongly encourages business start-ups. Through structural reforms on the supply side, the
Chinese government targets to eliminate ineffective supply, upgrade inferior supply and
create new sources of supply. With an aim to release the potential of domestic demand,
the Chinese government views new urbanization as the largest source of domestic
demand, which is essential for stable economic growth, restructuring and the national well-

being of China.

As one of the focuses of new urbanization, the integrated trade and logistics sector
provides considerable market opportunities for sustainable development as well as the
introduction of new products, trends and modes. In future, the Group will focus on the
management of strategies, costs control, construction progress and commercial operation
to improve the quality and efficiency of the existing core business system. Catering the
needs of various small and medium-sized merchants operating in our trade and logistics
centers is the Group's major motivation and direction for innovation and upgrade. In
line with the integration of business, logistics, capital and information of the trade and
logistics sector, the Group will develop new businesses and models for mobile intemet,
communities and finance. By entering into cooperation agreements with logistics, financial
and intemet enterprises such as Shanghai Tiandihui, Shenzhen Zhong Shun Yi and Vinux,
it marks an important step of the Group in exploring these new business models. Next,
we will put greater efforts in the transition between new and traditional businesses in an
orderly and effective manner, and introduce the Group's standards for the development

of the integrated trade and logistics industry in an effort to promote the Hydoo brand.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers and business partners for their trust and
support. | would also like to thank all our staff for their professionalism and wholehearted

commitment.

Wang Jianli

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of FY2015 Performance

Contracted Sales Performance

In FY2015, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB3,108.6 million
and contracted sales area of 485,46 sq.m. representing an increase of 6.1% and 4.3%
respectively (FY2014: approximately RMB2,929.5 million and 465,605 sq.m.). During the
Year, China's domestic economy had been slowing down significantly, and the operation
environment of our industry had been challenging and volatile under continuous stringent
regulations, which affected our business to a certain extent. The Group closely monitored
market changes, adopted measures to cope with the complicated market environment
and challenges in compliance with the national and local government policies, and
managed the project development progress and pre-sale schedule in a more prudent way.
Contracted sales recorded during the Year were primarily in relation to the pre-sale of

properties for projects in Xingning, Lanzhou and Wuzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

Details of contracted sales recorded in FY2015 are shown in the table below:

WISHBRFERDHENFEERTX -

For the year ended 3| December

BZNANALEE

2015 014
Average Average
contracted Contracted contracted Contracted
sales price sales amount sales price sales amount
(before (before (before (before
deduction deduction deduction deduction
of business of business of business of business
Contracted tax and taxand Contracted taxand taxand
sales area surcharges) surcharges) sales area surcharges) surcharges)
ANEE aREE AliEE ANEE
FHEE £ FIER it
aHEE (RExH (B %4 ANEE (xR (BEXR
R RWNEE)  RMNER) mE  RMmEE)  RENERN)
(contracted sales area in sq.m, average contracted sales price
in RMB per sq.m. and contracted sales amount in thousands of RMB)
(BHHERRLTIAT  EHHETEHERNETIAARE TR
EHHEELELARRT i)
Xingning Trade Center REFENRDD
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 177,684 6282 1,116,170 = = =
Lanzhou Trade Center FNEEmRAL
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 78218 8046 62939 19429 866! 163272
Wuzhou Trade Center ENEEMRAD
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 7269 54%3 399348 84538 552 466,742
Shopping mal FARFRTE 1812 8214 14884 863l 8512 3467
Yantai Trade Center EaEEMRAL
Wholesale trading market units BURSRTRET 49268 7044 347050 = = =
Heze Trade Center STEBENREL
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 41969 5439 213369 56,338 5612 316,170
Mianyang Trade Center BEEEMRAL
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 2654 6252 165940 135755 6,866 932130

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIKIERAER LT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmE DM

For the year ended 3| December

BZNANALEE

215 2014

Average Average
contracted Contracted contracted Contracted
sales price sales amount sales price sales amount
(before (before (before (before
deduction deduction deduction deduction
of business of business of business of business
Contracted tax and tax and Contracted taxand taxand
sales area surcharges) surcharges) sales area surcharges) surcharges)
CHT BREE AlHE AlEE
FHEE 1 THER ik
aHEE (RExH (RExH ANEE (xR (3 £37
R RWmEE)  RMNER) mE  RMDmEER)  RENER)

(contracted sales area in sq.m, average contracted sales price
in RMB per sq.m. and contracted sales amount in thousands of RMB)
(BHEERRAT Kt  EHEETLHERNG R KA RR TR
EHEELELARRT i)

Jining Trade Center EEFENRAD
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 14529 4515 85,600 79440 4810 38117
Residence EiE 14303 4315 61720 13603 4515 61422
Ganzhou Trade Center ENEENRRL
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 544 10256 55,630 558 10571 55,584
Shopping mal FARSRTE 195 11,744 29 41931 7250 3474%
Yulin Trade Center EREEDTHA
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET 71 5971 425! 365 613 0446
Shopping mal FARSRTE 1061 11847 12570 10,141 9917 100,565
Ningxiang Trade Center EREEMRAL
Wholesale trading market units BURARTRET — — - JI 41 1268
Serviced apartments BERDE 48 2917 140 608 2919 775
Totl st 485461 6403 3,108614 465,605 6292 292945

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

Land Acquisition and Land Bank

In FY2015, the Group continued to develop new projects in certain fast growing small and

medium-sized cities in China in a bid to achieve sustainable business growth.

In FY2015, we acquired certain land-use rights in Jiamusi, Lanzhou, Xingning, Heze, Yantai

TR A

AR o

and Liuzhou, China with an aggregate site area of approximately 1.5 million sq.m., which M

is expected to have an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.9 million sqm.. As
of 31 December 2015, we had a total land bank of approximately 10.9 million sq.m., and

we were simultaneously developing 14 projects in 9 provinces and autonomous regions in

China.

Details of land bank for each project are shown in the able below:

HBE W2 ER
BEYHRNETLIFERRE -
BHAIIBETE AR - R20I5F 128318
BB HEREAENIOBEETAK  ER

RUIIIES

ROISHRFE - AEBEERHREERDR

WETH I RTRENER  #MERXLEN

ROISHBREE @ BMMEPBEEARLY - #
A (L ETEL] 1.5
et @R Em

RENEE DK ERRFRFEETOEER -

BIRE LHEREHBEN T -

Estimated
Estimated GFA
GFA  of properties
Actual GFA of properties planned Total GFA Total GFA
of completed under for future withland  of properties
properties  development  development use rights delivered Land bank
REfE
BRI ARER
VES 1 ERNE ESEH) g BXf
spgE  (HHARE mpg g apg
HE HE HE HE [ 1hiE
(sqm) (sgm) (sqm) (sgm) (sqm) (sgm)
(FrA#) (E7A) (FrA) (E7A) (FHK) (Fr )
Ganzhou Trade Center EMEEMRAL 720024 284,634 2,387,256 3391914 55,178 2835736
Lanzhou Trade Center BAMEERDL 266,509 295315 1559313 2,121,137 48316 2072821
Xingning Trade Center AEFHEMRFL 208902 209873 705484 1,124,259 141,134 983,125
Wuzhou Trade Center BMEEmRAL 452,759 42497 621,089 1116345 145287 971,058
Bengbu Commercial
and Residential Project HIEAERETER - 236472 725750 96222 = 96222
Jining Trade Center EEBHEMRDL 561,805 301,984 338250 1,202,039 413523 788516
Heze Trade Center STEEEMREL 247,166 — 382352 629518 89,088 540430
Jiamusi Trade Center EREEEmRRL - - 507,324 507,324 = 507,324
Yulin Trade Center EMEHEMRRL 282631 83883 277,110 643,624 176070 467554
Yantai Trade Center EaEEMRTL — 154212 191,228 345440 — 345440
Mianyang Trade Center BERZMRFL 479,026 - 65962 544988 364900 180088
Ningxiang Trade Center ERHEMRDL 381949 61518 - 443467 280422 163,045
Liuzhou Trade Center gL — — 64,187 64,87 — 64,187
Haode Yinzuo RERE 48650 — — 48,650 38780 9870
Total @ 3649421 1,670,388 7,825,305 13,145,114 2,253,698 10891416

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZRERKIZERERLDT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUR PROJECTS

Ganzhou Trade Center

Ganzhou Trade Center is strategically located in southwestern Jiangxi province near the
intersection of Jiangxi, Hunan and Guangdong provinces. Ganzhou lies along a major
transportation route connecting the inland areas of China with China’s southeastern coast.
There are two major railways intersecting in Ganzhou, which are the Jing-Jiu Railway and

the Gan-Long Railway.

Ganzhou Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 1,475,298 sq.m., which
is estimated to consist of at least two phrases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 3.4 million sq.m. upon full completion. As of 31 December 2015, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project

As of 31 December 2015, we had completed the construction of the wholesale trading
markets and shopping malls. We are constructing a food street, additional shopping malls,
warehouses, a residential area, and supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future
development plan, we are planning to construct a commercial and exhibition center,

additional shopping malls, office buildings, hotels and additional wholesale trading markets.

Lanzhou Trade Center

Lanzhou Trade Center is located in Yuzhong County, Lanzhou, which is next to the
community of Lanzhou College. It is located in the south of Qinling Highway and National
Road 312 and the north of National Road 309, and is approximately |5 kilometers from
downtown Lanzhou City, 20 kilometers and 80 kilometers from the railway station and

airport of Lanzhou City, respectively.

Lanzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 4.0 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 6.0 million sqm which is expected
to be developed at least in two phases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired the
land-use rights encompassing a total site area of 1,372,963 sqm. with a total GFA of
2,121,137 sq.m. upon completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of the wholesale trading markets and a commercial pedestrian street. We are
constructing additional wholesale trading markets. As part of our future development plan,
we are planning to construct shopping malls, a hotel, an office building, warehouses, and

additional wholesale trading markets.

Xingning Trade Center

Xingning Trade Center is located at the northeast of the Xingning train station in Diaofang.
Xingning is a city governed by Meizhou city, situated in the northeast Guangdong
province near Jiangxi and Fujian provinces, which is accessible by major national highways

connecting Guangdong and various other provinces in China.

Xingning Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m. which is expected
to be developed in three phases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land-use
right encompassing a total site area of 794,761 sq. m. with a total GFA of approximately

1,124,259 sq.m. upon completion of development.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of the wholesale trading markets, serviced apartments and certain supporting
buildings and facilities, and were constructing shopping malls and additional wholesale
trading markets. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct a
hotel, a residential area, an office building, warehouse, additional wholesale trading markets

and shopping malls.

Wuzhou Trade Center

Wuzhou Trade Center is strategically located in Wuzhou, a city in eastem Guangxi near
the border of Guangxi and Guangdong province. It is approximately 370 kilometers east
of Nanning, the capital of Guangxi, and approximately 270 kilometers west of Guangzhou,

the capital of Guangdong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wuzhou Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sq.m.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in two phrases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 599,642 sq.m with a total GFA of

[,116,345 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase | development.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, a commercial and exhibition center and
certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future development plan, we are
planning to construct shopping malls, and had a residential area, an office building, serviced

apartments and a hotel planned for future development.

Bengbu Commerecial and Residential Project

Bengbu Commercial and Residential Project is located in Huaiyuan County, Bengbu,
northeast of Anhui Province. It is located west of Beijing-Shanghai Railway and Beijing-
Shanghai High-speed Railway, at the junction of National Road 206, Provincial Highway
307, Provincial Highway 225 and other highways. It is located approximately 25 kilometers,
30 kilometers and 120 kilometers from the downtown of Bengbu, the railway station and

airport of Hefei respectively.

Bengbu Commercial and Residential Project covers a net land area of approximately
363,737 sq.m., which is estimated to consist of at least two phrases, and is estimated
to have a total GFA of approximately 962,222 sq.m. when fully completed. As of
31 December 2015, we had acquired all the land-use rights for this commercial and

residential project.

As part of our future development plan, we are planning to develop a residential area, a

commercial center, a hotel and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Jining Trade Center

Jining Trade Center is located approximately 6 kilometers west of Jining, a prefecture-level
city in southwestern Shandong province, and is one of the three major industrial bases
in Shandong province. It is easily accessible by a number of connecting bus lines, and lies

within 10 kilometers of the Jining train station and 30 kilometers of Jining Qufu airport.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Jining Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sqm., and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected to
be developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phrase | and Phrase Il encompassing a total site area of 975,863 sq.m. and expect

a total GFA of 1,202,039 sq.m. upon full completion of Phase | and Phase Il.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets and a shopping mall, and were constructing
a commercial center, a hotel, an office building, a residential area and a commercial and
exhibition center. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct

warehouses, serviced apartments and office buildings.

Heze Trade Center

Heze Trade Center is located in the city's central Mudan District along National Highway

220 and is approximately two kilometers from Heze's city center.

Heze Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 8.0 million sq.m. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 12.0 million sq.m. which is expected to
be developed in three phrases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | and a portion of Phase Il encompassing a total site area of 587,239 sq.m.
with a total planned GFA of approximately 629,518 sqm. upon completion of the Phase |

and Phase Il development.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of the wholesale trading markets and certain supporting buildings and
facilities. As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct shopping
malls, office buildings, serviced apartments, a residential area, and additional wholesale

trading markets.

Jiamusi Trade Center

Jiamusi Trade Center is located in Jiamusi City, the core city and transportation hub in
eastern Heilongjiang. It is located approximately 10 kilometers west of Jiamusi's city hall, in

the north of Youyi Road (the urban main road) and | kilometer from Ha-Tong Freeway.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jiamusi Trade Center is estimated to cover a site area of approximately 2.0 million sq.m.,
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 3.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phrases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land use
rights for the Phrase | development encompassing a total site area of 484,708 sqm., with a

total planned GFA of 507,324 sqm..

As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct the wholesale

trading markets, shopping malls, a hotel and certain supporting buildings and facilities.

Yulin Trade Center

Yulin Trade Center is located approximately 2 kilometers from Yulin, the fourth largest
city in Guangxi, located along the border in Guangdong province. The trade center's
northem edge is bounded by Yulin Second Ring Road. It is 3 kilometers from Guang-Kun

Freeway and is within 10 kilometers of Yulin train station.

Yulin Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately |.2 million sqm. and
has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.0 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 3| December 2015, we had acquired land-
use rights for all of Phase |, Phase Il and a portion of Phase Il encompassing a total site
area of 504,889 sq.m. with a total planned GFA of approximately 643,624 sq.m. upon full

completion of Phase I, Phase Il and Phase Ill development.

As of 3| December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of the wholesale trading markets and shopping malls, and were constructing
additional wholesale trading markets. As part of our future development plan, we
are planning to construct serviced apartments, a commercial and exhibition center, a

residential area and additional wholesale trading markets.
Yantai Trade Center

Yantai Trade Center is located in southem Zhifu District of Yantai City, west of Shenhai
Highway, 9 kilometers north of Yantai railway station, east of the Yantai wharf and 9.5
kilometers south of the Laishan International Airport and Rongwu Highway. The location

of Yantai Trade Center has exceptional geographical and transportation advantages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Yantai Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of approximately 1.3 million sqm.
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 2.4 million sq.m. which is expected
to be developed in several phases. As of 3|1 December 2015, we had acquired land-use
rights for all of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 160,056 sqm. with a total planned

GFA of 345,440 sqm. upon completion.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we were constructing shopping
malls and certain supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future development
plan, we are planning to construct wholesale trading markets, an office building and

serviced apartments.

Miangyang Trade Center

Miangyang Trade Center is strategically located in Mianyang, the second largest city in
Sichuan Province, approximately 120 kilometers northeast of Chengdu, the capital of
Sichuan province, along the key highway and railway that connects Sichuan province and

western and northem China.

Mianyang Trade Center covers a net land area of approximately 605,084 s.qm. which
is expected to be developed in several phases, and is estimated to have a total GFA of
approximately 544,988 sq.m. when fully completed. As of 31 December 2015, we had

acquired all the land-use rights for this trade center project.

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, a commercial pedestrian street and certain
supporting buildings and facilities. As part of our future development plan, we are planning

to construct additional wholesale trading markets and a hotel.

Ningxiang Trade Center

Ningxiang Trade Center is located approximately 3 kilometers west of Ningxiang's city
center, a county in Changsha, which is the capital of Hunan province. Highway 319 runs
along the eastern edge of the Ningxiang Trade Center and provides Ningxiang with

convenient access to other key cities in Hunan, such as Changsha, Zhuzhou and Xiangtan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ningxiang Trade Center is planned to cover a site area of 1.3 million sqm., and has an
aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.2 million sq.m., which is expected to be
developed in several phases. As of 31 December 2015, we had acquired land-use rights
for all of Phase | encompassing a total site area of 301,387 sq.m. with a total planned GFA
of 443,467 sqm. upon full completion of Phase .

As of 31 December 2015, for this trade center project, we had completed the
construction of wholesale trading markets, a freight-forwarding market, a commercial and
exhibition center, warehouses, a bus terminal and information center, serviced apartments

and were constructing a hotel.

Liuzhou Trade Center

Liuzhou Trade Center is located in Liujiang Town, Liuzhou City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region. It is located in the east of Xianggui railway, and in the south of

Liujiang Road.

Liuzhou Trade Center is estimated to cover a site area of approximately |.2 million sq.m.,
and has an aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 1.5 million sq.m., which is expected
to be developed in several phrases. As of 3| December 2015, we had acquired the land
use rights for a portion of Phrase | encompassing a total site area of 66,802 sqm. with a

total planned GFA of 64,187 sqm..

As part of our future development plan, we are planning to construct the wholesale

trading markets, shopping malls, and certain supporting buildings and facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue decreased by RMB193.8 million, or 5.8%, from approximately RMB3,360.2 million
for FY2014 to RMB3,166.4 million for FY2015. This decrease was primarily caused by a
decrease in revenue from sales of properties. The following table sets forth our revenue

from sales of properties, rental income, property management services and others during

MBEE
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the stated periods.

For the year ended 3| December

HZNA3IBLEE

20

2015 2014

(RMB'000) % (RMBU000) %

(AR¥TF7) % (AREFT) %

Sales of properties MEHE 3,102,829 98.0% 3341612 99.5%

Rental income R ON 37,743 1.2% 6,734 0.2%

Property management services MmEE R R 18,409 0.6% 11,339 0.3%

Others Hit 7370 0.2% 504 -

Total G 3,166,351 100.0% 3,360,189 100.0%
Sales of Properties MEHE

Revenue from sales of properties decreased by RMB238.8 million, or 7.1%, from
approximately RMB3,341.6 million for FY2014 to RMB3,102.8 million in FY2015. The
decrease of sales of properties was in line with the decrease in the GFA of properties
sold, which decreased by 7,449 sqm., or 1.5%, from 498,753 sq.m. for FY2014 to 491,304
sq.m. for FY2015. The decrease of the GFA of properties sold was mainly due to the
Group's prudent strategy adopted to cope with the volatile environment. Our revenue
for FY2015 was primarily derived from the sales of wholesale trading market units at our
Xingning Trade Center, Wuzhou Trade Center, Ganzhou Trade Center and Lanzhou
Trade Center, and shopping malls at our Ganzhou Trade Center and Wuzhou Trade

Center.
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The following table sets forth the GFA, average sales price and revenue from properties

delivered during the periods indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmE DM

GFA
REER

2015
Avergae

sales price

TYER

FHEE RS -

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3BLEE

Revenue

g

GFA
BE@E

2014
Avergae

sales price

THEE

TREJIRATREERNYROEEEE -

Revenue

it

GFA in sq.m., average sales price in RMB per sq.m. and revenue in thousands of RMB

BEAR (VoK) FPHER(GFRRARET) R (ARETF )

Xingning Trade Center REFENRE O

Wholesale trading market units ~ BURX HERRAEET 141,134 5919 835,423 = = =
Subtotal et 141,134 5919 835,423 = - —
Wuzhou Trade Center EMNEEMRH L

Wholesale trading market units BV X BB REETT 135,355 5,179 700,948 — - -
Shopping mall BERHRTE 9,932 7,890 78,365 =7 = =
Subtotal gt 145,287 5,364 779313 2 — ~
Ganzhou Trade Center EMNFEMRA L

Wholesale trading market units ~ BYRX B REET 39,735 8319 330,535 1195568 8228 983,853
Shopping mall RaRZETE 22,826 11,819 269,775 40,060 10,130 405814
Subtotal gt 62,56 9,59 600310 159,628 8,706 1,389,667
Lanzhou Trade Center BNEEDR DO

Wholesale trading market units ~ BYRX FEREET 48316 7,321 353,718 = - -
Subtotal Pt 48316 7321 353,718 — — =
Heze Trade Center HEBENRBO

Wholesale trading market units ~ BURX HRRAEET 41,106 5,360 220,321 47983 5,204 249,680
Subtotal gt 41,106 5,360 220321 47983 5204 249,680
Mianyang Trade Center REEEMRDL

Wholesale trading market units ~ BYRX FEREET 29,530 6,490 191,664 159,659 642 1,025,153
Subtotal gt 29,530 6,490 191,664 159,659 6421 1,025,153
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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A

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3NBLEE

2015 2014
Avergae Avergae
GFA sales price Revenue GFA sales price Revenue
REER  VHEE hE  RERERE PIEE Wiz

GFA in sq.m., average sales price in RMB per sq.m. and revenue in thousands of RMB

BEAR(FoAK)  FHERBGFLRARET) R (AREF)

Jining Trade Center BEBEWRBL

Wholesale trading market units BV R ZRREETT 17,864 4386 78,357 95872 4474 428979
Subtotal et 17,864 4386 78,357 95,872 4474 428979
Yulin Trade Center EMEEDRA D

Wholesale trading market units BV R BB REETT 2,765 5,368 14,842 8214 5,155 42340
Shopping mall RAaRSETE 2,268 11,386 25,824 20276 873 194481
Subtotal et 5,033 8,080 40,666 30,490 7767 236823
Ningxiang Trade Center EREENRE O

Wholesale trading market units ~ BURX HEREET — = = 4778 2,168 10,358
Serviced apartments BEEARE — — — M3 2776 952
Subtotal et — — — 5121 2209 11310
Other Properties Hitr¥n %

Haode Yinzuo FE e RE 473 6,463 3,057 = = =
Subtotal it 473 6,463 3,057 = X -
Total - Hy 491,304 6315 3,102,829 498753 6,700 3341612
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental Income

Revenue from rental income increased by RMB31.0 million, or 462.7%, from RMB6.7
million for FY2014 to RMB37.7 million for FY2015. The increase was primarily due to the

increase in leasing area.

Property Management Services

Revenue from property management services increased by RMB7.1 million, from RMBI 1.3
million for FY2014 to RMB18.4 million for FY2015. This increase primarily reflected the

continued expansion of our property management portfolio.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by RMB428.8 million or 21.9%, from RMB1,961.2 million for
FY2014 to RMBI,532.4 million for FY2015. The decrease was primarily due to a significant
proportion of revenue being generated from Xingning Trade Center and Wuzhou
Trade Center of our overall revenue for FY2015, yielded a relatively lower cost of
sales compared to that of Mianyang Trade Center and Ganzhou Trade Center which

contributed to a significant proportion of our revenue for FY 2014.

Gross Profit and Margin

As a result of the forgoing, the gross profit increased by RMB234.9 million, or 16.8%, from
RMBI,399.0 million for FY2014 to RMBI,633.9 million for FY2015. Our gross profit margin
increased from 41.6% for FY2014 to 51.6% for FY2015. The increase in our gross profit
margin was primarily due to a significant proportion of revenue being generated from
Xingning Trade Center and Wuzhou Trade Center of our overall revenue for FY2015,
which yielded a relatively higher gross profit margin compared to that of Mianyang Trade
Center and Ganzhou Trade Center which contributed to a significant proportion of our
revenue for FY2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other Income

Other income increased by RMB29.1 million, or 59.0%, from RMB49.3 million for FY2014
to RMB78.4 million for FY2015. Other income mainly includes government grants of
RMB59.7 million related to investment properties for FY2015 (FY2014: RMB Nil) which
was previously recorded as deferred income, net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
investments of RMB2.4 million for FY2015 (FY2014: RMB43.7 million), and dividend
income of RMB3.6 million for FY2015 (FY2014: RMB3.2 million) due to a 10% minority
investment made to a local rural credit cooperative institution in Mianyang, Sichuan

province.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMBI12.2 million, or 6.7%, from RMB182.3
million for FY2014 to RMBI194.5 million for FY2015. The increase primarily reflected an

increase in the number of properties that were pre-sold in FY2015.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by RMB31.9 million, or 7.5%, from RMB427.7
million for FY2014 to RMB459.6 million for FY2015. The increase was primarily due to
a significantly higher level of administrative expenses incurred to support our growing

operational scale in FY2015.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses decreased by RMB3.5 million, or 28.9%, from RMBI12.1
million for FY2014 to RMB8.6 million for FY2015. Other operating expenses primarily
consisted of charity donations and sponsorships made at our headquarters level as well as

geographic regions where we have operations or intended to enter into.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties

In FY2015, the Group transferred certain completed properties held for sale to investment
properties since there was an actual change in use from sale to earning rental income
purpose. The Group's investment properties carried at fair value were valued as at 3|
December 2015 on income capitalisation method by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, an independent firm of surveyors. For FY2015, the Group recorded a fair

value gain of RMB296.5 million (FY2014: RMB Nil).

Fair Value Change on Embedded Derivative Component of the Convertible Notes

On 23 January 2015, the Company issued convertible notes in an aggregate principal
amount of US$120 million due 23 January 2020. The convertible notes bear interest at
a coupon rate of 7.00% per annum payable semi-annually. Unless previously redeemed,
repaid, converted or purchased and cancelled, the Company will redeem the convertible
notes at 137.48% of its principal amount on the Maturity Date. In accordance with the
terms and conditions of the convertible notes, the Company shall give the convertible
notes holder an internal rate of return of 3% upon redemption of the convertible notes
under certain circumstances. The conversion option and the redemption option are
considered as embedded derivative component of the convertible notes and revalued
at each reporting date. For FY2015, the Group recorded a fair value gain amounting to
RMB 9.3 million (FY2014: RMB Nil).

Finance Income

Our finance income decreased by RMB10.8 million, from RMB20.0 million for FY2014 to
RMB9.2 million for FY2015. The decrease reflected a decrease in interest income on our
bank deposit in FY2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by RMBI41.7 million, or 1,610.2% from RMB8.8 million for
FY2014 to RMBI50.5 million for FY2015. The increase was primarily due to an increase
in convertible notes and senior notes issued in FY2015 to finance our business operation
and development, which in turn increased the interest expenses. Substantially all of the
interest expenses paid on bank loans and other borrowings in FY2015 were capitalized

into properties under development.

Income Tax

Our income tax expense increased by RMB295.3 million, from RMB331.0 million for
FY2014 to RMB626.3 million for FY2015. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
land appreciation tax and deferred tax liabilities arising from temporary differences of fair

value change on investment properties.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our profit increased by RMB9 1.2 million, or 18.0%, from
RMB506.5 million for FY2014 to RMB597.7 million for FY2015. Our profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company increased by RMB44.8 million, or 8.7%, from
RMB512.1 million for FY2014 to RMB556.9 million for FY2015.

Restricted Cash

As of 31 December 2015, restricted cash pledged to commercial banks for relevant
mortgage facilities granted to our customers for the purpose of purchasing properties by
our customers amounted to RMB224.4 million (FY2014:RMBI198.2 million). Such restricted
cash generally represents 2-10% of the total credit provided by the commercial banks. In
addition, as of 31 December 2015, restricted cash pledged for bank loans granted to the
Group amounted to RMB206.2 million (FY2014: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBNWmE DM

Liquidity and Capital Resources EERBURMBER

Our primary uses of cash are to pay for construction costs and land acquisition costs, fund BMRENEERABRINBRER KRR
working capital, service our indebtedness, purchase property, plant and equipment for our BN BNEEES  EEEK BEER
own use, and other regular business operation needs. To date, we have primarily financed W - BB RREA SR B —REF L
our operational expenditures through internally generated cash flows including proceeds EREK 2SR BRUEFZAABEENR
from the pre-sale and sale of properties, equity investments made by our pre-IPO EnE PREVERERBEMEIE - HMN

investors, borrowings from commercial banks and other lenders, proceeds from our initial MERAARZEENREEFELNREARE X
public offering and proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes and senior notes. BERFERTRAMEREENEE  RMRE

BRALRBEENABHRRETIEREER

BAZBMEFERKERRHES
Bank Loans and Other Borrowings BTENRHMGEE
The following table sets forth our outstanding borrowings as of the dates indicated. TREIRARBBEMHREREE -

As of 3|1 December

RI12A318
(RMB’000)
(AERHFr)
2015 2014
Current nE
Secured FER
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings —RERTERREMES 309,366 145,000
— current portion of non-current bank loans i #/miﬁﬁﬂgﬁ
and other borrowings HifgE0REHH 629,280 224,500
Subtotal et 938,646 369,500
Non-current *RE
Secured HEH
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFAER 233,260 399,230
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years ~-MERBRFARER 1,231,260 793370
Subtotal NE 1,464,520 1,192,600
Total G 2,403,166 1,562,100
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As of 31 December 2015, the bank loans and other borrowings are all denominated in
Renminbi of which RMBI,033,150,000 (FY2014: RMB417,000,000) bear fixed rates and

the remainder bear variable interest rates.

Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest rates ranging from 2.12% to 10.23% per
annum for FY2015 (FY2014: 6.40% to 10.23%) and are secured by the following assets:

R20I5F 124318 BFOERREMEES
WARBEE Eh AR 10331500007
(014HBEE : AR 417,000,000 7T)ZEE
MR - M TORZEFEGTE -

RWISEBREE  ROTEXREMEEFF
RNT21N%E1023%(014FBHEE : N F
6.40% % 10.23%) * WA THIBEEER :

As of 3| December

RI12A31H
(RMB000)
(AR¥Fr)
Properties under development for sale FEEEYE 881,683 981,722
Completed properties held for sale FEERIME 1,146,723 904,770
Properties held for future development for sale FERREREME 687,252 252,088
Investment properties REME 179,500 s
Prepayment for acquisition of property, plant WREME  BEX
and equipment FREBHENFB 368,535 =
Restricted cash XRERE 206,190 =
Total Ch 3,469,883 2,138,580

Contingent Liabilities

We make arrangements with PRC commercial banks so that they may provide mortgage
facilities to our customers to purchase our properties. In accordance with general market
practice, we are required to provide guarantees to these banks in respect of mortgages
provided to such customers. Guarantees for such mortgages are generally discharged at
the earlier of. (i) the due registration of the mortgage interest held by the commercial
bank upon the subject property, or (i) the settlement of mortgage loans between the
mortgagee banks and the purchasers. In addition, we are required by the banks to place
a security deposit to secure our guarantee obligations. If a purchaser defaults on the
mortgage loan, we are typically required to purchase the underlying property by paying
off the mortgage loan with any accrued and unpaid interest and penalty based on the
loan agreement. If we fail to do so, the mortgagee banks will auction the underlying
property and recover the balance from us if the outstanding loan amount exceeds the

net foreclosure sale proceeds. Such amount may also be settled through withholding the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

security deposit we place with the banks. In line with general industry practice, we do
not conduct independent credit checks on our customers but rely on the credit checks
conducted by the mortgagee banks. As of 31 December 2015, our maximum amount of
guarantees provided to banks for mortgage facilities granted to our customers amounted

to RMB2,818.9 million (FY2014: RMB2,551.0 million).

Commitments

(@)  Capital commitments outstanding as at 3|1 December 2015 contracted but not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

BEEENWRE DM

FREFE  WBARMAXNEARE - BRZEN
AR BBAEMRMNTRRRINRERIM -
REB-RIEED  BMNTEHEFPETEY
ER%E MeABRBROMETHNERE
E-HZ0I5F12A318 #MARETFER
RIBRENRTMELNERERERARS
28189BB (04 BEE : AR 25510

i —

BET) °

Rif

@@ MR20I5F12A3IBETHNERHBR
RAEBBNEXRREDT

As of 3|1 December

RI12A318
(RMB'000)
(ARETT)
2015 2014
Construction and development contracts BREERED 2,146,456 1,926,765
Land agreements i 228,770 330,588
Total G 2,375,226 2257353

(b)  Asat 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating lease are payables as follows:

(b) MR20I5F12B31H BEFTHEL
EHENERARREESBEINRE
by N

As of 3|1 December

RI12A318
(RMB'000)
(AR#Fr)
2015 2014
Within | year —ER 57,441 53534
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 51,828 47,385
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERER 104,352 115,000
After 5 years ik 47,000 -
Total &t 260,62 215919
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We leased a number of building facilities under operating leases. The leases typically EMEREEHERRZREFRE - BAD
run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after ~ F—RAMFZRF ' FIHREEELY &
that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes ReEMEChERY -  HEAEREIRHE

N

contingent rentals. T o

()  As at 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under non- (0 M2ISFENA3IAR BEFTHER
cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows: EHENERARBEESAETHE
R

As of 3| December

R12A318
(RMB000)
(AR#¥FT)
2015 2014
Within | year —ER 59,830 7,683
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEA 57,277 4112
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRER 134,572 3,653
After 5 years ik 93,830 9934
Total CEl 345,509 25382

The Group leased out a number of properties under operating leases. The leases REEREREHELHZEYE - BNIF

typically run for an initial period of 2 to 15 years. None of the leases includes ~ —MABREETHE - HEREB K AR
contingent rentals. o
Key Financial Ratios TEMBLE

The following table sets out our current ratios and gearing ratios as of the dates indicated. TREINBFRFIRERNRBL RN EES

B o
As of 3| December
RI2A31R
2015 2014
Current ratio(" MEILLEO 1.62 1.76
Gearing ratio® BEAGLEO 25.7% 13.2%
Net gearing ratio® FEERRLXC 36.3% Net cash

AR E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes:

(1) Our current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities as of the end of

the respective reporting period.

(2)  Our gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's total interest bearing borrowings as of the
respective reporting period (includes bank loans and other borrowings, convertible notes
and senior notes) divided by total assets as of the end of the respective reporting period and

multiplying by 100%.

(3)  Our net gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's net debt (aggregated bank loans and
other borrowings, convertible notes and senior notes, net of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash) divided by the total equity of the Group as of the end of the respective
reporting period and multiplying by 100%.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which the Group
denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions is Renminbi. Other than certain
overseas bank deposits, interests in joint ventures, the convertible notes and the senior
notes denominated in foreign currencies, the Group does not have any material exposure
directly due to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group maintains a conservative
approach on foreign exchange exposure management, and manages and reviews its
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations on a regular basis. At times of exchange rate
uncertainty or volatility and when appropriate, hedging instruments including swaps and
forwards will be used in the management of exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations.
At at 3| December 2015, the Group has not used any hedging instrument to hedge its

exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies
during FY2015. During FY2015, the Group acquired 36.43% of the total issued share
capital of Hydoo Best Group Co., Ltd. (“Hydoo Best") from Khun Sitichai for a
consideration of BAHT 800,000,000. Hydoo Best is a limited liability company established
in Thailand. Such cooperation demonstrated that we actively responded to the national
strategy of globalization of trade centers and participated in the implementation of the
“One Belt and One Road" strategy. As the center of Southeast Asia and the entrance
to ASEAN, Thailand supports the Chinese government's “One Belt and One Road”
strategy. The Group and Khun Sitichai contractually agreed to share control in Hydoo

Best. Hydoo Best is mainly engaged in property development and operation in Thailand.
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Restriction on Sales

As of 31 December 2015, we were simultaneously developing 14 trade center projects
in 9 provinces and autonomous regions in China. Under the terms of certain master
investment agreements with local government authorities regarding the development,
such as our agreements with regards to Ningxiang, Mianyang Ganzhou and Liuzhou Trade
Centers, we are required to maintain a certain portion of the trade center properties,
typically 20-30% in terms of GFA, for self-use or leasing purpose. We believe that such
requirement is in line with our overall development plan for these projects. Except for the
conditions mentioned above, there is no restriction on sales of the land acquired by the

Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of approximately 2,360 people
(FY2014: 2,391 people). The number of staff had decreased by 1.4% since 3| December
2014. During FY2015, the total employee benefit expenses amounted to RMB312.7
million, increased by 5.6% (FY2014: RMB296.2 million). We actively recruit skilled
and qualified personnel in the Chinese local markets, including students graduated
from universities as well as personnel with relevant work experience. For the senior
management team and selected management positions, we also seek to recruit personnel
with international experience. The remuneration package of our employees includes
salary, bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on each employee’s qualifications, experience, position and seniority. We have designed
an annual review system to assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our determinations on salary raises, bonuses and promotion. As at 31 December
2015, the number of outstanding share options granted by the Company to its directors
and employees is 65,755,000 shares.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E
For the financial year ended 31 December
BZNA3BILERREE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT AR%T:R
Results %5
Revenue g 3,166,351 3,360,189 4756464 1,607,114 832,683
Gross Profit E7 1,633,916 1,399,026 2932,355 776271 433,823
Profit before taxation ay=p b 1,224,002 837,426 2,324,859 460,282 288,728
Income tax ST (626,272) (330961)  (1,148,896) (245491) (59,751)
Profit for the year FRFE 597,730 506,465 1,175,963 214791 228977
Profit for the year attributable to: A N& 5 EIGEERF
Equity shareholders
of the Company AREERRER 556,875 512,053 1,177,782 216,506 228977
Non-controling interests ey For 40,855 (5,588) (1,819) (1,715) -
Profit for the year FRFE 597,730 506,465 1,175,963 214791 228977
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
At 31 December
RI12A31H

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
REET Ty NRET TSN ERT T e ARSI, WAR ST

Financial position BRI
Non-current assets FREEE 1,851,234 787,259 302,143 188,135 112,895
Current assets MBEE 13,252,613 1,065,760 10,701,554 4954970 2,869,070
Current liabilities mEaRE 8,155,558 6281413 5901,028 3,149,808 2053418
Net current assets mBEEFE 5,097,055 4784347 4,800,526 1,805,162 815,652
Total assets less current liabilites ~ AZERMTHEE 6,948,289 5,571,606 5,102,669 1993297 928,547
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,109,709 1,198443 670,38 937,230 555,874
Net assets BEFE 4,838,580 4373163 4431788 1,056,067 372,673
Share capital R 31,825 31,825 31,945 365 333
Reserves it 4,604,866 4,260,304 4,389,126 949417 372,340

Total equity attributable to equity AR AR

shareholders of the Company E{h e 1 RE 4,636,691 4292129 4421071 949,782 372,673
Non-controlling interests IR R 201,889 81,034 10,717 106,285 =
Total Equity Bmes 4,838,590 4,373,163 4431,788 1,056,067 372,673
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The Board has the pleasure in presenting this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are developing and operating large-scale trade centers

in third and fourth-tier, and selected second-tier cities in China.

The Group seeks to develop each trade center project into the largest integrated
commercial complex in the local region for the wholesale and retail sale of a wide range
of products, including hardware, electric tools, building materials, furniture and home
furnishings, home electronics, apparel and small goods. The Group designs its trade
centers to seamlessly integrate the wholesale trading market properties with other on-site
facilities such as shopping malls, commercial and exhibition centers, hotels, residential and

office space, warehouses and other logistics facilities.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in

note |8 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group s set out on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to complying with PRC environmental protection laws and
regulations, actively participating in the environmental assessment process and fully
cooperating with accredited environmental assessment organizations. The Group has
taken several measures to reduce pollution, including implementing energy-saving policies
that reduce its electricity consumption, setting up a rain and sewage diversion system
in certain trade centers, smoke filtering systems in the kitchens of its cafeterias and
restaurants, installing sound insulation in its backup generators and cooling machines, and

using solar-powered heaters.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had or

would have a significant impact on the Company during FY2015.

RESULTS

The Group's results for FY2015 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

on pages 88 to 89 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of the Proposed Final Dividend. Subject to the
approval of the Proposed Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on
I3 May 2016, the Proposed Final Dividend will be distributed on or about 31 May 2016
to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on |9
May 201 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2015 are set out

in note 3| to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during FY2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 31 to the financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, details of the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman Companies Law are

set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during

FY2015 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group's single largest customer and five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group's tumover respectively in FY2015.

The aggregate purchases from the Group's single largest supplier and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 9.5% and 40.8% respectively, of the Group's total purchases
for FY2015.

None of the Directors or any of their associates, or any Shareholders who, to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital has

any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

During FY2015, the charitable contributions and other donations totaled approximately
RMB6.6 million (FY2014: RMB10.3 million).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are set out in

note |8 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company ratified and approved the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme™) on 20 March 2013.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize the contribution of
the employees of the members of the Group and any persons who have contributed to
the Group at the time of granting Options (the “Qualified Participants”) to the business
development of the Group by granting share options (“Options”) to them as incentive

and/or reward.

(i) the exercise price per share under each Option is HK$1.014;

(i) asat 31 December 2015, the total number of outstanding shares involved in the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 65,755,000 shares, representing approximately

|.64% of the shares in issue of the Company;
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(i) the grantees are entitled to exercise in full or in part any vested Options from six

months after the Listing Date (31 October 2013) to 3| December 2018; and

(iv)  no further Options will be granted after the Listing Date.

Particulars of the outstanding Options conditionally granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme are set out below:

iy RLEWBEQ013F 10831 8)ENEA
Z0I8FEI2A3IR - AEABET

&

2HABICHEBBIGE &

(v) LT EEAETRE —HE b ERE -

RIEERAREBAERER 318 RIFR R
AMIEBBEFEEIINT -

Number of Number of
Options outstanding
Number of exercised/ Options as at
Options held Number of  cancelled/lapsed 31 December
asat | January  Options granted  during FY2015 2015
2015 during FY2015 #2015 2015
Number of R20I15E R0I5 BBFETR/ 128318
Grantees Date of grant of Options Options granted |BIR®E HREERL 28/Ku0 RTEH
ARA RiBRERM RUBRERE CRREHRE OHRRERS BRERA BRERA
Directors/People who
were directors in FY2015
2/ 0058 BEE
REZMA
Huang Dehong 30 November 201 | 4,000,000 4,000,000 = = 4,000,000
P 201111 A30H
Wang Lianzhou 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 = % 300,000
TEN 2013434208
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson 20 March 2013 300,000 300,000 = = 300,000
HER 2013F3/4208
Other employees 30 November 201 | 56,630,000 50,825,000 — 1,160,0009 49,665,000
RS 2011114308
Other employees [6 October 2012 9,190,000 7,490,000 -y 1,800,000 5,690,000
RitER 201210816
Former Director
AIEES
Wong Choihing? 30 November 201 | 11,600,000 5,800,000 — - 5,800,000
THEY 2011411 A30R
Total 82,320,000 68,715,000 - 2,960,000 65,755,000
CE
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Notes:

(1) In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Board resolved in the Board meeting held on 22 August 2014 that the Options granted to
Mr. Wong Choihing, the former Chairman and executive Director of the Company, which
were vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are still exercisable, and the
remaining Options granted which were not vested pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme were cancelled on 25 August 2014.

(2)  In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
outstanding Options granted to certain employees pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme have been cancelled due to their resignations from the Company, and these Options

ceased to be exercisable from the effective dates of their resignations.

The Options shall vest according to the following schedule:

For Options granted on 30 November 20/ |

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2012
31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015

For Options granted on 6 October 2012

Respective Vesting Date

31 December 2013
31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016

3l b

2012F 12 A31H
2013%F 128318
2014F 12 A31 B
2015F 12 A31 B

ZHEEAH

2013 12 A31 B
2014F 12 A31 B
2015 12 A31H
2016F 12 A31H
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Q)  BEERAFERAERET SR RE
- ETREIRBERARERABRERT
B ESRHRITRNBRERETIALRR
MasH - B aBHELER BRI A BT -

BRERBA TRRREE

201111 F30 AEHLBEKRE

Percentage of Shares under an

Option that shall be vested

EEBERESRAROEDL
25%
50%
75%
100%
H2012F 105 16 HELBBRE

Percentage of Shares under an
Option that shall be vested

EEERRESRNROE DL

25%
50%
75%
100%
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For Options granted on 20 March 2013

Respective Vesting Date EERAH

31 December 2014 2014% 12831 H
31 December 2015 2015%12A31 B
31 December 2016 2016512831 B
3| December 2017 2017%F 12831 8

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in note 30 to the financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2015 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianli (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Dewen (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 26 January 2015)
Mr. Huang Dehong

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuan Bing
Mr. Wang Wei (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Zhao Lihua

Mr. Wang Lianzhou

Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Wang
Lianzhou, Mr. Lam Chi Yuen Nelson and Mr. Wang Jianli shall retire from the Board by

rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules"). The Board considers all

independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Jianli, Mr. Wang Dewen and Mr. Huang Dehong, executive Directors of the
Company have entered into service contracts with the Company for a term of two, three
and three years, respectively. All of the service contracts may be terminated by either

party thereto giving no less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Yuan Bing and Mr. Wang Wei, non-executive Directors of the Company have entered
into letters of appointment with the Company for a term of three years. Both letters of
appointment may be terminated by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business

days' prior written notice.

Mr. Wang Lianzhou, Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson and Mr. Zhao Lihua, independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years. All of the letters of appointment may be terminated

by either party thereto giving no less than 14 business days' prior written notice.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors has or had material beneficial interests, whether directly or
indirectly, in any significant contract in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary of its holding

companies was a party during FY2015.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) or its subsidiaries (if applicable)
has or had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which

the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during FY2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

on pages 70 to 85 of this annual report.

ENFORCEMENT OF THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated 27 September 2013 (“Non-Competition
Undertaking") entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing, Mr. Wang Dewen, Mr. Wang Jianli,
Mr. Wang Quanguang, Mr. Wang Desheng, Mr. Wang Dekai, Mr. Huang Dehong and
Mr. Wong Sheungtak (the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholders™), Most Trend Holdings
Limited (“Most Trend"), Mr. Wong Kim and Eminent Ascend Limited (“Eminent Ascend”)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders"), each of the Controlling Shareholders has
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken to the Company that he/it would not, and
would procure that his/its associates (other than any members of the Group) would not,
during the Restricted Period (as defined below), directly or indirectly, either on his/its own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate, be interested or engaged in, acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or otherwise, and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) any activity or business which is or may be in competition
directly or indirectly with the business referred to in the Company's listing prospectus
dated 18 October 2013 carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member
of our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”). The restricted period is
the period during which (i) the shares of the Company remain listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); (ii) the relevant
Controlling Shareholder and his/its associates hold an equity interest in the Company; and
(iii) the relevant Controlling Shareholder and/or his/its associates jointly or severally are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less than 30% in aggregate of the voting

power at general meetings of the Company.
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The Controlling Shareholders have further undertaken to procure that, during the
Restricted Period, any business investment or other commercial opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business
(the “New Opportunities”) given, identified or offered to him/it and/or any of his/its
associates (other than any members of the Group) (the “Offeror”) is first referred to the
Company in the following manner: (a) each of our Controlling Shareholders is required
to, and shall procure his or its associates (other than members of our Group) to, refer, or
to procure the referral of, the New Opportunities to the Company, and shall give written
notice to the Company of any New Opportunities containing all information reasonably
necessary for the Company (the “Offer Notice"); and (b) the Offeror will be entitled
to pursue the New Opportunities only if (i) the Offeror has received a notice from the
Company declining the New Opportunities and confirming that such New Opportunities
would not constitute competition with core business of the Company, or (i) the Offeror
has not received such notice from us within 10 business days from the Company's receipt
of the Offer Notice. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Company shall seek opinions
and decisions from the independent non-executive Directors who do not have material

interests in the matter.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders confirming
their compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking for disclosure in this annual
report during FY2015. Independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
Controlling Shareholders’ compliance with the Non-Competition Undertaking during the

Year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments and five highest paid individuals for FY2015
are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements and the emolument policy of
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 69 of this

annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during FY2015,

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2015, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which was in competition or was likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EENESER

R2ISEI12A31H - EERARDAHEEM
HEEZB(EEREFRNERATESRE
BERG)EXVE)EMRG - ARG RESFT
BERBEZRBERIEXVEHET RSN E
RAGARAI KM AEER RKAR (BIERE
B LBAEGRIINEBRXMEESIERER
MEERAR)  ZBABRLRADAREES
N ERE R0 56 352 16 A 17 B B 5 T 69 4 2 Bk
B RREETRAMEN EHRETAZESE
TEFRZNEETA(EEFA ) ERNER
REI MR R OAB T

N,

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE READBRBREBRG TR
COMPANY
Approximate
percentage of the
Company’s
total issued
share capital®
Corporate Personal Y N
Name of Directors ~ Class of Securities interest interest  Share Options Family interest Totl  ERTARE
ESps ok obil nERH fBARL Bk FhER ai  HEOEALS
Wang Jianli Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000 ") —y e i 2,070,000,000 51.56%
M LAk
Wang Dewen Ordinary shares 2,070,000,000") - i = 2,070,000,000 51.56%
HEX LER
Huang Dehong Ordinary shares/Share option 2,070,000,00") — 4,000,000 B 2,074,000,000 51.66%
BEL ah/ Bk
Wang Lianzhou Share option — — 300,000 — 300,000 001%
TEN BiE
Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson  Share option — — 300,000 @ — 300,000 001%
HEE Bk
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Notes:

These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is wholly-
owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert declaration
executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholders confirmed, among other things, that since | January 2010, they
had been operating our Group collectively and would through discussions reach consensus
among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous basis. As such,
the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders are deemed to be interested in 2,070,000,000 shares
of our Company through Most Trend.

This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as
defined above). Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section
headed "Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” on pages 37 to 40 of this annual report.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 shares issued as at
31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, to the knowledge of the Board, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (i)

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which the Directors and chief

executive were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) recorded

in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, according to the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained after reasonable
enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was directly
or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital

carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES

FERRER

5A20|5¢|2H3|E| BEARRIRRES X
g5 ﬁll%3361@?&7?&5%&5&%%%
@ﬁ EHEBEARMERR  RESK
K’umigﬁﬁAa%vT@Ai/E%m
AR REEEE(ER REFRPERIE
XVE)in - BERN REFTREREES
REE GBI EXV IS 2 &30 M EXARAK
RERBRABEBRNERIAR - AERIA
BERARAEIRN(MEE—DERTEARAD
AR ARSI RER] ) EE 5% kA CfER

>5F

ROHR

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

total issued
Number of Shares share capital®
BRHBE fERAR
Name Nature of interest Corporate Interest Share Option ERITERA
L REEtE NEER Bk HEAE 2O
Most Trend Beneficial owner 2,070,000,000 - 51.56%
ER EGAA
Mr. Wong Choi Hing Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 5,800,000 () 51.70%
IHEEL REH RS BRE
Mr. Wang Quanguang Interest in controlled corporation 2,070,000,000 @ = 51.56%
B REHl AL
Mr. Wang Desheng Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 4,000,000 1% 51.66%
R RS BRE
Mr. Wang Dekai Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,070,000,000 @ 4,000,000 10 51.66%
TRERLE REH RS BRE
Mr. Wong Sheungtak Interest in controlled corporation/Share Option 2,370,000,000 @ ©) 4,000,000 (9 59.13%
ITEgREL REH RS BRE
Top Amuse Holdings Limited  Beneficial owner 600,000,000 — 14.95%
REZRARA EGHAA

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED $REE
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Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s

total issued
Number of Shares share capital®
RHBE fEEAT
Name Nature of interest Corporate Interest Share Option ERITERA
=L BiitE NEER BiRE LEFSEpe Al
Hony Capital Fund 2008, LP. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 © s 14.95%
SR EEES
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 = 14.95%
REHEEES
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000© = 14.95%
REHEEER
Hony Capital Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 © 5 14.95%
REHEE RS
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000 = 14.95%
R LB RS
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation 600,000,000© T 14.95%
fiiice Vi REH)EE R
Eminent Ascend Beneficial owner 300,000,000 == 747%
JE B
Pingan Real Estate Capital Limited Beneficial owner 493,923,566 (1 - 12.30%
FRAPEEAERAT EGHEAA
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation 493923566 (2 =¥ 12.30%
FRAGEBRRA] RS EE R
Ping An Life Insurance Interest in controlled corporation 493923,566 ~ 12.30%
Company of China Ltd. R EEER
HETZASRBROBRAT]
Ping An Insurance (Group) Interest in controlled corporation 493923,566 - 12.30%

Company of China, Ltd.

PETLRRE (£8) RDARAR

R EE S
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Notes:

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,014,844,000 shares issued as at
31 December 2015.

These shares are held by Most Trend. The entire issued share capital of Most Trend is
wholly-owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. By virtue of an acting-in-concert
declaration executed by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders on 22 March 2013, the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholders confirmed, among other things, that since | January
2010, they had been operating the Group collectively and would through discussions reach
consensus among themselves before reaching any commercial decisions on an unanimous
basis. As such, the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together control 51.56% interest in the
issued share capital of the Company through Most Trend.

Top Amuse Holdings Limited (“Top Amuse”) is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P., hence Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, LP., hence Hony
Capital Fund 2008, GP, LP. is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by
Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P. is controlled by Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited,
hence Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited is wholly-owned by Hony Capital Management Limited,
hence Hony Capital Management Limited is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000
shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited holds 80% of the shares of Hony Capital Management
Limited, hence Hony Managing Partners Limited is deemed to be interested in the

600,000,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

Hony Managing Partners Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhao John Huan, hence Mr. Zhao
John Huan is deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by Top Amuse.

Eminent Ascend is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Sheungtak, hence Mr. Wong Sheungtak is
deemed to be interested in the 300,000,000 shares held by Eminent Ascend.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZRERKIZERERLDT
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(10)  This represents the Options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Details
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the section headed "Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme” on pages 37 to 40 of this annual report.

(') This represents derivative interests in the underlying shares. Pingan Real Estate Capital
Limited, formerly named Pingan Real Estate (Hong Kong) Company Limited, ("“Pingan
Capital”) holds a direct interest in the convertible notes which will be convertible into

493,923,566 shares, subject to adjustment.

(12)  Pingan Capital is 100% controlled by Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd, hence Ping An
Real Estate Company Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the 493,923,566 underlying shares
represented by the convertible notes directly held by Pingan Capital.

(I13)  Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd is controlled by Ping An Life Insurance Company of China
Ltd, hence Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd is deemed to be interested in the
493,923,566 underlying shares represented by the convertible notes directly held by Pingan
Capital.

(14)  Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd is 99.5% controlled by Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd, hence Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the 493,923,566 underlying shares represented by the
convertible notes directly held by Pingan Capital.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2015, to the knowledge of the Directors, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Securities” and “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme” in this report and in note 30 to the financial statements, at
no time during the fiscal year under review was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
(including their spouses or children under |8 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Board confirmed that none of the related party transactions set out in note 35 to
this financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. During FY2015, the Group
had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company has not purchased, sold or repurchased any of its shares

listed on the Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, under which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 3|1 December 2015

are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

ISSUANCE OF 7.00% CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2020

On 23 January 2015, to leverage the investor's expertise in commercial and logistics
property investment and to further enhance the Company's growth in the specialized
trade center and logistics projects, the Company issued the 7.00% convertible notes with
an aggregate principal amount of US$120,000,000 (the “Notes"), which are due in 2020,
to Pingan Capital (the “Sole Noteholder"). The Notes are exchangeable into shares of
the Company, and are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by certain subsidiaries
of the Company (the “Subsidiary Guarantors”). The proceeds from the issuance of the
Notes will be used for investing in existing and new projects including expansion of the

Group's logistics business and/or other general corporate finance purposes.
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Notes, as a result of the final dividend paid
by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014, an adjustment was made to the
conversion price of the Notes from HK$1.956 per share to HK$1.884 per share effective
from 20 May 2015, being the ex-entitlement day (the “Adjustment”). As of 31 December
2015, the maximum number of shares of the Company that will be issued upon
conversion of all the outstanding Notes of US$120,000,000 at the previous conversion
price and the adjusted conversion price is 475,742,331 shares and 493,923,567 shares
respectively, representing an increase of 18,181,236 shares (the “Additional Conversion
Shares") issuable under the Notes. The Additional Conversion Shares will be issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the general meeting of the Company held on 13 May
2014.

On || January 2016, the Company, the Subsidiary Guarantors and Citicorp International
Limited (“Trustee”) entered into the first amendment to indenture, pursuant to which
the Company, the Subsidiary Guarantors and the Trustee agreed to amend certain terms
of the Notes (the “Amendments”). The Company has obtained the consent from the
Sole Noteholder to adopt the Amendments, and has obtained approval from the Stock
Exchange for the Amendments under Rule 28.05 of the Listing Rules on |3 January 2016

and the Amendments became effective accordingly.
The major amendments of the Notes are summarized as follows:

(@)  In order to bring certain terms of the Notes in line with those under the US$100
million 13.75% senior notes due 2018 issued by the Company (the “Senior
Notes") (details of which are set forth in the announcements of the Company
dated 2 December 2015, 8 December 2015 and |7 December 2015 in relation
to the issuance of the Senior Notes), certain definitions of the terms including
“Consolidated EBITDA", “Consolidated Net Income”,
“Other Financing”,

Minority Joint venture”,

“Permitted Businesses”, “Permitted Investment”, “Temporary

Cash Investment”, “Permitted Indebtedness”, and covenants in relation to limitation

on restricted payments, were amended; and

(b)  The right of the Sole Noteholder to require the Company to redeem all or some
of the Notes at its early redemption amount was amended with the effect that
such right shall be exercisable at any time on or after || January 2016, instead of
23 January 2018.
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On 14 January 2016, the Sole Noteholder has delivered a notice of exercise which
requires the Company to redeem on |5 January 2016 an aggregate principal amount
of US$40,000,000 of the outstanding Notes at the early redemption amount (being an
aggregate amount of approximately US$43,594,100). As at the date of this annual report,
redeemed Notes has been cancelled, and the total outstanding principal amount of the
Notes is US$80,000,000, which is convertible to 329,282,378 shares of the Company

upon full conversion.

Under the terms and conditions of the Notes, the payment of the Proposed Final
Dividend by the Company (if approved by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held
on |3 May 2016), will cause an adjustment to the conversion price of the Notes (the
“Conversion Price”). The Conversion Price will be adjusted by the multiplying the
Conversion Price in force immediately before the effective date for payment of the

Proposed Final Dividend (the “Effective Date") by the following fraction:
(A-B)/A

where A is the current market price of one share on the Effective Date and B is the
portion of the relevant fair market value of the aggregate dividend attributable to one
share, with such portion being determined by dividing the relevant fair market value of
the aggregate Proposed Final Dividend by the number of shares entitled to receive the

Proposed Final Dividend.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Notes, since the contracted sales of the
Company from | January 2015 to 31 December 2015 are less than the minimum
contracted sales target of RMB4.0 billion in aggregate, an adjustment was made to the
conversion price of the Notes from HK$1.884 per share to HK$1.696 per share effective
from 31 December 2015. Based on the total outstanding principal amount of the Notes of
US$80,000,000, the maximum number of shares of the Company that will be issued upon
conversion of all the outstanding Notes at the previous conversion price and the adjusted
conversion price is 329,282,378 shares of the Company and 365,783,019 shares of the
Company, respectively, representing an increase of 36,500,641 shares of the Company
issuable under the Notes. Such additional conversion shares will be issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders pursuant to an ordinary

resolution passed at the general meeting of the Company on 15 May 2015.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 9 January 2015, 26 January 2015, 7
July 2015, I'l January 2016, 14 January 2016, 31 March 2016, its annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and its interim report for the period ended 30 June 2015 for

details on the Notes.
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ISSUANCE OF 13.75% SENIOR NOTES DUE 2018

On |5 December 2015, the Company issued 13.75% Senior Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$100,000,000, which are due in 2018. The Senior Notes are listed
and traded on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Please refer to the Company's announcements dated 2 December 2015, 8 December

2015, and 17 December 2015 for details on the Senior Notes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 69 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the public float of the issued shares of the

Company as required under the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@)  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 10 May 2016 to |3
May 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to determine the identity of members who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited (“Computershare”)
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 May 2016.
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(b)  For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 19 May 2016 to
20 May 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with Computershare at Shops |712—1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
|8 May 201 6.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
years is set out on pages 33 to 34 of the annual report. This summary does not form part

of the audited consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During FY2015, no contracts concemning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The non-adjustment event after the end of the reporting period is set out in note 37 to
the financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG has acted as the auditors of the Company for the financial year ended 3|
December 2015. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for FY2015 have
been audited by KPMG.

KPMG will retire at the forthcoming AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as the auditors of the Company for FY2016 will be proposed at the AGM.

For and on behalf of the Board
WANG JIANLI

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the annual report of

the Company for FY2015.

The Company recognizes the value and importance of achieving high standard of
corporate governance to enhance the corporate performance accountability and is
committed to doing so. The Board is also committed to the principles of the CG Code.
Save and except for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions set out in the CG Code
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to ensure compliance with the CG

Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including three executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Brief
biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 70 to 85 of this annual report. The
overall management and supervision of the Company's operation and the function of

formulating overall business strategies are vested in the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director having appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and the requirement that independent non-executive

Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each independent non-executive
Director pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules. All the Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee of
the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
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The CG Code requires Directors to disclose to the Company, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments as
well as their identity and the time involved. The Directors have agreed to disclose their

commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

ROLE AND FUNCTION AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and conduct
of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management of the Company to
executive Directors and the senior management of the Company within the control and
the authority framework set by the Board. The delegated functions and responsibilities are

periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including approving
and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, intemal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to consult the Company's

senior management independently.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out on pages 60

to 63 of this annual report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders at

all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its Directors in

respect of legal actions against them.

Relationship between Directors

Save that Mr. Wang Jianli (the Chairman and executive Director) is the uncle of both Mr.
Huang Dehong (an executive Director) and Mr. Wang Dewen (the chief executive officer
of the Company and an executive Director), there are no financial, business, family or

other material relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The changes to the information of the Directors and senior management since the date
of the 2014 annual report of the Company are set out on page 45 of the 2015 interim
report of the Company dated 31 August 2015 (the “2015 Interim Report”). For details of

the changes during the above period, please refer to the 2015 Interim Report.

There is no change to the information of Directors and senior management since the date
of the 2015 interim report of the Company and up to the date of this annual report, and
no other information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing

Rules.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and information to ensure
that he has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and business as well as
his responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. According to the
records of the Company, all Directors have attended training sessions conducted by the
Company's legal advisers as to Hong Kong laws on duties and obligations of directors
of companies listed on the HKEx, including connected transactions and corporate
governance. The Company also provides periodic legal updates and developments on the
Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, news updates from the HKEx and
Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements to all of the Directors, as well as regular updates on the Company's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to

discharge their duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions Conducted by the
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set forth in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct of the Company for Directors' securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year. Employees who are, or
likely to be, in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or
its shares are prohibited from dealing in the shares of the Company during the black-out

period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed below, the Board is of the opinion that the Company had complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the Year.

CODE PROVISION A.2.7

The Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
due to the tight schedule of both the Chairman and the non-executive Directors. The
Chairman has communicated with the independent non-executive Directors and non-
executive Directors on a one-to-one or group basis to understand their concems and

discuss pertinent issues.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which may be terminated in accordance with the respective terms of the
service contracts or letters of appointment. For details, please refer to page 41 of this

annual report.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Articles 16.2 and 16.3 of the Articles, any Director appointed by the
Board or by an ordinary resolution either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board, shall hold office only until the following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. At every annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election

at the annual general meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
set out in the Articles. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman

and chief executive officer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision A.l.l of the CG
Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend, and include matters in the agenda for

a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with the meeting agenda and relevant information related to
the agenda in advance before the meeting. They have access to the senior management
and the company secretary of the Company at all time and may, upon reasonable request,

seek independent professional advice at the Company's expense.

Minutes of the meetings are kept by the company secretary of the Company with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of the board meetings and
committee meetings record sufficient details of the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting was held.

Minutes of board meetings are open for inspection for the Directors.
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Five Board meetings and one general meeting were held during the Year. Individual

attendance of the Directors is as follows:

WAER - BITTSREFEEER | KBRKA
€ HESBNESML:

No. of meetings attended/No.

of meetings held

HEERNE BHEEAR

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
= E=ge3 BRRAE
Executive Directors BITES

MrWang Jianli (Chairman and executive Director) TRAEE (EEFHTESE) 4/5 1/l
Mr. Wang Dewen EEXEE 3/50 1/
Mr. Huang Dehong BEREE 4/5 /1
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Yuan Bing REXE 5/5 o/l
Mr. Wang Wei FESEE 2/5@ o/
Independent non-executive Director BYFHTES

Mr. Zhao Lihua B ERL 5/5 I/
Mr. Wang Lianzhou FEMEE 4/5 o/l
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson MERTE 415 I/

Notes:

(1) Mr. Wang Dewen has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company with effects

from 26 January 2015.

(2)  Mr. Wang Wei has been appointed as an non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 23 January 2015.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and certain affairs of the Company. All board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference which have
been uploaded to the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company, and are

provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 27 September 2013 in compliance
with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
[4 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Audit
Committee by the Board. The revised terms of reference has been adopted by the Board
on 29 December 2015 to comply with the new CG Code which became effective on
| January 2016. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company, to oversee the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to make
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor

and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors and one
non-executive Director. The three members are Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Zhao Lihua,
an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Yuan Bing, an non-executive Director.
During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held to, among other matters, (1)
review and recommend the half-yearly and annual results to the Board for approval; (2)
review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; (3)
review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices; (4) review and consider
the whistleblowing policy and system; (5) review the external auditor’s independence
and the objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; and (6) review the terms of

reference of the Audit Committee.

The attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings was as follows: —
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B=x HERE
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (Committee Chairman) wEELE (FEGTR) 212
Mr. Yuan Bing REEE 212
Mr. Zhao Lihua B ERE 22
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the policy and structure of
the remuneration for Directors and senior management and to review and approve the

compensation payable to Directors and members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Wang Lianzhou, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lam, Chi
Yuen Nelson, an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive
Director. During the Year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held to, among
other matters, (1) determine the policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (2) assess the performance of executive Directors; (3) approve the terms
of executive Directors’ service contracts; and (4) make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, non-executive Directors,

independent non-executive Directors and members of senior management.

The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration Committee meetings was as follows:

FMzES

ARBIR2013FIR27BRLTEHEES - &
EERESEMS EmARIME T IR LR
BRATARCEERRERESERTHMZ
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Number of
Directors Attendance
= HERE
Mr. Wang Lianzhou (Committee Chairman) TENEE (REREFE) 3/3
Mr. Wang Jianli FRAEE 213
Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Welson MEERTE 3/3
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The primary goal of the Group's remuneration policy for executive Directors is to enable
the Company to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with their individual performance. The remuneration package includes basic salary,
performance and/or discretional bonus, participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and other benefits. Remuneration of the non-executive Director includes mainly the
Director’s fee which is a matter for the Board to decide by reference to the duties and
responsibilities of the non-executive Director. Remuneration of the independent non-
executive Directors includes the Director's fee which is determined by the Board based
on the duties and responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors and their

participation in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 27 September 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in the Appendix [4 to the Listing Rules and
the roles and the responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors. In the nomination procedures, the Nomination Committee
makes reference to criteria including candidates’ reputation, integrity, accomplishment,

experience and professional and educational background.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director. The three members are Mr. Zhao Lihua, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Lianzhou,
an independent non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director.
During the Year, three Nomination Committee meetings were held to, among other
matters, (1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to review the
diversity policy of the Board; (2) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; (3) review, consider and approve the nomination policy; and (4) make

recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors.

The attendance of the directors at the Nomination Committee meetings was as follows: —
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STRATEGIC REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Company established a strategic review committee (the “Strategic Review
Committee”) in September 2013, as an additional corporate governance measure to
evaluate any potential investment opportunities in Harbin presented to the Group. The
Committee consists of one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

The Strategic Review Committee is aware of the restrictions under the non-competition
undertaking (“Harbin NCU") entered into by Mr. Wong Choihing and Mr. Wang Dewen
in favour of Harbin China South City Company Limited in 2012. The duties of the
Strategic Review Committee include reviewing and assessing any investment opportunities
in Harbin that are presented to the Company, at least once every six months, and
identifying the steps to be taken in respect of such opportunities. Neither Mr. Wong
Choihing nor Mr. Wang Dewen will participate in any review, assessment or the decision-

making process by the Strategic Review Committee.

The Strategic Review Committee met on 25 March 2015 and 31 August 2015, and

concluded that there was no potential investment opportunities in Harbin for the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 24 March 2014 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills,
knowledge, length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate decision of all
Board appointments should be based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed

such board diversity policy in the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

(¢)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices in relation to its

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the implementation of the shareholders’
communication policy to ensure its effectiveness, and to make recommendation
to the Board where appropriate to enhance shareholders’ relationship with the

Company; and

() to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
CG Code and Corporate Governance Report).

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements for
FY2015 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities

to ensure that the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely manner.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company's
consolidated financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with updates on Company's performance, positions

and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going

concem.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 86 to 87 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. A defined management structure with specified limits of authority and
responsibilities is developed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to perform regular financial and
operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant management. The
works carried out by the internal audit department ensure interal control measures are
in place and function properly as intended. The results of the internal audit and reviews
are reported to the executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company. The
Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system and are

satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group for the Year.

For the annual review on the intemal control system, the Audit Committee considered
that the requirements in the internal control report as to the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system were satisfied. There was no matter of material concems relating
to financial, operational or compliance controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy

of the intemal control system of the Group during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group's independent auditors are KPMG. For FY2015, the remuneration paid and
payable by the Group to the independent auditors in respect of audit and non-audit

services provided by them were as follows:
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mr

RMB’000

ARBTR
Audit and review services!” Bz RERRKO 3,500
Reporting accountant service in relation to the issuance of corporate bonds BT R] &) FR 3R & 51 A AR 75 650
Total A8t 4,150
Notes: BifoE -
(1) Including fees for statutory audit of annual financial statements and review of interim financial () BEFENBEREROETHESBNH DG

report. WENEHREE -

COMPANY SECRETARY NAWE

Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda of Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited, an external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company secretary. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Wang Jianli, the Chairman and

executive Director, and Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda, company secretary of the Company.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, Ms. Mok, Mun Lan Linda
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in

compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders and other
investment community is essential. During the Year, the executive Directors, chief
financial officer and head of investor relations of the Group held regular briefings, press
conferences and analysts meetings of annual results, attended investor forums and
participated in roadshows and conducted meetings with institutional investors and financial
analysts in China, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the Group's
business and development. Investors can also communicate with the Company through

email at if@hydoo.com.cn.
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Shareholders’ meetings provide a useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. Directors and the chief financial officer of the Group will attend Shareholders’
meetings to answer the questions raised by Shareholders. Published documents together
with the latest corporate information and news are available on the Company's website at

www.hydoo.com.cn.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting

Besides the request of the Board, the extraordinary general meeting shall also be

convened through the following measures:

(@)  on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders who hold not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such principal office, the registered office,

specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such Shareholders; or

(b)  on the written requisition of any one Shareholder of the Company which is a
recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) who holds not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company as at the date of deposit deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the Shareholder.
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Putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general meeting in
accordance with the applicable laws and the Articles. If a Shareholder, who is entitled to
attend and vote at the relevant general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being
the nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or she should give to
the secretary of the Company notice in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person stating his or her willingness to
be so elected, commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on

the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to the Board
could send their enquiries to the headquarters of the Company in Shenzhen at 30/F Block
A, East Pacific International Center, 7888 Shennan Boulevard, Futian District, Shenzhen
PRC (email address: ir@hydoo.com.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During FY2015, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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EEREREEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Jianli (Ef271), aged 56, has been the Chairman of our Group and the

executive Director since 2014, and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
development and strategic plans of our Group. Mr. Wang has over 20 years' experience
in the development and operation of large scale trade centers. As disclosed in the
Company's prospectus dated 18 October 2013 (the “Prospectus”), since 1995, Mr.
Wang Jianli, together with his siblings and their families (the “Wang Family Group”),
has engaged in the development and operation of trade center projects. As one of
the key family members, Mr. Wang Jianli was directly involved in the development and
operation of a number of trade center projects. Except for the foregoing, Mr. Wang
did not have any management role within the Group prior to the appointment of the
positions. Mr. Wang has been a member of the | Ith Jiangxi Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (FBIARBUAHE G IAESE T—
JEZEE) (the “Jiangxi CCPPCC") and a member of the | 1th Jiangxi Federation of
Industry & Commerce (IFEE T —ELREXEEE) (“iangxi FIC") since January
2013, an executive member of the 3rd Ji'an Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUA B ERELXMEZEEZEE) ("ian
CCPPCC") since September 201 | and the chairman of the Federation of Industry &
Commerce of Jian City (FZ&TH L& %EHAE) since April 2008. Mr. Wang was also a
member of each of the 9th and the [0th Jiangxi CCPPCC and a member of each of the
9th and the 10th Jiangxi FIC from December 2002 to January 2013, and a member of the
2nd Ji'an CCPPCC from December 2006 to September 201 1. Mr. Wang has received
numerous awards, including the outstanding member of the Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Jian City for the year 2013 (2013 FE &
ZMEFMBHZEE) in December 2013; an honorary citizen of Jian City (F & M4
ZMR) in March 2005; and the outstanding contributor to the building of socialism with
Chinese characteristics in Jiangxi Province (T AR EBFPBREEL T ER S EER
F1ZE) in December 2004. Mr. Wang is the uncle of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and Mr. Huang Dehong, an
executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (F/Z30), aged 37, has been an executive Director since 2015, and has
been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. Mr. Wang Dewen is primarily
responsible for the overall business operations and management of our Group. Mr. Wang
Dewen has over seven years of experience in the development and operation of large
scale trade centers. From October 2009 to December 2012, Mr. Wang Dewen served
as the president of China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FIZZZEEM AR A7),
a subsidiary of China South City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1668). In this role, he was primarily responsible for
project management and operation. From January 2008 to October 2009, he served
as the chairman and general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited (RIEHESEE 5B 5 ZE AR A E]) and was
primarily responsible for project management and operation. He also served as the general
manager of Shenzhen Howard Investment Co., Ltd. (FYITT REREBR A F]) from
July 2006 to October 2009 and was primarily responsible for the company's management
and operation. Prior to that, he served as the project manager of the investment banking
department of China Great Wall Securities Company Limited (K35 EREEA
a]) from August 2004 to May 2005 and the analyst of research department of Guosen
Securities Co,, Ltd. (BI{EBHRMDBMRAA]) from September 2003 and August 2004.
Mr. Wang Dewen is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and Chairman
of our Group, and a cousin of Mr. Huang Dehong, an executive Director of the Company,

and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of our Group.
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EEREREEEERE

Mr. Huang Dehong (/Z7%), aged 37, has been an executive Director since 2013,
and is primarily responsible for the day to day management of the business of our
Group. Mr. Huang has nine years of experience in the trade center development and
operations industry. He has been the director of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade
Center Development Company Limited since July 2009, the general manager of Ningxiang
Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company Limited since December 2010
and the director and general manager of Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade
Center Development Company Limited since April 2012. He was also the deputy
general manager of Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Center Development Company
Limited from July 2009 to December 2010. From January 2006 to June 2009, he served
as the executive deputy general manager of Shuozhou Howard Commercial and Trade

NREE5ESZHREFRATF), and

was responsible for assisting the general manager with the company's operations and

Center Development Company Limited (¥

management. Mr. Huang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University with a diploma in law
in June 1998. Mr. Huang is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli, an executive Director and
Chairman of our Group, and a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen, an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and Mr. Wang Dekai, the chief operating officer of

our Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuan Bing (%), aged 47, has been a non-executive Director since 201 I, and
is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
and operations of our Group. Mr. Yuan has more than |4 years of experience in the
investment banking industry and has extensive knowledge in corporate financing, listings
and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Yuan joined Hony Capital in April 2009 and
has served as managing director of the investment department of its Hong Kong office
since January 2010. Currently, he is also a director of Top Amuse and a non-executive
and non-independent director and member of audit and compensation committees of
Biosensors International Group, Ltd, a company listed on Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr.
Yuan has been a non-executive director of Haichang Holdings Ltd. (&R AR A
&) since August 2012, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2255). Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of
the direct investment department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from October 2006 to
2009. Before that, Mr. Yuan served as managing director of the PRC enterprises corporate
financing department of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from April 2004 to June 2006. Mr.
Yuan also served as the vice president of Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited
from September 2001 to March 2004. Mr. Yuan received a bachelor of arts degree
in English from Nanjing University in July 1990. He also obtained a master’s degree in
international relations in June 1993 and a juris doctorate’s degree in June 1998 from Yale

University.
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EEREREEEERE

Mr. Wang Wei (£ 5), aged 47, has been a non-executive Director since 2015. Mr. Wang
Wei has over 2| years of experience in interational capital markets. Since early 2013, Mr.
Wang Wei has been the managing director and general manager of Ping An Real Estate
Fund Management (‘& &2 IR #12 E B2 B PR 2 A)). From late 2009 to early 2013,
Mr. Wang Wei was the managing director and China country head of Forum Partners
Investment Management, a US-based real estate private equity fund specialized in entity
level structured investment. From 2008 to 2009, Mr. Wang Wei was the vice president
and chief financial officer of Sunshine 100 China, a commercial and residential real estate
developer in China listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2608).
From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Wang Wei was the managing director and co-head of China
Fixed Income with UBS Group. He was also a member of the group’s China management
committee. From 1994 to 2005, Mr. Wang Wei spent |0 years in the fixed income and
equity capital market divisions at JP Morgan in New York, Singapore and Hong Kong. From
1991 to 1994, Mr. Wang Wei worked in the debt capital market and derivatives team
with the treasury department of the Bank of China, Head Office. In September 2014, Mr.
Wang Wei was appointed as a non-executive director of Wuzhou Intemational Holdings
Limited, a developer and operator of trade and logistics centres in China listed on the

main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1369).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

VRN

Mr. Zhao Lihua (#373), aged 73, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 2014. Mr. Zhao is currently a professor and a tutor of doctorate candidates of
Hunan University (1B AX2). He graduated from Hunan University in 1965 with a
bachelor's degree majoring in physics. He was a visiting scholar of the University of
Wisconsin-Madison in the United States from August 1979 to August 1981. He was a
visiting professor of the University of Hanover in Germany in 1989 and the vice president
of Hunan University from March 1992 to March 2000. He served as the chairman of the
board of Hebei Huda Technology & Education Development Co,, Ltd. (b 8AEHx
HEERRMHBRAF) from March 2000 to October 2002 and the chief supervisor
of Sinosafe General Insurance Co. Ltd. CEL BT ERBARIA BR A F]) from July 2003
to June 201 1. Mr. Zhao has been an independent non-executive director of China
Glass Holdings Limited (BIXBE2AR B R 2 F]) since June 201 |, whose shares are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3300), and
an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material Company
Limited (F BIEEM AR 7 BBR2F)) since October 2014, whose shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3323). He was formerly an
independent non-executive director of China Fiberglass Co., Ltd. (P BIIFA AR (A ER A
&]) from July 2003 to April 201 I, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600176).
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Mr. Wang Lianzhou (&), aged 76, has been an independent non-executive Director
since 2013. Currently, he serves as an independent director of Beijing Tongrentang Co.
Ltd (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange), Huabao Trust Co. Ltd. GEE{55EH
PR B E/A 7)), Great Wall Fund Management Co. Ltd., Heaven-Sent Capital Management
Group Co. Ltd. WAKREBEEEEE), and the director of the editorial committee
of Securities Investment Fund Yearbook. He also acted as an independent director of
China Asset Management Co., Ltd and the independent supervisor of Baoying Fund
Management Co. Ltd, and the president of the Trust and Fund Institution of the People’s
University of China. He previously worked at finance and economy committee of National
People’'s Congress ("NPC Finance and Economy Committee”) and was responsible for
coordinating the work between the NPC Finance and Economy Committee and the
relevant departments of the PRC central government and to launch the legislation on
economic matters. He successively served as the vice chief and the chief of the finance
group of the NPC Finance and Economy Committee office, the deputy director of the
office and economic law office, bureau-level inspector of research institute. He also served
as the group leader in drafting the Securities Law, Trust Law, and Investment Fund Law of

China, consistently dedicating to the construction of legal system for capital market.
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Mr. Lam, Chi Yuen Nelson (#f% &), aged 47, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 2013. He has extensive experience in professional accountancy in Hong
Kong. Currently, he is the chairman of Nelson CPA Limited. He has been appointed as a
non-official non-executive director of the Urban Renewal Authority Board of Hong Kong
SAR since May 2013. He has been the independent non-executive director of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1313), since August 2008. He has also been appointed as a member of the Financial
Reporting Review Panel since July 2013 and a member of the Air Transport Licensing
Authority since August 2013. Mr. Lam is a practicing fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of several professional bodies in Australia, the USA
and the United Kingdom, including CPA Australia, the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales.
He is also a CFA charter holder and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Lam was the president of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors
from December 201 | to December 2013 and is currently the chairman of Accounting
Development Foundation Limited. Mr. Lam received a bachelor of business administration
degree in accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Baptist College) in January 1992, a master of business administration degree from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1998 and a master of

science degree in finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Dewen (E/Z3), aged 37, has been an executive Director since 2015, and
has been the chief executive officer of our Group since 2014. For details of Mr. Wang
Dewen's biographical details, please refer to the disclosure as set out in the sections
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management - Executive Directors”

in this annual report.

Mr. Wang Dekai (E12), aged 39, has been the chief operating officer of our Group
since 2014, and is primarily responsible for the daily operation and management of the
Group. Mr. Wang has approximately |6 years of experience in the development and
operation of large scale trade and logistics centers. From February 2000 to May 2006,
he served as the chairman and the general manager of Henan Xinyang Commercial and
Trade Center Development Company Limited (AIR1E/5E 2 B%REERAF),
and was primarily responsible for the company's management and operation. From June
2006 to October 2009, he served as the chairman and the deputy general manager of
Liaoning Chaoyang Howard Commercial and Trade Center Development Company
Limited (EZEHGREE S EHFREABRAT]), and was primarily responsible for
project management and operation. From November 2009 to July 2012, he also served
as the chairman and general manager of Jining Howard Lunan Modern Trade Center
Development Company Limited (BEEREERRRYRHHAZEBR A F]), and was
responsible for project management and operation. From August 2012 to July 2014,
he served as the general manager of Mianyang Western Trade Center Development
Company Limited (42/5 82038 YR FHE B R A 7)), and was responsible for
project management and operation. Mr. Wang Dekai is the nephew of Mr. Wang Jianli,
the Chairman and an executive Director of our Group, a cousin of Mr. Wang Dewen,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, and Mr. Huang

Dehong, an executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Jia Xinjiang (B{5/1), aged 61, has been the vice president of our Group since
2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial operations of our Group. He
has also been appointed as the president of Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Finance Holding
Company Limited since June 2015, and is primarily responsible for the overall business
operations and management of the finance affairs. Mr. Jia is a senior economist. He
obtained bachelor degrees in science of Marxist Basic Theory from Jiangxi University (/1
FaRE) and in finance from the Economics Department of Zhengzhou University (25
JNARZ), and a master degree in finance from Hunan College of Finance and Economics
ORI B T). Mr. Jia has 36 years of experience in management and operations
of banking business, including 21 years of experience in the Central Bank and |5 vyears
of experience in commercial banks. He has a deep understanding of China'’s financial
markets, and is familiar with China's monetary credit policy and financial regulations, as
well as the methods of managing commercial bank business, risk-management and internal
control. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia served as the director of corporate banking
department of Ping An Bank Company Limited (a joint-stock commercial bank whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000001), hereinafter
referred to as “Ping An Bank”) from September 2012 to September 2013, and was
responsible for the corporate banking business of its Chengdu branch, Chongging branch,
Kunming branch, Wuhan branch and Haikou branch. From May 2007 to September
2012, Mr. Jia served as both the director of corporate banking department of Ping An
Bank and the general manager of Ping An Bank's management department in Shenzhen,
and was responsible for the overall operations of business department in Ping An Bank's
business in the southern part of China. From May 2005 to May 2007, Mr. Jia served as the
deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (a
joint-stock commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0998) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601998)), and was responsible
for corporate banking, credit operations and foreign exchange business. From April 2004
to May 2005, Mr. Jia served as the deputy president of the Guangzhou branch of China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (a joint commercial bank whose shares are listed on both the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6818) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601818),
hereinafter referred to as “CCB"), and was responsible for corporate banking, asset
management and operation management. From September 1998 and April 2004, Mr.

Jia served as the deputy president of the Shenzhen branch of CCB, and was responsible
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for credit management, risk review, corporate banking, retail business and integrated
management. From February 1993 to September 1998, Mr. Jia held several positions
in the Jiangxi branch of People’s Bank of China, including the assistant to president and
deputy president, and was responsible for foreign exchange management, financing
planning management and issuance of currency management. From October 977 to
February 1993, Mr. Jia held several positions in the Shangrao district branch of People's
Bank of China, including deputy president and president, and was responsible for financing

planning, credit management, integrated management and the overall management.

Mr. Chan Sze Hon (BREE), aged 42, has been the chief financial officer of our Group
since 2014, and is primarily responsible for the overall financial affairs of our Group.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has about 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management
and had worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong for over 8 years. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Chan had held various positions with companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. From October 2012 to June 2014, Mr. Chan was a chief financial
officer and company secretary of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code:
[369). From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Chan has been an executive director, company secretary
and chief financial officer of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777).
Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of each of BLU SPA Holdings
Limited, currently known as SkyNet Group Limited (stock code: 8176) and China Mining
Resources Group Limited (stock code: 340) from 2007 to 2012 and 2007 to 2011,
respectively. From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Chan also served as an independent non-executive
director of ERA Information & Entertainment Limited, currently known as ERA Mining
Machinery Limited, a company whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and
delisted in 2012. Mr. Chan was an executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of Greater China Holdings Limited, currently known as Greater China Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 431) from 2005 to 2008, and later re-designated as a non-
executive director from 2008 to 2015. Prior to that, Mr. Chan worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from 1995 to 2004, where he held various positions such as staff accountant,

senior accountant and manager.
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Mr. Huang Wenbin (E530/8), aged 52, has been the vice president of our Group since
2011, and is primarily responsible for sales and marketing management of our Group. Mr.
Huang has 21 years of experience in sales and marketing. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Huang was the vice general manager of Hong Kong Howard Group Company Limited
from February 2005 to November 2011, and was principally in charge of the sales and
marketing of trade center projects. Mr. Huang was also the deputy general manager of
the Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from May 2010 to
November 201 |, and was responsible for sales and marketing of the Jining Trade Center.
Concurrently, Mr. Huang served as deputy general manager of China South City Xi'an
Company Limited (FAZZEmMMABRAF]) in charge of marketing from January 2010
to October 2011, and was responsible for sales and marketing management. Mr. Huang
served as the deputy general manager of Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
EEXEEFESMEER AR from January 2001 to June
2005. He also acted as the deputy general manager/general manager of Jiangxi Howard
Group Bioengineering Industrial Co,, Ltd. (LAAREEEAY TR EEFRAF]) from
November 1998 to December 2000 and the deputy general manager of Ganzhou Lifa
Metal Products Company Limited (38173 & B mAR 2 Fl) from March 1994 to
November 1998.

Company Limited (&=

EEREREEEREE

il
o

BEE 525 B FHBELELAE
BH - FEEREASEHEREHER
EBE-_T-FHEREHLR - MAK
BT B AT R2005F2A 2001 F I
EAEAREEBERAFRALE T2
BERBYRTOBENHEEREH EELE
MRWI0FESAZENIFIIAETEERE
MRAFEERAREALE  AEBEERE
MRRORHEEREHE - R BEEERER
2mMﬂﬂ§mn¢mﬂ%Eﬁ§%ﬁﬁﬁ
AREHERERRE BREHERSHE
om%éﬁﬁmmilﬂimwieﬂﬁﬁ
REEREEIRGRBARARBLE
&WKW%inﬂimmﬁmH#Emﬁi
EEEENIREXARAARALE B
B URI94F3AZEI998F || A LETHE
JNAE & BEmAR L AR 2R

JeE)

m

o M Omt
@H%

ik

N

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#k

81



82

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEERE

Mr. Zhao Yande (it Z1E), aged 39, has been a vice president of our Group since 201 1,
and a general manager of the Ganzhou project of our Group since December 2012.
From November 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Zhao served as the vice president of
construction management of our Company and was primarily responsible for the overall
construction management of our Group. Mr. Zhao has more than |5 years of experience
in construction management. Prior to joining our Group, he was also the deputy general
manager of Jining Hydoo Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February
2010 to November 2011 and was responsible for construction management of the
Jining Trade Center. Concurrently, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy general manager of
construction in China South City Xi'an Company Limited (FAZ 2R3 A R A &) from
October 2009 to October 201 I, and was responsible for managing the construction of
the entire project. From November 2008 to October 2009, Mr. Zhao acted as the deputy
general manager of construction in Jingdezhen Howard Trade Center Development
Company Limited (REBEFREEHESFE AR A F]), and was responsible for
managing the construction of the entire project. From May 2006 to November 2008, Mr.
Zhao worked for Shenzhen China Overseas Construction Limited (FYIIFR/G2E T2
B AT, and was responsible for managing the construction of the Futian Shangri-La
Hotel, Kerry Plaza and Zhuhai Silver Bay projects. From July 2000 to May 2006, Mr. Zhao
worked for China State Construction International Holdings Ltd., and was responsible
for managing the reconstruction of Kowloon Hospital, the 101 Area project and other
projects. Mr. Zhao received a bachelor's degree in construction management from
Chongging University in July 2000, and a master of science degree in project management

from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2007.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T

HEBELE 9% B0 FRELAREE
Bl WE2012F12AREEREEEM
EHBEEIEIIBZE00REI1A B
FERALRIRERRIAY FERELE
BMEEEIER HEERAEATRAFHT
BIREE - MARKER - BEEER20I06
QREINF I AREEERENRBRES
RAREIALE  AEEZEEEMRT NG
ITER- AR BEETRLR2000FI0AZE
201110 ARERRERBAR AR TEHE
B BREEBEARIEE - 520085 11
AZ009F 108 BELEGRERBEERE
ESESRRERARIESIRLE  BF
BREABRIER - BAEER2006F5AZE
20085 |1 AEBR AT BREIRERA
Al AEREBERENANEE EERRES
UG HGEEBNEIER - R2000457 A
Z2006F5 A 0 #HEE BERRN P ERERR
EBERLA - BENEBRER  101RE
BREMIARER - #xER200057 AEF
BEREABRAEBIES BN - WR2007F
NABGERRBIASHAEREXEERT

B -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Zhongmin (Ff /& X), aged 61, has been the vice president of our Group
since 2011, and is primarily responsible for the overall project plan and architectural
design management of our Group. Mr. Chen has more than ten years of experience in
city planning, architectural design, commercial real estate development and operations
management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen acted as the chief planner of Hong
Kong Howard Group Company Limited from April 2007 to November 2011, and
was responsible for site selection, design and planning of all the projects of the group.
Concurrently, Mr. Chen acted as the executive deputy general manager of Jining Hydoo
Logistics Center Development Company Limited from February 2010 to November 201 |
and was responsible for the daily management of the company and the design of Jining
Trade Centre. From April 2006 to April 2007, he was the general manager of Shenzhen
Minghao Investment Company Limited (73T #4548 & A /1), and was responsible for
the property development and operations of the project companies, especially Muyang
project. From August 2002 to February 2006, he successively served as the deputy general
manager of Quanying Weiye (Beijing) Investment Management Company Limited (&
BEJAtR)ZEEEERAT]), the general manager of Henan Luohe Quanying Weiye
Estate Company Limited (782 2 & EXREXRBR AT and the deputy general
manager, executive deputy general manager and general manager of Henan Pingdingshan
Trade Center Development Company Limited (A FIBILE 2 EZFREBRAA),
and was responsible for project development. Mr. Chen was the director and architect of
the design department of Jiangxi Ganzhou Architecture Design Institute, the director of
Ganzhou City Planning and Survey Design Institute, the director of Ganzhou City Planning
Bureau, a member of the Management Committee of China Association of City Planning
and vice president of the Jiangxi Association of City Planning, Mr. Chen was granted the
title of senior engineer in city planning by the Professional Title Reform Leading Group
(BB R /M) of Jiangxi province in September 1997. Mr. Chen graduated from
Jiangxi Normal University (‘L FBAM 3 A 22) with a diploma in arts in February 1977.
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Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (JE7TT), aged 43, has been the vice president of our Group since
2012, and is primarily responsible for the construction and cost management of the
Group. Mr. Zhou has nine years of experience in construction management. From
December 2010 to December 2012, he served as the general manager of the planning
and construction management department of Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. (EJK ¥ 5B
AR B R A F]), responsible for project development, planning and operation and the
construction management of the group. During the same period, he concurrently served as
the general manager of Taijian Construction Engineering Co, Ltd. GREEETEFRA
A]) under the group. He also served as the deputy general manager of Liyu Construction
Design Company (BERIEEE%AT /A A)) under the group, responsible for decoration,
landscape design and management from June 2012 to December 2012. From March 2010
to November 2010, he served as the deputy general manager of Changsha Kaifu Wanda
Plaza Investment Company Limited (R @& ZEE %R E AR A ), in charge of the
construction work. From July 2007 to February 2010, he successively served as the chief
of general housing management center and project general manager of Dongguan Vanke
Real Estate Co, Ltd (R&REHEBR A R]), and was responsible for its project
development and construction management. From July 2004 to July 2007, he served as
the construction manager of Guangdong Century City Group Company Limited (&t
tE BB AA]), in charge of its project development and construction management.
Mr. Zhou received a bachelor of science degree in water conservancy and hydropower

engineering construction from Tsinghua University in July 1995.
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Mr. Ma Yi (%54&), aged 46, has been the vice president of our Group since 2014, and is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning and project operations of our Group. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Ma also acted as the assistant to president and director of the
commerce department of Diamond Park Creative Design (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (& $& R £l
ERETORYINA R A R]). From July 2007 to August 2009, Mr. Ma acted as the marketing
director of China South International Industrial Materials City (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (Z£F5
BR TR REUH ORI B R 2 D), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China South City Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ma also worked in Guangzhou Intemational Commaodity Exhibition & Trade
Center Company Limited (B BIFR 7 mE B AR B A F]) and Lionda Holdings
(Group) Co, Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Ma received a
bachelor of science degree from Guangxi University of Technology (78 LE2Fx) in July
1991.

Mr. Wang Xiangui (F#5), aged 58, has been the director of the project development
department of our Group since 2010, and is primarily responsible for the project
development of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 20 years of experience in project
development of trade centers. From January 2010 to November 2010, Mr. Wang served
as the manager of project development department of Hydoo HK and was responsible
for the project development of the company. From August 1995 to November 2010,
he was the manager of project development department of Hong Kong Howard Group
Company Limited, and was responsible for the project development. He was awarded
the title of the outstanding entrepreneur with social responsibility of Weifang city in

December 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2 B

epnac

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Hydoo International Holding Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hydoo International Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group") set out on pages
88 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
[0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BHEER

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNRANBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

UAARBFITR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®T R ARETT
Revenue I 3 3,166,351 3,360,189
Cost of sales HERKAR (1,532,435) (1961,163)
Gross profit E£7 1,633,916 1,399,026
Other income Hip A 4 78,394 49,307
Selling and distribution expenses HERY (194,541) (182,263)
Administrative expenses THAX (459,633) (427,715)
Other operating expenses Hip & mE (8,608) (12,082)

Profit from operations before fair RENEDABERGARERE
value gain on investment properties 1,049,528 826,273
Fair value gain on investment properties REME DA B I 296,543 —

Profit from operations after fair RENEAABRSREERE
value gain on investment properties 1,346,071 826,273

Fair value change on embedded derivative AIERERORARTED S
component of the convertible notes NREEE 26 19,319 =
Finance income KA 5(a) 9,161 19,993
Finance costs BMERAK 5(a) (150,549) (8,840)
Profit before taxation BRBE AT A 5 1,224,002 837426
Income tax FriEH 6(a) (626,272) (330,961)
Profit for the year FRFE 597,730 506,465

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015

BZNSFNA3NBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB3IR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt AR®T R ARETT
Attributable to: T &R
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIERERR 556,875 512,053
Non-controlling interests RS 40,855 (5,588)
Profit for the year FRFE 597,730 506,465
Earnings per share SRER
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) 9 13.9 12.7
Diluted (RMB cents) BEARED) 9 13.9 12,6

The notes on pages 98 to 230 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends F98E 20 AN BN ZEN K RERA—
g

payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set out in note 31 (b). 29 o BNARAERBRR)

K FE B E I
FE31(b) e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHfERRAEMEZE KSR

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNRANBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHIIT)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit for the year FRFE 597,730 506,465
Other comprehensive income for the year FrEMEERA(BRER
(after tax and reclassification adjustments) ENDERARE)
tems that may be reclassified subsequently to HERREN I BRER=MER :
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BMERBUEINF AT
of financial statements of subsidiaries outside IBRRNELER
the Mainland China (19,492) 13,449
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEBKA (19,492) 13,449
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEWALE 578,238 519,914
Attributable to: UM & B A
Equity shareholders of the Company AARERRE 537,383 525,502
Non-controlling interests RS 40,855 (5,588)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALE 578,238 519914
The notes on pages 98 to 230 form part of these financial statements. FBEVVEMEAMABRZFHBRRN—

5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B Ot BN R

at 31 December 2015
RI5E 124318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBFIR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
PisE AR®BTR ARBTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment v ER Y S 10 112,331 92,704
Investment properties REME 'l 778,900 -
Intangible assets B EE 12 3,983 3,038
Goodwil BE 13 3,631 3,631
Interest in joint venture RE & ERER 14 150,386 =
Other non-current financial assets HinIEmaemERE 15(2) 111,187 25V
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE [6(b) 316,049 293572
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WEBY%E - BE K&
plant and equipment kYD |7 368,535 368,535
Finance lease receivables RMERERENIA 21 6,232 ==
1,851,234 787,259
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7B 19 9,628,621 7,688,692
Prepaid tax BNTRE 16(a) L1116l 188,99 |
Trade and other receivables, prepayments B 5 R H A -
and deposits BRNRERES 20 1,393,270 1,133,893
Restricted cash RRHRE 2 430,638 198,155
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 15(b) — 37,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 23 1,688,923 1,819,029
13,252,613 11,065,760
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SO HARR R

at 31 December 2015
R2015F 128318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHESITR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR% TR ARBTTT
Current liabilities nREBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 24 4,277,132 BI9752115
Bank loans and other borrowings ROTERRAMEE 25 938,646 369,500
Convertible notes AEREE 26 844,906 =
Current tax liabilities EHEERE 16(a) 1,106,310 054,385
Deferred income FEEMA Al 988,564 882,313
8,155,558 6,281,413
Net current assets RBEEFE 5,097,055 4,784,347
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 6,948,289 5,571,606
Non-current liabilities FREBEAE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 25 1,464,520 1,192,600
Senior notes BEER 28 626,894 =
Deferred income FEEMA 27 3,524 5,843
Deferred tax liabilities BEREMIEEE 16(b) 14,771 =
2,109,709 1,198,443
NET ASSETS EERE 4,838,580 4373163

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B Ot BN R

at 31 December 2015
RI5E 124318

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB3IR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
PisE AR®BTR ARBTT
Capital and reserves RAR &% 31
Share capital LEN 31,825 31,825
Reserves G 4,604,866 4,260,304
Total equity attributable to equity FREREERR
shareholders of the Company EiEERBH 4,636,691 4292,129
Non-controlling interests FERER 201,889 81,034
TOTAL EQUITY BDAHE 4,838,580 4373,163
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2016, 201663 A30 FEES 28 E REKETE -
Wang Jianli Wang Dewen
TR Y
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
IRFRNTES HITESRITHAER
The notes on pages 98 to 230 form part of these financial statements. FNBEVEMEAMT BN ZEUBREN—
2 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B EREER

for the year ended 31 December 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE*

Gt i =

for the year ended 31 December 2015

A

=

(AARB3IR)

(Expressed in Renminbi)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015
BEWISFNRANBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHIIT)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ ARETR ARBTT
Operating activities ReETES
Cash used in operations REXBMARE 23(b) (1,206,419) (1,742013)
PRC tax paid BN EIE (504,223) (429,484)
Net cash used in operating activities REZHFMARES TR (1,710,642) (2,171,497)
Investing activities REEH
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment 1S58 5,586 A5
Payment for purchase of property, BEVE  HERREBRR
plant and equipment (23,211) (426,010)
Payment for purchase of other EEHEMIERDEREENK
non-current financial assets (3,030) —
Net proceeds for available-for-sale investments AEHEREMEBRIBFE 39,382 127,360
Payment for intangible assets BEREENK (1,473) (2,027)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired WETFLRR] MEAESRE: = (1,816)
Dividends received [REVE &S 1,189 1,082
Interest received BEYHE 9,161 19993
Prepayment for investment HERRER (245,700) =
Payment for investment in a joint venture REGECENMNR (150,386) i
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMARSFH (368,482) (281,203)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHBRERNER

for the

year ended 3| December 2015
BZNSFNA3NBILEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARB3IR)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Pt £ AR®T R ARETT
Financing activities MEED
Dividends paid EfIRE 31 (b)(ii) (192,485) (624,309)
Payment for repurchase of shares AR S NN — (32,145)
Proceeds from new bank loans and FIRRITERREMEE
other borrowings P13 3IA 1,295,516 1,220,000
Capital injection by non-controlling FERERETARIEE
interests to subsidiaries 80,000 75,905
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings ERFTERREMEES (454,450) (541,760)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid ENFSREMEEKRR (166,384) (124,767)
Net proceeds from the issue of convertible notes %17 A] B R 4R FT 15 SR IHF 58 736,104 P =
Net proceeds from the issue of senior notes BIIBERBRGEIIEFHE 623,642 3
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBHRE/(FTR)
financing activities ReFE 1,921,943 (27,076)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBEZEMHD EE (157,181) (2479,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIBNRERREEEY 23 1,819,029 4,292,994
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEERSEBNTE 27,075 5811
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RNAIBNAERESEEY 23 1,688,923 1,819,029

The notes on pages 98 to 230 form part of these financial statements.

FI98E 230 B HM EBRZZRBEHRRA

—#5 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange™). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note |(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3| December
2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the

"“Group") and the Group's interest in a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Contd)

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") rounded to
the nearest thousand. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting

policies set out below:

- available-for-sale investments (see note |(g));
- derivative financial instruments (see note | (h));
— investment properties (see note | (i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(©

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,

the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

. Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans:

Employee contributions

0 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle

) Annual Improvements to IFRSs 201 | — 2013 cycle

These amendments and new IFRSs do not have an impact on these financial

statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont d)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes |(p), (q) or (r) depending on the nature

of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont d)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in a joint venture (see note I (e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investment in a subsidiary is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(m)).

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(e)

Joint ventures (Contd)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes | (f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees' other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that

in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)

(e) Joint ventures (Contd) (e)

If an investment in joint venture becomes an investment in an associate
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment

continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in joint venture

are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note | (m)).

() Goodwill (f)
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree;

over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities

measured as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(

Goodwill (Contd)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in

profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or Groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

().

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (Cont d)

Investments in securities which are not held for trading are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
[(m)). Dividend income from equity securities are recognised in profit or

loss in accordance with the policies set out in note | (w)(Vi).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(m)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

U]

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note |(l)) to eamn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future

use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in note | (w)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note |(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs (see note | (y)).

Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided against

construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)
[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()  Property, plant and equipment (Contd)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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residual value as

a percentage

Buildings BF
Motor vehicles il

Office equipment N

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(k)

()

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and

impairment losses (see note | (m)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets' estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is amortised from the date it is

available for use and its estimated useful life is as follows:

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retumn
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
()  Leased assets (Contd)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

()

Leased assets (Contd)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment property (see note
(i), property under development for sales and completed property

held for sale (see note [(n)).

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and
it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit
or loss shall be recognised immediately. If the sale price is below fair
value, any profit or loss shall be recognised immediately except that,
if the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below
market price, it shall be deferred and amortised in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value
shall be deferred and amortised over the period for which the asset is

expected to be used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Leased assets (Contd)

(i) Assets leased out under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not

eventually be transferred.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial direct
costs are included in the statement of financial position as loans
and accounts receivable. Any unguaranteed residual value is also
recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference between the
sum of the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct costs,
the unguaranteed residual value and their present value is recognised
as unearned finance income. Uneamed finance income is recognised

over the period of the lease using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(m)  Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in equity securities below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

= For investments in joint ventures accounted for under the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements (see
note |(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note | (m)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with

note | (m)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) | EXGHBERE)
(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd) (m) BERMEE)
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables () REBFHREREMEK
(Contd) HERRE(E)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience

for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

= For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such

assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables
(Contd)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bill receivables included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bill receivables directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Interal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
= intangible assets;
= goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the Company's

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(m)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Cont d)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of

assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)  Impairment of assets (Contd)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Cont d)

= Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(m)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Cont d)

= Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RSHEB - UARKIIR)
EAGHBEE)
BEREE)

Rt EEpE(E)

BERERR

BRFBEBEE
REBETREEHE
ML RARE
bt AeRmpES
B BENRESR
TG RE -

REBENEDER
NBEFEIRER
REBRMEET N
BEREE- - FEE
REBREERED
MR AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#k

121



122

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Cont d)

(i)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see notes | (m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim
period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in
any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in other

comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

()

Inventories

Inventories in respect of property development activities are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and net realisable values are

determined as follows:

= Properties held for future development for sale and properties under

development for sale

The cost of properties held for future development for sale and
properties under development for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land use right, aggregate cost
of development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised (see note |(y)). Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

- Completed properties held for sale

In the case of completed properties developed by the Group, cost
is determined by apportionment of the total development costs for
that development project, attributable to the unsold properties. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(n)  Inventories (Contd)
- Other inventories

Other inventories mainly include low-value consumption goods
and goods for sale. They are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprise all costs of purchase. When inventories are
consumed or sold, the carrying amount of inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the consumption occurs or the
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as

an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

(0)  Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note I(m)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(P)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component are accounted

for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible notes
is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments (see note |(h)). Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note
are allocated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to the

allocation of proceeds.

The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the

derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance with
note |(h). The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability component

is calculated using the effective interest method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative and
liability components are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components is

recognised in profit or loss.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Trade and

other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand

deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly

liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are included in

properties for sale not yet recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(t)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i)

Equity settled share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the equity
settled share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share-based payment
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the equity settled share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(t)

Employee benefits (Contd)

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EXSHBEE)

(u)

Fiig® (&)

BRETERGIIMERIN - BRI
BEAERAEEEHIBEESGR
A& v aE B IER B FIE A LA 85T
DREERER - AIXKHERRE
ARG R ERORERBEE
B BERERNINE  BEZEFRE
BRORARAMEREZSEE (|
ZEE A E R KR R AR
EANERERA - WRHNEE
HRCE B 1 2 R A — HAR SR B
RIETRIA & 2 ) 75 T8 B 18 m) A m ok
EEEHEER - AT TEHREER
MEREERREXFEAEAD
AREEEREREENRENE
BERRABRNRE  AMfazE
By E R EARN %A AR
ERANEREH  ARHNAER
HEERxELHEAER - g
ZRERELHBEERE -

RELEHBEEREENOERD
IMER BRI BT B 69BN
E . I ESHIERBAENE
EXBENTSRR(ATRZ MM
TBREBEHO—HD)MELE
MEEEZE UREBERETA
AMEREEBE(NBERTZRE
A ABRASEEHIEERR - A
EAERARRTA AR E
B B EHRER - AIERR
RAJBEAEARRERIMZES) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#k

129



130

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(u)  Income tax (Contd)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note |(i), the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount
of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit

to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are

recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(u)

Income tax (Cont d)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends

either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(v)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(v)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (Cont @)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Cont'd)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note | (v)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(w)  Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue arising from sale of properties is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyers. The Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the construction of relevant
properties have been completed and the properties have been

delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of properties excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition are included in the statement of financial position

as receipts in advance under trade and other payables.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(w)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(i)

(iv)

)

(v

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management service,
advertising service and other ancillary services are recognised when

such services are provided to customers.

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers'
premises which is taken to be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the net
investment of the finance lease or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the net investment of the finance lease.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder'’s right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(w)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

(vii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

(viij)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of assets are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently deducted from the carrying
amount of assets and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss when the inventories are sold or transferred to investment
properties upon meeting the relevant conditions, if any, attaching to

them.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Contd)

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to

profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

| SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(z)  Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i The entity and the Group are members of the same Grou
Y p P
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

i ne entity is a joint venture or joint venture of the other enti
O tity is a joint vent joint vent f the other entity
(or a joint venture or joint venture of a member of a Group of

which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont )

(z)  Related parties (Contd)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies: (Contd)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is a joint venture of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(viiy A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(aa)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(@)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has

made the following accounting judgement:

Classification between inventories, owner-occupied properties and

investment properties

The Group develops property projects with an initial intention to be held
for sale and retains a portion of properties held for own use. Judgement is
made by management in determining whether a property is designated as a
property held for sale, owner-occupied property. The Group considers its
intention for holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. During the course of development, the related properties
under development are accounted for as () properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale after their
completion; (2) owner-occupied properties included in properties, plant and
equipment if the properties are intended for own use; and (3) investment
properties under development if the properties are intended to be held to

eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes |1, 30 and 32 contain information about the assumptions and their

risk factors relating to valuation of investment property, fair value of share

options granted and financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

Inventories

As explained in note I(n), the Group's land held for future
development, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group's recent experience and the
nature of the subject property, the Group makes estimates of the
selling price, the costs of completion in case for properties under

development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, provision for completed properties held for sale, properties
held for future development and under development for sale may be
resulted. Such provision requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which

such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Given the volatility of the PRC property market and the distinctive
nature of individual properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs
and revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the provision would

affect profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Conta)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the customers to make the
required payments. The Group bases the estimates on the aging of
the trade and other receivable balance, customer creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the
customers were to deteriorate, actual provisions would be higher

than estimated.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised and measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a significant level of judgement
exercised by the Directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgement would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets

to be recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)

(iv)  Provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“PRC LAT")

)

As explained in note 6(a), the Group has estimated, made and
included in tax provision for PRC LAT according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual PRC
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon completion of the property development projects and the
tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision
for PRC LAT is calculated. Significant judgement is required in
determining the level of provision, as the calculation of which depends
on the ultimate tax determination. Given the uncertainties of the
calculation basis of PRC LAT as interpreted by the local tax bureau,
the actual outcomes may be higher or lower than those estimated
at the end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease in the
actual outcomes/estimates will impact the income tax provision in the

period in which such determination is made.

Recognition of construction costs on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during construction stage and will be transferred to
profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs and other costs
relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the
Group based on management's best estimates. Any variations on
the development costs upon final settlement will impact cost of sales

included in profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Cont'd) 2 EBIHERMGEHE)
(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d) b) HATEEERENRER (£)
(vi)  Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties (vi) EBEEREWEZELHE

The Group has leased out certain of the completed properties to
third parties whereby the directors consider that such arrangement is
not temporary. In the circumstance, the Group has decided to treat
those properties as investment properties (and reclassifying them
from completed properties held for sale to investment properties)
because it is the Group's intention to hold these properties in long-

term for rental income and/or capital appreciation.

Under IAS 12 Deferred tax is required to be measured with
reference to the tax consequences that would follow the manner
in which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the
assets in question. In this regard, IAS |2 has a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property carried at fair value
under IAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered through sale.
This presumption is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the
investment property in question is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

(b)  Sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

(vi)  Determining the deferred taxation on investment properties
(Contd)

In this connection, the Group has reviewed its investment property
portfolio on a regular basis and has concluded that as at 3| December
2015, the Group has determined that each of these properties
are held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time and consequently the presumption in IAS 12 is
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group has continued to
measure the deferred tax relating to these other properties using the
tax rate that would apply as a result of recovering their value through

use.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are development, sales and operation of

commercial trade and logistics centres and residential properties in the PRC.

Revenue represents income from sales of properties, property management
services income and rental income net of business tax and other sales related taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd) 3

The amounts of each significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during

the year are as follows:

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BSEERI - BUARKIIR)
Wi R o E®RE (A
FRERBETEROBREANEE
BIREBIT -

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Sales of properties MEHE 3,102,829 3341612
Rental income RN 37,743 6,734
Property management services MEEERS 18,409 11,339
Others Hith 7,370 504

3,166,351 3,360,189

The Group's customer base is diversified and none of the customers of the Group

with whom transactions has exceeded 0% of the Group's revenue.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements, are identified from the financial data and
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations. No segment
information is presented in respect of the Group's operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in one segment in the PRC. The Group does not operate in

any other geographical or business segment during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

4  OTHER INCOME 4 HttlA
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARBFT
Dividend income REHA 3,567 3,243
Government grants(i) B8 () 67,082 =
Net gain on disposal of HERfHERE W FHE
available-for-sale investments 2,382 44,360
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BE LR
plant and equipment Wzt (B18) 358 30 (708)
Others Hit 5333 2412
78,394 49,307
(i) During the year, the Group transferred certain completed properties held for sale to (i) FR - ARERETHRER RTINS

investment properties (note | 1). The related government grants of RMB 59,701,000
(2014: RMB Nil) previously recorded as deferred income (note 27) were recognised

in profit or loss as other income during the year.
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(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BR Bt A A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB A FBE MG /(BT A) T & EE
7
Finance income and finance costs () HMEBRARBERAR
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFTT
Finance income B A
Interest income FBUWA 9,161) (19.993)
Finance costs MEH A
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TEF R M EENF S 140,176 124,767
Interest on convertible notes (note 26) A EREEA (P 5T 26) 108,638 T
Interest on senior notes (note 28) BEZEN S (5 28) 3,825 ==
Less: interest expense capitalised W BAMERATER
into properties under development * WERF B (104,361) (123,565)
148,278 1,202
Net foreign exchange loss X EE R 2,271 7,638
150,549 8,840
g The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 5.15% - * BAEREERARRRS.15%F

10.23% per annum (2014: 6.40% - 10.23%).

10.23%HEELLE [ (2014
1 640%E1023%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Contd) 5 BRBAEFEE)
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIMZK:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Contributions to defined contribution ER M FURIAGTE
retirement plans 16,827 14,700
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥e - IERHEMEF 296,194 279,451
Equity settled share-based DA B DARR D A AR
payments (note 30) B R (PR EE 30) (336) 2010
312,685 296,161
()  Other items: (c) HAtER :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 31,295 25,742
Auditor’s remuneration 72 Gl e 3,500 2,900
Operating lease charges RERESH 56,631 25,060
Rentals receivable from investment properties #% & #) 3 & 18 & 8,067 i
Cost of properties sold (i) EEMERR () 1,467,992 1,943,073
0) Cost of properties sold is after netting off benefits from government (i) BEW0ISFILAIBILEFE

B W3R AR S0 BR BUR 5 B)
AR¥303,303,0007T 475 H
(2014%F - AR¥321,505,000
L) o

grants of RMB303,303,000 for the year ended 3| December 2015 (2014:
RMB321,505,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

@

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

6

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHRR - HUARKIIT)
BHHRBRANAREH

() RHHEBERANBIRE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Current tax ENEAR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax B (R R PTEHR
(“PRC CIT") (i) (A B b PREHE 1 )(il) 289,458 225990
PRC LAT (iv) B+ IR E T (v) 344,520 184,630
PRC dividend withholding tax (v) o Bl iR S TR IR (v) — 63,038
633,978 473,658
Deferred tax EEBIE
Origination and reversal of M ERNEER
temporary differences (note 16(b)) BB (PEE 16(b)) (7,706) (142,697)
626,272 330,961

(i

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the

Group is not subject to any income tax in this jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group did
not eam any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year

(2014: Nil).

() RERSHESHIRER:
AEERZAEERBES
TR

(i BARAEEFALERRE
] 7B 8 40 B 75 FI 15 B B 1K
A BB E BRI E G
REEQ0I4F T o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#k

151



152

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
(@) = [ERSHChIF

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to statutory tax rate of 25%

on their assessable profits.

In July 2013, Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Logistics Park
Development Co,, Ltd. (“Ganzhou Trade Centre") was approved to
enjoy a preferential PRC CIT rate of 15% for the years from 2012 to

2020 according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

In December 2015, Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and Trade Centre
Development Co, Ltd. (“Wuzhou Trade Centre") was also approved
to enjoy a preferential PRC CIT rate of 5% for the years from 2015

t0 2020 according to a tax notice issued by the local tax bureau.

The preferential tax treatment was based on various tax rules and
regulations in relation to PRC Government's strategy in encouraging
investment and development of wholesale trading markets in certain

regions in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Conta)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:
(Contd)
(iv)  PRCLAT

PRC LAT which is levied on properties developed for sale by the
Group in the PRC, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation value, which under the applicable regulations is
calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all qualified property development expenditures. Deferred
tax assets arising from PRC LAT accrued are calculated based on the

applicable income tax rates when they are expected to be cleared.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group were subject to PRC
LAT which were calculated based on 3% to 6% of their revenue in
accordance with the authorised tax valuation method approved by

respective local tax bureau.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the authorised
tax valuation method is one of the allowable taxation methods in
the PRC and the respective local tax bureaus are the competent
tax authorities to approve the authorised tax valuation method in
charging PRC LAT to the respective PRC subsidiaries of the Group,
and the risk of being challenged by the State Administration of

Taxation or any tax bureau of higher authority is remote.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

6 AHERRANHREHE)

() ABHESRANBEE: (£)

)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (Contd)

6

AOHRERANARER(E)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: @) RHBRRANHEE: (&)

(Contd)

(v)  PRC dividend withholding tax (v)  HEREEMH
Withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect of EANRAGREPREFAR]
dividend distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries earned FR2008F | A1 H 2 &I
after | January 2008 at 5%. 69 A 9 I B AR B 448 5%

HOTRHOML
(b)  Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FBHERBRANETENGHT
rates: BHEE:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETFT
Profit before taxation B 25 A 1 1,224,002 837,426
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RAEBRZKERARMNER
calculated at the rates applicable to profits & ERERTLAT
in the countries concerned ML ERIE 331,755 215,113

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAHBAXNRETE 6,507 8,383

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARBRANT B E (892) (895)

Tax effect of unused tax losses AERRBARBEESR

not recognised HEBTE 50,509 26,515

Utilisation of previously unrecognised PR LAIAREHER

tax losses HHIEEE (3,288) (77)

PRC LAT (note 6(a)(iv)) R+ 3 R (E B (P EE 6(2) (iv)) 344,520 184,630

Tax effect on PRC LAT B TR ER NGRS (77,764) (29.351)

Tax concessions (note 6(a)(iii)) BB (3T 6(a)(il) (25,075) (73,357)

Total income tax FIEmam 626,272 330,961
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EEHM
BERHMREEE D FEDIE383(1) &
RAR(RBESENGEN)ROIF 2R

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7

Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

BT -

2015
Equity
settled
Salaries Retirement share-based
allowances and scheme payments
benefitsinkind  contributions WEREE
Directors' fee &% 28 ik MR A Total
EZHE  RENEN RS EROGR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR ARMTR
Executive directors: BTEE:
Wang Jianli (a) FRH (a) - 4016 - = 4016
Wang Dewen (b) FEX(b) = 2,836 65 = 2901
Huang Dehong BEL = 2,506 4 38 2592
Non-executive director: FHTES
Yuan Bing RE 240 - - - 240
Wang Wei (¢) THE (0 = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES
Zhao Lihua (d) B E (d) 240 - — — 240
Wiang Lianzhou FEM 240 = = 30 270
Lam Chi Yuen Nelson WEE 240 = = 30 270
960 9,358 13 98 10,529
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

7  DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 7 EEHFME)
2014
Equity
settled
Salaries Retirement share-based
allowances and scheme payments
benefitsinkind  contributions ~ WEREE
Directors fee & « 28 BRI AR (R A Total
gz LEDEN AR EROEK 5t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETRE ARMTT ARETT AR%TR ARET:R

Executive directors: BITES:

Wang Jianli (2) FREM (a) | 647 = = = 1,647

Huang Dehong BER 1,500 1,183 % 89 27%

Wong Choihing (e) THHE(E) 3333 1,802 = (267) 4868

Non-executive director: FHTES:

Yuan Bing RE 24) = = - 214)

Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES:

Zhao Lihua (d) I E (d) 25 = - = 25

Wang Lianzhou TEN 12 = = 86 328

Lam Chi Yuen Nelson HEE " - 3 86 328

Yang Xianzu (f) BER () 217 = » (67) 150
7448 2,985 24 (73) 10384

(@)  Appointed on 25 August 2014. () RNI4F8ALBREEE -

(b)  Appointed on 26 January 2015. (b)  RISFIAWBEEE -

() Appointed on 23 January 2015. (0  RWISFIABREZRE -

(d)  Appointed on 23 November 2014. (d)  R2014F 11 A23BEZE -

(e)  Resigned on 25 August 2014. (e)  M20I14F8A25HEHE ©

) Resigned on 23 November 2014. ® 20145 |1 A23 B EHE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 BEHAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2014: two) are directors TEERFATHE=ZA(014F - @
and one of them was appointed on 26 January 2015. The emoluments of these LIREE HP—REZER20I15F | A
directors, excluding the emoluments of the newly appointed director before his WHEERE - ZFESNHM(TBEN
appointment of RMB264,000 (2014: Nil), are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of FEZRZERMNEMARE 2640007
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2014: three) individuals are as follows: (2014%F : B))RERME7 - EftiR A

(20145 : =) ATHFBA T

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Retirement scheme contributions BIRGTEIER 45 155
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind o ZMREMEWEF 6,270 8419
Equity settled share-based payments (note 30) DA B AR D AT 38 (113)
B9 FR (B &E 30)
6,353 8,461
The emoluments of the two (2014: three) individuals with the highest emoluments MA14F : =R ) &R A TH M
are within the following bands: NEATEE -
2015 2014
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
HK$2,500,00 [ -HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T ZE 3,000,000 7% 7T — |
HK$3,000,00 [-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T2 3,500,000 7 7T - —
HK$3,500,00 [ -HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T = 4,000,000 % 7T | 2
HK$4,000,00 [ -HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T E 4,500,000 7 7T |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)  Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB556,875,000 (2014:
RMB512,053,000) and the weighted average of 4,014,844,000 ordinary
shares (2014: 4,020,798,000 ordinary shares), calculated as follows:

9

BREF
@ BREXER

BREXABMNRARAREERE
FE {5 B A R #556,8750007C
(2014% : AR #512,053,0007% )
N F AR ANAE T 39814,014,844,000
AR (20144 : 4,020,798,0000% ) &t
B ERET

Weighted average number of ordinary shares TR ETEH
2015 2014
’000 ‘000
Tk THx
Issued ordinary shares at | January RIAIBEETHERR 4,014,844 4,029,950
Effect of shares repurchased (note 31(c)) ERRRGN T 2E(HE31(0) = (9,152)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7 12 A 31 B #)Z AR INHE F19 2
at 31 December 4,014,844 4,020,798

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

9  EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd) 9 BRERNE)
Diluted earnings per share b) BREFERR

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB556,875,000
(2014: RMB512,053,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 4,017,138,000 shares (2014: 4,060,664,000 shares), calculated as

BREFRNRARAREERE
FE 15 B A R #556,8750007C
(2014% : AR #512,053,0007% )

L@ R e 9%04,017,138,000

follows: A& (2014 : 4060,664,000% ) &
8 ®BRIOT
() Weighted average number of ordinary share (diluted) () BERINETEE(BE)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTR
Weighted average number of ordinary 1 12 A 31 B #Z @A IniE F19 2
shares at 3| December 4,014,844 4,020,798
Fffect of deemed issue of shares under 1RIBZRA AIH) & IR AR & R Al
the Company's Pre-IPO Share Option &R 28I AT H (B
Scheme for nil consideration RIEBITRID T E 2294 39,866
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B#)E @R METHE(EE)
shares at 31 December (diluted) 4,017,138 4,060,664
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2015, the effect of conversion of (i) BE0I5F12A3IHLF
convertible notes was anti-dilutive. B ERnEREENEE

BoREEIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 9% BERZE
Motor Office
Buildings vehicles equipment Total
B "E WARE gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AR¥Tr AR®Tn AR®Txn
Cost: A
At | January 2014 K204 1 A1 B 9,559 56988 23252 89,799
Additions NE 210 45267 11,998 57475
Acquisitions through business combination B3B3 & §f if i T 48] 51 532
Disposals & = (1,489) (95) (1,584)
At 31 December 2014 and MR2014F12A31BK
| January 2015 20151 A | B 9,769 101,247 35,206 146,222
Additions NE S 17276 5935 23211
Transferred from inventories BEOFE BYNED i —~ 32,739
Disposals HE — (6,790) (190) (6,980)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F 12 A31 B 42,508 [11,733 40951 195,192
Accumulated depreciation: ZItHE:
At | January 2014 R2014%F A1 B 454 20,301 8013 28,768
Charge for the year FRXH 454 16,860 8,097 25411
Written back on disposals & E i o] . (603) (58) (661)
At 31 December 2014 and MN20I14F12A31BR
| January 2015 20151 A 1B 908 36,558 16,052 53518
Charge for the year FRXH 511 20,737 9519 30,767
Written back on disposals & K el — (1,353) 7N (1,424)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 31 H 1419 55942 25,500 82,861
Net book value: SREFE .
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 H 41,089 55,791 15451 112,331
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31 H 8,861 64,689 19,154 92,704

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land of properties is as follows:

10

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

M BERREE)

BEHETHNNERAEINMT :

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

In the PRC, held under long leases (over 50 years) EHBREREABEL(S0FU L) FE 41,089 8,86l
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES I BRENE
(@  Reconciliation of carrying amount RHEYE
2015
RMB’000
AR®TR
At | January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 120141 A1H  2014F 12831 A K%
| January 2015 201551 A 1A —
Transferred from inventories ERFE 482,357
Fair value adjustments NN 296,543
At 31 December 2015 720155 12H31 B 778,900
Representing B
Valuation e 778,900
Book value BREE
At 31 December 2015 2015128318 778,900

At 31 December 2014

2014512831 H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(@)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (Cont d)

During the year ended 3| December 2015, the Group transferred certain
completed properties held for sale to investment properties since there
was an actual change in use from sale to earning rental income purpose,
which were evidenced by commencement of operating lease as stipulated
in the lease agreements entered into by the Group. A fair value gain of
RMB277,643,000 (2014: RMB Nil) in respect of investment properties, and
the corresponding deferred tax of RMB58,873,000 (2014: RMB Nil), upon
the transfer had been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for the year.

During the year an additional gain in fair value of RMB 18,900,000 (2014:
RMB Nil) in respect of investment properties, and the corresponding
deferred tax of RMB4,215,000 (2014: RMB Nil), have been recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T

RENRE)

(2)

REEHRE)

BE2W0ISF12A3IBLEEE A
REAKETHEERZRBLE
ME BETHREXTINELE
BRLELARRESKA - &
ARERERENEERZEREY
¥ AREREREEFNAOHE
RRARRENERALDAER
= AR 277,643,000 75 (2014 F
ARBZL)REEEHBEBARY
58,8730007(2014F : AREZ
TT) °

FRADAEFERNAHBER
AR EMERRENDABR
% A R #18,900,00075(2014 4 :
ARBEEL) REEEREARE
42150007C(2014F : AR¥E T
L) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(b)

Fair value measurement of properties
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS |3, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs

used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations:  Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level I, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

REME(E)
(b) YMEALEFTE
AREER

TREFINHEDRALELRA
AAENAKENXAAE - LEE
BREMBEREENE 3ROAET
EMREDBR=ERAERS -
RAEFELEUTMEEEME
FNBARB ABREREEKR
maBREERR -

FRMhEE: ERAFE-RHBE
AENDAE B
RATERHALE
mBH AR EEX
BEAEHBNR

REBRARERA
TABENEERH
& TABRAE
DIEBEEAREHS
BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

MENTS

Il INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) I REWXE)
(b)  Fair value measurement of properties (Contd) (b) YMELAETEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Contd) AREER(E)
Level 3 valuations:  Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs FRHE: ERTIBRNE
EUBHENRA
El

Fair value as at

Fair value
measurement as
at 3|1 December

2015

categorised

3| December into level 3
2015 20155
R2015 5 12A31H
12B31 B PERE=R
NARE NAREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T R
Recurring fair value measurement REMDAETE
— Investment properties —REME 778,900 778,900

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers

hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period

All of the Group's investment properties

between levels of fair value

in which they occur.

carried at fair value were

revalued as at 3| December 2015. The valuations were carried out by an

independent firm of surveyors, Savills, who have among their staff Fellows of

the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location

and category of property being valued. The Group's property manager and

the senior management have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation

assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each

interim and annual reporting date.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZfEE

BERBRATE

AEENHRRNBEERENERS
HRABRROAESERZANE

% o

R20I15F 128318 A&EfE
MRAREIRZREME BB LA
BRMTE—ATEHAH(EETA
EEBNEMESE 5%@%2%“
1 BEMEENERELE R
BREAEHER LR ET
o AEEMELBERERER r=
EREFEBRFERS B BETHE
B ERAIEMTREREERER
fhEL



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) I REWXE)
(b)  Fair value measurement of properties (Cont d) (b) YEARBHEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Contd) AREER(E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BAFE=FAREFEZER
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
H1ER % TABRENEARE HE
Investment properties Income capitalisation Yield 5.0%-5.5%
REYMZE method Market monthly rental rate 34.1-102.6
W BERE (RMB/sq.m.)
L6 5.0%—5.5%
m5EAME 34.1-102.6
(AREBT/F75K)

RIBRENEODAE-REAR
HENEETE  WRIEDEDER
BBRMEE CEMELE - Bk
ARBEEGUARTER - ME
MMt R BB HER 5 kb E
MAMERREE 2 BRKHEM
B - BESMRANTERE)
REZDENIRBHER LM
AL BN EEBRRNMEFESE

MMEE °

The fair value of completed investment properties is generally derived using
the income capitalisation method. This valuation method is based on the
capitalisation of the income and reversionary potential income by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of sale
transactions and valuers interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings within the subject properties and the estimated

rental incremental observed in other comparable properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

I INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd)

(b)

Fair value measurement of properties (Contd)
Fair value hierarchy (Contd)

The fair value of commercial properties under development is generally
derived using the combination of direct comparison method by making
reference to the comparable market transactions as available in the market
and the income capitalisation method by capitalising market rents derived
from the properties. This valuation method is essentially a means of valuing
the land and properties under development by reference to its development
potential by deducting development costs together with developer's profit
and risk from the estimated capital value of the proposed development

assuming completed as at the date of valuation.

Certain bank loans granted to the Group were jointly secured by investment
properties with a book value of RMB179,500,000 (31 December 2014: RMB
Nil) (note 25(c)).

The Group's investment properties are held on leases of between 3 to
I5 years in the PRC. Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable combined with others is stated in

note 33(c).

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T

RENE(Z)
(b) YMELAETEE)

AREER(E)

EEBRMENAAE-REBE
AEM2RMS LRGN L&D
SRANERLBERBMEES
W EREBREANKEENR
R BEHE - WHETEEEAMN
SELMRAERDEOERE N
HEETHRENTE  RERER
BA (RRENGERZR NG
BAETMRBERKAALFAER
ORI R R o

AREEENETRIERUEK
A AR 179,500,000 70(2014 F
12A318 : AREZT)NREN
EVEEA (M 25() °

AEBRPHENREDERN T3
EISFNEMESR - T HEE
EHENBRREESRBEAL
FRIA— B R 5 33(c) 51 A% FE MR
15 o



INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

12 EREE

Softwares
Bt
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Cost: B
At | January 2014 R20141 A1 H 1,472
Additions NE 2,040
At 31 December 2014 and | January 2015 R2014F 12431 BR20I55 1A 1R 3512
Additions NE 1,473
At 31 December 2015 R20I15F 124318 4985
Accumulated amortisation: g 5o
At | January 2014 2014561 A1 H 143
Charge for the year FRAX M 33|
At 31 December 2014 and | January 2015 R2014E 12 A31BR20I15% 1 A1 H 474
Charge for the year FRXH 528
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 128318 1,002
Net book value: RREHE
At 3| December 2015 R20I15F 124318 3,983
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 124318 3,038
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

13 GOODWILL 13 #E
RMB’000
AR®T R
Cost: B
At | January 2014 201451 A1 H 2252
Addition from acquisition of a subsidiary W —FKF LR mE M 1,379
At 3| December 2014, R2014€12A318 -
| January 2015 and 31 December 2015 20151 A1BR20I5F12A31 8 3,63
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 R20I15F 12 A31BR2014F12A31H 3,631

The Group carried out impairment testing of the goodwill at the end of each
reporting period. In assessing the impairment of goodwill, the recoverable amount
of the cash generating units (“CGU") is determined. The CGU related to the
goodwill comprises the Company's knowledge and expertise of the management
and existing customers. The directors determined that no impairment of goodwill is

necessary as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T

AEERERSHRYBHBETRER
HoETGHBREN 2BTRE
EfBN(ReEEEM])MTKRE
cH-ERNEABNREELENOE
ARAEAERRREEPHNAZRE
R-EERB RWISFER14F 12
A3 BHAHEBELANE -



INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B SRR - HUAREFIT)
14 REELENER
2015 2014

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE 150,386 —

Management considers that the joint venture of the Group will not have significant ERERRAREGECEHARE R

impact to financial position and performance of the Group.

BRARFELEEARE -

Details of the Group's interest in the joint venture, which are accounted for using AEERGERENER(REREZRE

the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

G BRI FEDT -

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars FRE LBl
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by a Principal
Name AL R ERTKRE 8- the Company subsidiary activities
L BX0Y  ARRARE BERED KRR T RAME FERR
Hydoo Best Group Co, Ltd Thailand Baht 3643% g 36.43% Property
2,196,003,600 development
Hydoo Best Group Co,, Ltd RE  2,196,003,600 36.43% = 36.43% FHERE
73
Hydoo Best Group Co., Ltd (“Hydoo Best") is mainly engaged in the property Hydoo Best Group Co., Ltd([Hydoo
development and operation. The Group and the other shareholder of Hydoo Best Best T ENERHMERE RES - K&
contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net K Hydoo Best LR RIS #) LT

assets of the arrangement based on the composition of governing bodies.

DEWBERHOZHE  YEEERT
ERFIMAKES LR FEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)
I5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@)  Other non-current financial assets

15 HitemEE
) HttERBEMEE
2015 2014

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT

Available-for-sale unlisted equity securities At & 3 F IR AR 5

111,187 25779

(b)  Available-for-sale investments

(b) THHBERE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT

Wealth management products B Em

— 37,000

At 31 December 2014, the available-for-sale investments represented
short-term unlisted wealth management products issued by banks in the
PRC which are either redeemable on demand or with maturities within 12

months.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T

R2014F 128318 AItHER
BT EAMRTETHRER
OISR EANE BN EHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

@

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

AHMBRR KA FEH

() BHRBRIRAOEABIRE

represents:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Prepaid tax BAAHE
PRC CIT R EMEH 34 10,704
PRC LAT 1R E R 111,127 178,287
111,161 188,99 |
Current tax liabilities: AEFEEE
PRC CIT Bl ERTIEH 553,933 583,545
PRC dividend withholding tax B AR S TR 33,038 33038
PRC LAT e E R 519,339 437,802
1,106,310 1,054,385
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

16  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF l6  AHMERRRANHEH(E)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () EERETLHELEERERE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the RE G BN & R AR E B IR
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during the BE/ (BB MAERDD RERL
year are as follows: BT :
Deferred tax arising from: BEHEAU T EEEL -
Fair value Withholding
adjustment tax on
for distributable
investment Advertising Deferred  Provision for  profits of PRC
properties  Tax losses costs income PRCLAT  subsidiaries Total
PETAT
REMRN TELE  THKER

MrERR  HERA RER  BEUA REHBR BB Eh
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
AR®TR AR¥TR ARMTR AREBTn ARETR ARRTn ARETR

At | January 2014 R2014F 1 A18 > 10,465 4633 198815 = (63038) 150875
Credited/(charged) to the REFERRTA/
consolidated statement of (ks ) (B2 6 (a))

profit or loss (noteb(a)) - 1,063 492 (4.947) 68,622 63038 142,697
At 31 December 2014 R014E124318 i 21528 9,554 193868 68622 — 293572
At | January 2015 RISEIA IR - 21,528 9,554 193,868 68,622 - 293,572

Credited(charged) tothe WA HHBERIA/
consolidated statement of (B ) (Bt 6 @)
profit or loss (note6(a)) (63,088) 6l (5342) 50312 25,763 - 7,706

At 31 December 2015 B0I5E 12831 B 3088 21589 4210 44180 94,385 —30m

172 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED #/EEKRIZR AR A 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Cont d)

16

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHRR - HUARKIIT)
BHMBRRRANAEH(E)

b) CRIABEHAEELEERRAMR:
(&)

Representing: -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Deferred tax assets B IEEE 316,049 293,572
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEEE (14,771) =
301,278 293,572

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(u), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of certain subsidiaries of RMB330,671,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB141,785,000). The directors consider it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the

relevant tax jurisdiction and entities.

() FEREEHEEE

BB WA 1 (u) TS A) & BB
R2015F 128318 AEEL X
RETFRRAINRATEBEA
R#330671,0007C(20145 : AR
# 141,785,000 70 ) R IE LR IBE
B EFRRTAARERBANS
AFERRERESTANKES
BEARIRRERBFE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

16

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

l6e AHBBRRRANAEHRE)

FINANCIAL POSITION (Contd)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () ABRELEHEEE
The unrecognised tax losses will expire by the end of the following years, if WAREER - AEROTIEEGES
unused: PRUAT 17 RIS -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
2017 20175 80 80
2018 20184 35,644 35,644
2019 2019 F 92,909 106,061
2020 20205 202,038 —
Total st 330,671 141,785
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) AEREBLHAAE

As set out in note 6(a)(v), withholding tax is levied on Hong Kong companies
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profit of PRC subsidiaries.
Since the Group could control the quantum and timing of distribution of
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC, deferred tax liabilities are only
provided to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to RMB,922,491,000 (2014:
RMBI,502,362,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB96,125,000 (2014:
RMB75,118,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T

I 6(a)(v) FIEL » MEB AT
ENPEFRRENELNREE
WIEMH - ARAKEREFIRE
[ o B - B IR % ) O R e By
[ BAREEEZSFERAR
NAE R RFRENER Tt iR
TEHBRE -

R2I5SE12A318 FARX
APEFMENEREZEAARE
1,922,491,00070(2014 5 : AR
502,362,000 7T ) © A& BRFH R
D RZERE BRI IERER
ERETIEEEARE 961250007
(20144 : AR¥75,1180007T) '
BAAREEZEHZEFARNRKRE
HEBEEEMRIENARRR
RIEFE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

At 31 December 2015, the prepayment for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment represents the prepaid proceeds for an office building at the
consideration of RMB 368,535,000 (2014: RMB 368,535,000).

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

17

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

WIENE  BERRBENAEGRER

RISENA3IB: W B W %
BERFHEHNBEANREEUAAR
3685350007C(2014F: A R ¥
368,535,000 T) M BREE R FEMAER
S o

R¥AANER
TREFJIHAKERR EEXARE
BEAFENIETARMNFR Kok
HERHE DARBARDNER AL
il

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars iy 12

Place of of issued Group's

incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company MR LR BRTR A&EE  the Company  asubsidiary activities
NAER EXE CARRARE BRER AQFIRR  FLARE TEXH
Hongkong Hydoo Group Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% ar Investment
Investment Company Limited BE 100,000 &7 management
BRRBEEREBRAR REEE
Hongkong Hydoo Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% = Investment
BAREERERAR BA 100,000/ 7T management
REEE
Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou) The PRC USD32,050,000 100% == 100% Property
Company Limited H 32,050,000 7T development

("Hydoo Estate (Ganzhou)")
REEX (BM) BRRA
([REEx (@) 1)

and investment
holding
BHERER
REER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

I8 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 18 RFDRNERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
Particulars Pt f)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company ALK BRTR KK@  the Company  asubsidiary activities

AL gX% CHRRARE ERERE  FAQFARR  FLAME TEEH

Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade The PRC RMB60,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Centre Development Company Limited mE AR 60,0000007T development
(“Ningxiang Trade Centre") FHERE
BERRRIYEHREREERAR
(FEg¥nm )

Jining Hydoo Logistics Centre The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% e 100% Property
Development Company Limited RE ARK2000000007T development
("fining Logistics Centre”) iR
BERENANHEERAR"

(MEEmRA))

Mianyang West Modern Trade The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% i 100% Property
Centre Development Company Limited mE ARK2000000007T development
(“Mianyang Trade Centre") FHERE
BHEREBARDRNER

BRRA ([RERM])

Guangxi Yulin Modem Trade The PRC RMB220,000,000 100% ") 100% Property
Centre Development Company Limited RE ARK2200000007T development
("Yulin Trade Centre") FHERE
EAEMACDRAAEERAG"

(TEMRA L)

Ningxiang Hydoo Guangcai Trade Centre The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Property Services Company Limited H AR 3,0000007T management
ERREAVEDES services

NERBERAE" ERE

Jining Hydoo Modern Logistics The PRC USD99,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Company Limited t 99,000,000 7T management
BEERERRORERAA services

NEERRE
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars FrELef)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company ALK BRTR KE@  the Company  asubsidiary activities

AL EX% CHRRARE BERER  AQFARR  FLAME TEEH

Shenzhen Hydoo Investment The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% N 100% Investment
Management Company Limited mE AR%30,0000007T management
APREREERARDA" RAEE

Yulin Hydoo Property Management The PRC RMBI,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Services Co, Ltd. i AR 10000007 management
FHRENEEEREER LR services

NEEBRYE

Ganzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB800,000,000 100% 3 100% Property
Trade Logistics Park Development Co, Ltd. mE AR 800,0000007T development
(‘Ganzhou Trade Centre”) %
BNRERENREREERAR"

(r&MEEYRE])

Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% — 100% Property
Trade Centre Development Co, Ltd. mE AR 3000000007 development
("Wuzhou Trade Centre”) i f %
BMRERENRAREERAR"

(MEMEEDR])

Mianyang Hydoo Property Services The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Company Limited H AR 1,000,0007T development
wERENERGERAR services

FHERERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

8 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars Pt f)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company ALK BRTR KK@  the Company  asubsidiary activities

AL gX% CHRRARE ERERE  FAQFARR  FLAME TEEH

Heze Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited mE ARK300,0000007T development
("Heze Trade Centre") FHERE
SERERENRAERAAE"

(BrEmEmRN)

Jining Hydoo Commercial Operation and The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Management Company Limited mE  ARE20000007T development
BEERERZELERARAR services

EHER SRS

Xingning Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB200,000,000 80% = 80% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR2000000007T development
(“Xingxing Trade Centre”) FiERE
REREREDRAERAA

(TREFEWRH])

Ganzhou Hydoo Property The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Services Company Limited i AR 3,0000007T management
FNBREMERBERAA services

NEEBRYK

Yantai Hydoo Intemational Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited RE AR 300,0000007T development
("Yantai Trade Centre”) EiERE

EeREERRENERAR"
(MEamamnml)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 18 RFRANERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
Particulars P Ll
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company ALK BRTR KE@  the Company  asubsidiary activities

AL EX% CHRRARE BERER  AQFARR  FLAME TEEH

Lanzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% N 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited B AR¥300000,0007 development
("Lanzhou Trade Centre”) AR
BNBRERENERAR"

(T wpEEs)

Ganzhou Hydoo Commerecial and The PRC USD50,000,000 100% I 100% Property
Operation Management Company Limited H 50,000,000 7T management
BNREEXEEERERAR services

NEERRE

Ganzhou Jiuzhi Property Management The PRC RMB5,200,000 51% = 51% Property
Services Company Limited H AR 5,200,0007T management
ENTARNEERERRA" services

NEERRG

Yantai Hydoo Commercial Trade The PRC USD6,000,000 100% = 100% Trading of
Company Limited i 6,000,000 7T building-
EaRERERRAR related materials

=4l
HHNES

Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo The PRC Nil 100% = 100% Investment
Business Management Company Limited i £ management
AMAERERXERARAA REEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

I8 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 18 RFDRNERE)
Proportion of ownership interest
Particulars Pt f)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ALK BRTR KK@  the Company  asubsidiary activities
AL gX% CHRRARE ERERE  FAQFARR  FLAME TEEH
Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Finance The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Investment
Holding Company Limited H z management
AR R EEBIERBR AT RAEE
Qingdao Hydoo Investment The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% . 100% Investment
Company Limited ME AR 500,0000007T management
BEREREBRAR" REEE
Huaiyuan Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 60% - 60% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited HE AR 3000000007 development
BERERERARLDA BHERE
Jiamusi Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Centre Company Limited mE AR%3000000007 development
EAFREEENRBARAR FHEME
Jinan Dezhong Investment Company Limited The PRC RMB 0,000,000 60% = 60% Investment
ERERREGRAR" HmE AR 100000007 management
REEE
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B2 AEEIN - IUAREFITR)
18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars P Ll

Place of of issued Group’s

incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ALK BRTR KE@  the Company  asubsidiary activities
AL EX% CHRRARE BERER  AQFARR  FLAME TEEH
Jiangxi Haode Shangging The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% - 100% Advertising
Advertisement Company Limited H AR2,000,0007T services
IRSEEEREERAR BER%
Shenzhen Hydoo International The PRC RMB300,000,000 100% = 100% Investment
Holding Company Limited ME AR 3000000007 management
AR EERERBRA R REEE
Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo Investment The PRC USD20,000,000 100% Y 100% Investment
Company Limited th 20,000,000 %7T management
AFEREREARAR REEE
Bright Ocean Business Management The PRC Nil 85% §— 85% Investment
(Shenzhen) Company Limited H z management
BrERxEE (R ARAR REER
Jining Bright Ocean Business The PRC Nil 85% — 85% Property
Management Company Limited H 2 management and
BERLBREEEBRAR advisory
services
MEEEA
AR
Jinan Bright Ocean Business The PRC RMB50,000,000 85% e 85% Property
Management Company Limited HmE  ARHS50,000,0007 management and
ERELEREERERAR advisory
services
MEEEA
Eglv
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

8 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

18

R¥DRNER(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars Pt f)

Place of of issued Group’s

incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ALK BRTR KK@  the Company  asubsidiary activities
AL gX% CHRRARE ERERE  FAQFARR  FLAME TEEH
Mianyang Hydoo Business The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Management Company Limited H z management
wERERZERARAR services
NEERRG
Heze Hydoo Business Management The PRC Nil 100% e 100% Property
Company Limited i z management
SERERREEBRAR services
NEERRG
Trade Logistics Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% - Investment
FEMRAERRA EEABRES | €T management
REEE
Hongkong China Hydoo Logistic Limited Hongkong HKS ! 100% — 100% Investment
BETPERENRERAR BE | BT management
HEEE
Abundant Idea Investments Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% o2 Investment
MEREBR DA KERBRES E management
REEH
Hongkong Deshang Bright Ocean Limited Hongkong HK$30,000,000 85% — 85% Investment
BEEHEREERAR BE 30,000,000/ 7T management
REEE
Zhuoying Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% - Investment
BRERAT RERRARES E management
HEEE

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T



INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars FrELef)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal

Name of company ALK BRTR KE@  the Company  asubsidiary activities

AL EX% CHRRARE BERER  AQFARR  FLAME TEEH

Copious Epoch Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% = Investment
thEERAR KEGBRES ES management

RAEE

Ningxiang Hydoo Business The PRC Nil 100% = 100% Property
Management Company Limited management
ERREBRERARAA i Z services

NEEBRYE

Qingdao Hydoo Shiji The PRC Nil 65% 3 65% Domant
Properties Company Limited i z
BREREKEERARAA) LEE

Heze Hydoo Industrial Company Limited The PRC USD35,000,000 100% = 100% Property
STERENERARAR i 35,000,003 7 development

BHERR

Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% = 100% Finance lease
Financial Leasing Company Limited HE  AKR%50,0000007T RMEME
AFIEREREBEARAR"

Liuzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC RMB132,580,000 100% - 100% Property
Trade Center Company Limited mE AR 132,580,0007T development
MMREREDRAERAR" BHERE

Lanzhou Hydoo Estate Company Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% — 100% Property
BNREEXERRA HE  ARHS50,000,0007 development

BHERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

8 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars Pt f)

Place of of issued Group’s

incorporation and paid up effective
and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ALK BRTR KK@  the Company  asubsidiary activities
AL gX% CHRRARE ERERE  FAQFARR  FLAME TEEH
Wuzhou Qianhai Hydoo Commercial The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Property
Operation and Management Company H z management
Limited services
ANIARAERERERAR’ DEERRE
Jinan Eames E-commerce Company Limited The PRC Nil 85% e 85% Electronic
BEREBNEFEBERAT i Z commerce
ETEHK
Xingning Hydoo Logistics Company Limited The PRC RMB20,000,000 80% e 80%  Warehouse and
REREMRERRA mE  ARH20000,0007 logistics service
RRERIRRT
Yangzhou Hydoo Commercial and The PRC Nil 100% = 100% Property
Trade Center Company Limited i 2 development
ENEEEENRRARAR FHER%
Taizhou Hydoo Commerecial and The PRC Nil 100% = 100% Property
Trade Center Company Limited H 3 development
FMREBEDRAFRAA FHERE
Lanzhou Hydoo Warehouse and The PRC Nil 100% = 100%  Warehouse and
Logistics Company Limited H z logistics service
BABRERHEARARAR RRRIRRTS
Taizhou Hydoo Commercial The PRC USD 10,000,000 100% — 100% Trade of
Trade Company Limited H 10,000,000 % 7T building-
FMNREHEERAR related materials
R
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B2 AEEIN - IUAREFITR)
18 RFARMNERE)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars FrELef)
Place of of issued Group’s
incorporation and paid up effective

and business capital interest Held by Held by Principal
Name of company ALK BRTR KE@  the Company  asubsidiary activities
AL EX% CHRRARE BERER  AQFARR  FLAME TEEH
Yantai Hydoo Logistics Services The PRC Nil 100% N 100%  Warehouse and
Company Limited H z logistics service
EaRENRREERAH RRRIRRT
Shenzhen Qianhai Hydoo The PRC Nil 100% = 100% Investment
Finance Investment Company Limited i 3 management
AR EEREEARAR REEE
Jining Hydoo Ramada Hotel The PRC Nil 100% =i 100% Hotel
Company Limited th z management
BEREEXEBEARAR BEER
Union Capital Holdings Limited Hongkong HK$ 100% 5— 100% Investment
EREEERD BA | 7T management
REERE
Hongkong Hydoo Financial Ho\ding Limited Hongkong HKS! 100% — 100% Investment
BERESRERERR BE | 7T management
REEE
Jiayue Limited British Virgin Islands USDI 100% 100% T Investment
EBBRAT EERARES | €T management
HEEE

& These entities are all PRC limited liability companies. The English translation of the & EA

company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in

Chinese.

The directors consider that no individual non-controlling interest is considered

material to the Group as at 3| December 2015 and 2014.

TERELATEARAT - ZZA
ANEXBELEESE - FEAT
BB EBEHETE -

M20I5F R2014F12A31H EFR
A BERANEAEEBEE AN IELER

e

S o

;»
B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)
[9 INVENTORIES

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise:

AHMBRARANEEESE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Properties held for future FREARGREDE
development for sale 1,387,844 |,577477
Properties under development for sale HEEEME 4,412,710 3,566,207
Completed properties held for sale REERIVE 3,826,148 2,544,436
Others Hith 1,919 572
9,628,621 7,688,692

As at 31 December 2015, certain properties under development for sale and
completed properties held for sale, properties held for future development

for sale were pledged for certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 25).

(b)  The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land included in properties

development is as follows:

R2ISEIA3NE ETHER
EYE BEERIVERGER
RERBENEREASEREET
RITEROER (T 25)

STAYERBNEE L HNREE
2HWE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Held under BRENT&RERS

— long leases (over 50 years) in the PRC — R ERRRAD(S0F U L)

— medium-term leases (10-50 years) —RPENFHBEL(10ZE505)
in the PRC

639,915 393973

3,054,709 2,655,843
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

19 INVENTORIES (Contd) 19 ®&(#)
(c)  Properties held for future development for sale in the consolidated ) EHEBRIARANFERREH
statement of financial position comprise: BYRERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Expected to be recovered after TRHAR — F AR D]
more than one year 1,387,844 |,577477
(d)  Properties under development for sale in the consolidated statement of d) AHEBRRRANGETERWE
financial position comprise: B
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TREIR —F A IR E 2,291,472 1,330,158
Expected to be recovered after TR —F R E
more than one year 2,121,238 2,236,049
4,412,710 3,566,207
(e) Completed properties held for sale in the consolidated statement of () AHUBRREAFESTING
financial position comprise: ESE N
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
Expected to be recovered within one year ~ TRHIR —F A IR E 3,349,357 2,121,871
Expected to be recovered after TEHR —F LR
more than one year 476,791 422,565

3,826,148 2,544,436

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 % 187



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 20 EBZRHMEWIRE BARERES
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Trade and bill receivables (a) B HRLGRIE R ERRIE (2) 44,948 27393
Prepaid business tax and other taxes B E R R 128,048 137,761
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) Ee o BARIEREMEL A (b) [,183,445 968,739
Finance lease receivables (note 21) MEEE KA 21) 36,829 =
1,393,270 1,133,893

(@)  Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) based on the date the

relevant trade and bill receivables recognised, is as follows:

REREHR - KHEBEZEUTR
LERRBERZAHADNES
R IR K B R IE (0 R AR &

B NREAITIT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Within | month REREPSD 30,078 17971
| to 3 months | £318A = 4516
3 to 6 months 326f8A 2,735 4906
Over 6 months 61EA M £ 12,135 =
44,948 27,393

The details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 32(a).

Trade and bill receivables are primarily related to proceeds from the sale
of properties. Proceeds from the sale of properties are made in lump-
sum payments or paid by installments in accordance with the terms of the

corresponding contracts.

188 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED #/EEKRIZR AR A 7

AEEEERROHRHNHE

32(a) °

B REGARERREE REY

FHEMEHK

BB - MRHEM

FHRARBRES DER—RIEX

SEZE YK



20

21

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)
(@)  Ageing analysis (Contd)

The directors are of the view that all trade and bill receivables are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired as at 3|1 December

2015.

b he balance includes prepayments for leasehold land of RMB4 16,852,000
prepay
(2014: RMB421,327,000).

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

20

21

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERBIN - BAARKIIR)
ESREMERNE  ANREARES
(&)
@) EE&RAT(E)

EZRE IBESRIRZENE
WZER 015512831 HEEE(E
BTN £ R4 45 ARE

b) HHBEREIHNMNBEARAR
#416,852,00070(20144F : ARH
421327,0007%) °

MEHEEWHKE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFR ARETT

Finance lease receivables MEMEEWIE 43,061 =
Less: due within one year (note 20) | EREE(FEE20) (36,829) =
6,232 -

As at 3| December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments receivable

under finance leases were as follows:

2015
Unearned
Lease finance
payments income

receivable A B
ElHEE ®BEWA
RMB’000 RMB’000

0158128318 BEREAEENARE

EHESRBEWT
2014
Uneamed
Lease finance
Carrying  payments income Carrying
amount  receivable RERE amount

REE R‘REE BERA  KEE
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETE ARBTT ARBTT

Within | year (inclusive) | FR(BEZF) 37,772 (943) 36,829 - — —

After | year but within | 25 F(BEEEMF)
5 years (inclusive) 6,794 (562) 6,232 — — —
44,566 (1,505) 43,061 — — —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

22 RESTRICTED CASH 22

At 31 December 2015, the restricted cash was pledged to banks for certain
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's properties with a carrying
amount of RMB224,448,000 (2014: RMB 198,155,000), and pledged for bank loans
granted to the Group with a carrying amount of RMB206,190,000 (2014: RMB Nil).

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23

(@)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

ZRHRE

R20I5F12A318 XBRHREER
RYIAEEMEEFNETRIERMEE
BT RTOREER AR 224,448,000
JL(20145F + AR¥198,1550007T) * fE
AASEERRTERNERNEEDE
B AR #206,190,00075(2014F : AR
BEIL) °

RERREEED
@) BRERRESEEWEE:

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand ROGFERNRE

1,688,923 1,819,029
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 23 BRERBFLEENE)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash used in operations: b) BHRAFBERSEEEFARSHN
i :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Profit before taxation B A 7 1,224,002 837426
Adjustments for: g5 #E
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 31,295 25,742
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEME - BE kR E
property, plant and equipment (W) BREFE (30) 708
Finance income BB 9,161) (19,993)
Finance costs BEKA 150,549 8,840
Change in fair value of embedded AEREENRADNITETA
derivative component of Bz AnER
the convertible notes (19,319) =
Fair value gain on investment RENE DA B
properties (296,543) =5
Equity settled share-based payments AR EE AR D BER R (336) 2010
Net gain on disposal of available- HEFHLERERZFHE
for-sale investments (2,382) (44,360)
Dividend income BREMA (3,567) (3243)
Government grants recognised REMBTAERIREN R
in other income related to BRI AT B
investment properties (59,701) I
1,014,807 807,130
Changes in working capital: BEESE
Increase in inventories TFEEM (2,350,664) (2,174,301)
Increase in trade and other B 5 REMENRGE - B
receivables, prepayments FERESEM
and deposits (99,909) (450,405)
Increase in restricted cash X HR M (232,483) (95,124)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 o H th e TSR N 298,197 146,456
Increase in deferred income B AL 163,633 24,231
Cash used in operations REXBMARS (1,206,419) (1,742013)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24 BEREMENKE

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTL

Trade and bills payables (a) BIRNRERENRE (2) 2,629,878 1,720,433

Receipts in advance (b) TRUGRIE (b) 1,298,168 2013,186

Other payables and accruals (c) Hi AT IEREER (o) 349,086 241,596

Total B 4,277,132 S5 015
(@)  Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following @ RBREHR BHREMENKE

ageing analysis as at the end of the reporting period: BREEMNER  ERROTOT :

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBETT

Due within | month or on demand P EAREIESIEEKE R 274,578 VALY
Due after | month but within 3 months R EABER3EAREE 644,849 335,133
Due after 3 months but within 6 months R3EABER6EARE 1,088,462 589,107
Due after 6 months R 6 18 B % I 621,989 83,921

2,629,878 1,720,433

Trade payables mainly represent amounts due to contractors. Payment to
contractors is in installments according to progress and agreed milestones.

The Group normally retains 2% to 0% as retention money.

At 3| December 2015, included in trade payables is an amount of
RMB5 1,490,000 (2014: RMB12,048,000), which is expected to be settled

after more than one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 24 EBEZRHEMEMREE)

(b)  Receipts in advance primarily consisted of deposits and down payments (b) BRFEFZEEREBEASE
from customers for purchases of the Group's properties. Such proceeds MENEFNES KD BRE - %
were recorded as current liabilities before the associated sales were EMEFENARHEERERMA
recognised. Sale of properties is subsequently recognised to the profit or loss RARBERE - MRHEREZRIE
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy as set out in note | (w) (). eI w)FEAEENE K

() At 3l December 2015, included in other payables and accruals are deposits (0 R20I5F12A318 HhER[
of RMB21,372,000 (2014: RMBé,637,000), which are expected to be settled TEREAERBREEARE
after more than one year. All of the other payables and accrued expenses 21,372,0007C(2014F : A R &
are expected to be settled within one year. 6,6370007C) * RHIEN —FE &

8 o FiE RN SR R B
RSN —FARY -

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 25 ROERREMEE
At 31 December 2015, the Group's bank loans and other borrowings were R2WISFI2A3IH AEERRTE
repayable as follows: HREMEENERBERWT :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARET T

Current RE
Secured HHEH
— short-term bank loans and other borrowings - RERTERREMEE 309,366 145,000
— current portion of non-current bank —ERBFTERK
loans and other borrowings HitfEENREBTH 629,280 224,500
938,646 369,500
Non-current ERB
Secured HHEA
— repayable after | year but within 2 years ——FREMFARER 233,260 399,230
— repayable after 2 years but within 5 years -~MEBRBRFRNER 1,231,260 793,370
1,464,520 1,192,600
2,403,166 1,562,100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

25

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd)

(@

Certain banking facilities and borrowings of the Group are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to: (1) certain of the Group's operating
subsidiaries’ statement of financial position ratios; (2) restriction of profit
distribution by certain of its operating subsidiaries; or (3) early repayment
of principal to be triggered when 70% of the gross sellable area for the
underlying property project are sold. These requirements are commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to
breach such covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants and communicates with its lenders as and when the directors

foresee any non-compliance due to business needs.

At 3| December 2015, bank loans of the Group totaling RMB 186,650,000
(2014: RMB386,600,000) were not in compliance with the imposed
covenants. Such non-compliance primarily relates to operating subsidiaries
which failed to achieve certain statement of financial position ratio at the
end of the reporting period. All these bank loans (2014: RMB 95,000,000)
was classified as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

position at 31 December 2015.

At 31 December 2015, certain secured bank loans of the Group totaling
RMB34,000,000 (2014: RMB58,500,000) were guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Group and a third party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Contd) 25 RITERRHEMEE(E)

()  Bank loans and other borrowings bear interest ranging from 2.12% to () RBE0ISF12A3IBLEEFE
10.23% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 6.40% to RITERREMEED REN T
10.23% per annum), and are secured by the following assets: 212%ZE 1023%8 F F E(2014

1 640% 2 1023%) 5t B I BA
THIEEEER :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Properties under development for sale GEERYE 881,683 981,722
Completed properties held for sale HECTIUE 1,146,723 904,770
Properties held for future FEARGREDE
development for sale 687,252 252,088
Investment properties (note | 1(a)) BREME (M 11 (2) 179,500 =
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WEEME - BB KR TR
plant and equipment 368,535 =
Restricted cash (note 22) ZREIR 2 (HEE2) 206,190 =
3,469,883 2,138,580
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 26 HEREER
On 23 January 2015, the Company issued convertible notes in an aggregate R20I5F1A238 - AR AER

principal amount of US dollars (“US$") 120 million due 23 January 2020 (“Maturity

Date"). The convertible notes bear interest at coupon rate of 7.0% per annum

payable semi-annually. Certain subsidiaries of the Company will unconditionally and

irevocably guarantee the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable by the

Company under the convertible notes.

Unless previously redeemed, repaid, converted or purchased and cancelled, the

Company will redeem the convertible notes at 137.48% of its principal amount on

the Maturity Date.

ﬂ%%m,\lzooooooo%m mozo
FIABA(EESHA DG - TERE
BRESERI%E  BFFXMN—
Ko RARETFRABRAABDRE
AR IRFE (T A0 AT FIA TR (A R
KRB #) R

BRIEBADER €8 EHgED
ETERER - BAIARA TH%MJHH
BIZRN$EH) 137.48% B0 -
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(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

26

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

The rights of the convertible notes holder to convert the convertible notes into

ordinary shares are as follows:

. The convertible notes will be convertible at the option of the holder into
ordinary shares at the initial conversion price of HK$1.956 per share but
will be subject to adjustment in the manner provided in the Indenture (“the

Conversion Price").

J The number of ordinary shares to be issued on conversion of a convertible
notes will be determined by dividing the principal amount of the convertible
notes to be converted (translated into HK dollars at the fixed exchange
rate of HK$7.7546 to US$1.00) by the Conversion Price in effect on the
conversion date. A conversion right may only be exercised in respect of one
or more notes. If more than one convertible notes held by the same holder
is converted at any one time by the same holder, the number of ordinary
shares to be issued upon such conversion will be calculated on the basis of

the aggregate principal amount of the convertible notes to be converted.

As a result of the payment of final dividend in respect of the year ended 3|
December 2014 by the Company, the conversion price of the convertible notes
was adjusted from HK$1.956 per share to HK$1.884 per share effective from 20
May 2015.

In addition, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the convertible notes,
the Company shall give the convertible notes holder an intemnal rate of retumn of
13.0% upon redemption of the convertible notes under certain circumstances (*“Early

Redemption Amount”).

The convertible notes holder may require the Company to redeem all or some of
such convertible notes at their Early Redemption Amount together with interest
accrued and unpaid to the redemption date when (i) the ordinary shares of the
Company cease to be listed or admitted to trading or suspended for a period equal
to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Stock Exchange; (i) there is a
change of control, or (iii) the Company fails to meet certain sales targets in either

2015 or 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd)

Also, the convertible notes holder shall have the right to require the Company to
redeem all or some of such convertible notes at any time on or after 23 January
2018 at its Early Redemption Amount together with interest accrued and unpaid to

the redemption date.

The Company may also redeem the convertible notes at a redemption price equal
to the Early Redemption Amount on the redemption date fixed by the Company
together with accrued and unpaid interest (and any additional tax amounts)
if any, to the tax redemption date if (i) any change in, or amendment to, the
laws (or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder) of a relevant taxing
jurisdiction affecting taxation; or (i) any change in the existing official position or
the stating of an official position regarding the application or interpretation of such
laws, regulations or rulings (including a holding, judgment or order by a court of
competent jurisdiction).

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes, since the Group
failed to meet the contracted sales target of RMB4.0 billion in 2015, the convertible
notes holder has the right to request for early redemption of the convertible
notes. Accordingly, the convertible notes are reclassified as current liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

On |1 January 2016, amendments was made on the terms of the convertible notes,
the right of the note holder to require the Company to redeem all or some of the
convertible notes was amended to at any time on or after | | January 2016, instead
of 23 January 2018.

On |5 January 2016, the Company redeemed an aggregate principal amount of
US$40,000,000 of the outstanding convertible notes upon the request from the
note holder and the total outstanding principal amount of the convertible notes
was reduced to US$80,000,000.

In addition, as the Group failed to meet the contracted sales target in 2015,
the conversion price was adjusted to 90% of the prevailing conversion price in
accordance with the terms of the Indenture. Accordingly, the conversion price of
the convertible notes was adjusted from HK$1.884 per share to HK$1.696 per
share effective from 31 December 2015. Based on the total outstanding principal
amount of the convertible notes of US$80,000,000 on |5 January 2016, the
maximum number of shares of the Company that will be issued upon conversion
of all the outstanding convertible notes at the previous conversion price and the
adjusted conversion price is 329,282,378 shares of the Company and 365,783,019
shares of the Company, respectively, representing an increase of 36,500,641 shares

of the Company issuable under the convertible notes.
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(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

26

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Contd) 26 AWERFEEE)
The conversion option and the redemption option mentioned above are rEnRERENERABERERE
considered as embedded derivative component of the convertible notes and M@mARITETAES S  ARE®RER
revalued at each reporting date. HREITES -
The convertible notes recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position RAE B A GHE B R R IR R ol 82 %
of the Group are analysed as follows: FBEAOMMT :
Host Derivative
liability ~ component
component 14 Total
TEEEHD TAEHS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR¥Tn
Net proceeds from the issuance of the BITAEBRERED
convertible notes PSR 525,701 210403 736,104
Interest expenses (i) (note 5(a)) FILE B (i) (it 7 5(a)) 108,638 = 108,638
Interest paid during the year FRAEMNFE (26,208) = (26,208)
Change in fair value of derivative component MTHET AR RAENE i (19319) (19,319)
Exchange difference EHER 34,149 1,542 45,691
At 31 December 2015 R20156 124318 642,280 202,626 844,906

()  Interest expense

Interest expense on the convertible notes is calculated using the effective

interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 22.21% per annum

to the liability component.

(i) Conversion rights exercised

No convertible notes was converted as at 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

DEFERRED INCOME 27 EERA
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FR ARETT
Government grants (i) BAFREB (i)
At | January RIAIH 882,313 858,082
Movement during the year FRE
Government grants received BB AT B 468,819 345,736
Amortisation B (303,303) (321,505)
Recognised in other income related to BRENFEBHIERE
investment properties (note 4(i)) H A YA (BT 4(7)) (59,701) ==
988,128 882313
Sales and operating leaseback arrangement (i) HERKEERMME (i)
At | January RIAIH 5,843 5,843
Movement during the year FRE
— Deferred income recognised —BERRELERA 1,028 =
— Amortisation — B 2,911) >
3,960 5,843
992,088 888,156
Representing: B
Current liabilities mEAE 988,564 882313
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 3,524 5843
992,088 888,156
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27

DEFERRED INCOME (Contd)

0

(i)

Pursuant to the respective agreements between the Group and local governments,
such grants are for subsidising the infrastructure construction of certain projects
undertaken by certain subsidiaries of the Group, including Ningxiang Trade Centre,
Yulin Trade Center, Jining Logistics Center, Mianyan Trade Center, Ganzhou Trade
Center, Wuzhou Trade Center, Yantai Trade Center, Heze Trade Center, Lanzhou

Trade Center, Huaiyuan Trade Center and Xingning Trade Centre.

In connection with certain sales contracts entered into by Jining Hydoo Logistics
Center Development Company Limited and Wuzhou Hydoo Commercial and
Trade Centre Development Company Limited for sales of properties, the Group
subsequently leased back certain sold properties from the respective buyers under
operating leases for terms of 3 to |0 years at agreed rental rates. Upon recognition
of the sales of such properties, a portion of the sales proceeds, which represents the
excess of sales price over fair value of such properties, is deferred and amortised
over the respective terms. The revenue recognised from sales of such properties

amounted to RMB4,429,000 during the year (2014: RMB660,000).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

SENIOR NOTES BERE
2015
RMB’000
ARBTR
Net proceeds from senior notes issued BIBARBRERIEFRE 623,642
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FERAXZ (M5 5@) 3,825
Exchange difference ERER 3,147
At 31 December 2015 20155 12A31H 630,614
Less: Interest payable due within | year B R—FARIERENFIE (3,720)

Non-current portion of senior notes R20I5F 12431 BELEERE

at 31 December 2015 #IFETmENER 7 626,894

On |5 December 2015, the Company issued a senior note of US$100 million
(equivalent to RMB 646,26 1,000) at 99.404% with a coupon annual rate of 13.75%.

The senior notes will be due in 2018. The net proceeds from the senior notes, after
deducting the transaction costs, of US$96,500,000 (equivalent to RMB623,642,000)

was received by the Company on |6 December 2015. Interest expense on the

senior notes is calculated using the effective interest rate of 15.25% per annum.

RWI5SENRAISE: X 2 7 ¥
17100,000000% JT(H & B A K %
646,261,0007C ) §999.404% 8 &t F & o
ZERAEBNERFEERI375%
HR2018FHE - BMBRHHAE
ARBR0ISFNAICHRBELE
% $896500000% (M E R AR
6236420007C) - BEZENFEHAX IR
BRRERE 1525%5E o
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29

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial
governments for its employees. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans ranging from 10% to 20% of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of the employees. A member of the plan is entitled to a pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at the member's retirement date.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

associated with these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30 NERGEEARNRERNMH

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), ARBR20FIIA0EERENE
which was first adopted on 30 November 201 I, whereby the directors of the BETE(TERARSRABRE
Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, 2Bl ARRESEEESERE
including directors of any entity comprising the Group, to take up options to MIERTE  BBEAEEEES(BREAEE
subscribe for shares of the Company. Additional options were granted to certain ETEMEENES )R NEREARE
employees of the Group on 16 October 2012 and 20 March 2013 respectively. ARBRD - BIMNYEBRAE DRI 2012
After such grants, a total number of |,715 share options were granted to FI10A 168 %20135F3H208 & 7 &
employees. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for | ordinary share SERETREE -ERLZSERER
in the Company and is settled gross in shares. BERITISHEREEKTESR - 80

BEEE T HE ANENRBAAR | RE
B WARD2HEE

(@)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: @) RENBREFKREGDT

Number of Contractual life

instruments of options

TAHA BRESHH

() Options granted on ()  R20IIF 11 A30BERLABRE
30 November 201 |
— directors -5 325 85 months
85 {& A
— employees —E& [,180 85 months
851E A
Percentage of
vested shares
Vesting date 53]
BEAH RANES
31 December 2012 2012124318 25%
31 December 2013 2013F 124318 50%
3| December 2014 2014 12431 H 75%
31 December 2015 2015124318 100%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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30

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd) 30

(@)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: (Contd)

UEREEURDRERNNRE)
RENBRERSRKGDT : (£

@

Number of  Contractual life
instruments of options
THEZH BRESOH
(i) Options granted on 16 October 2012 (i) M 20124 10 A 16 B& AR

— employees —E& 191 74 months
7418 A

Percentage of

vested shares

Vesting date EFE

HEAH RONE D

3| December 2013 201312431 H 25%

31 December 2014 20145124318 50%

31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 B 75%

31 December 2016 2016 12431 H 100%
Number of  Contractual life
instruments of options
TAYE BRESNE

(i) ~ Options granted on 20 March 2013 (i) 720134 3 A 20 B MEERE

— directors -5F 19 69 months
6918 A

Vesting date

BEAH

31 December 2014
31 December 2015
31 December 2016
31 December 2017

2014 12 A31 H
2015 12 A31 H
2016F 124318
2017% 12 A31 H

Percentage of
vested shares

=31
RONE D

25%
50%
75%
100%
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30 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont'd) 30 UERGEEUROGAERNANRGE)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as follows: (Contd) @ RENBRERTRREENT : (&
The options are exercisable from six months after the Company’s Global ZEBRERRARA R REER
offering date to 31 December 2018, g EARE2018F12H31H
348 -
Pursuant to the relevant terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, on 3| BEEAAREENERENE
October 2013, being the listing date of the share of the Company in Stock R FEEEESE - R2013F 10 A31H
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, each share with a par value of US$1.00 (BAARRRIRDREERERSHM
each under each option granted was automatically adjusted to 48,000 ARARLETAE)  ERHEH
options and the exercise price of each option was adjusted from HK$48,654 BRETSREER00ETHR
to HK$1.014 accordingly. DB BENFEE 548,000 17 HE AR -
EshBRENTEEDEES
48,654 BILHER 101487 °
(b)  The number and the weighted average exercise price of share option are (b) BRENHERMNELITEEN
as follows: T
2015 2014
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of Share average of Share
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
il BRE il BikiE
FHTHREE B  YHIRE 28
Outstanding at the | January BRI A BRITE HK$1.014 68,715,000 HK$1.014 82,320,000
Forfeited during the year FREN HK$1.014 (2,960,000) HK$1.014 (13,605,000)
Qutstanding at 31 December R 12 A3 BRATE HK$1.014 65,755,000 HK$1.014 68,715,000
Exercisable at 3| December K12 A31 BAJfTf#E HK$1.014 64,032,500 HK$1.014 51,932,500

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a remaining weighted

average contractual life of 3 years (2014: 4 years).

MR20I5F 12831 B K 1TF B K
BEHAIENHRTINETHA NS

(20145 : 4%F) »

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F3f

205



206
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Bt 35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

3 BE - REREE

(a)  Movements in components of equity () EZARBINEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AEEAOHERSEKE D B FA)
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated RERERNERIHN S ERE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's B)% o AR AR ERI AR R
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the FOEFRNEBFBEIMT
years are set out below:
The Company P YN
Equity
settled
share-based
payment (Accumulated
Capital reserve losses)/
redemption Wigs retained
Share Share reserve Capital 8N Exchange profits Total
capital premium U reseve  REXA reserve  (RitEE) equity
B REEE RERE ESARE AEERE EXSE /REEN  BEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note e 31d) g MY 3G 31
i ARWTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR
Balance at | January 2014 R0I14E1 B IBIEER 31945 254366 — 1386109 12275 (12270) (55018 2,107407
Changes in equity for 2014; NHEEERE:
Total comprehensive income ENZERAGE
for the year = = = - 20745 [,189.254 1209999
Repurchase and cancelltion of shares B iR 310 (10) (L4 120 = = = - ()
Dividends approved in respect BEFRMENRE
of the previous year 31(b)i) - = - - — (64309 (64309)
Fquity settled share-based transactions M & E DA R D
BERNRS - i - - 1,606 - 404 2000
Balance at 31 December 2014 RO4E1 A3 BibER 385 1222 10 1386109 138l 8475 Bl 266290
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd) 3 RAE - RERRE(E)
(@)  Movements in components of equity (Contd) ) HRERDAINEH(E)
The Company (Cont d) KR (E)
Equity
settled
share-based
payment (Accumulated
Capital reserve losses)/
redemption Wiks retained
Share Share reserve Capital B8N Exchange profits Total

apial  premium U reseve  REXA reserve  (RitEE) equity
ke RARE EORE EARE REEHE EXRE /REEN  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S 1 SO 17V S T 1 SO 17 IO 1)
i ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

Balance at | January 2015

RNISEIBIBRER

3825 120l 120 1386,109 13881 8475 Bl 26629

Changes in equity for 2015; NISEERRD
Total comprehensive income ERZENAEE
for the year - - - - - 15,797 (91,613) (15.816)
Dividends approved in respect BEFRMIENRE
of the previous year 31(b)(i) — (19248 - - - - — (19248
Fquty settled share-based ransactions IR EE IR
BERNRS - - = = (1,087) = 75! (336)
Balance at 3| December 2015 R0ISE 12831 BRI E 3185 1029736 120 1386109 127% 84272 (90531) 2454325
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5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)
(b)  Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the year

31 BA - RERREE)
b)) KE

() BEBREFEENELAE

B RREE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARETT

Final dividend proposed after the end AR & B R & 8RR HAAR 8 Bk
of the reporting period of L@ 1.5 BL(2014 5 - 678L)

HKI1.5 cents (2014: HK 6 cents)

per ordinary share

50,587 192,457

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has

not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

REHRY BEBREHER
RRRRERALE -

(i) FEEMERRKNBEGBR

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during LG BEERENLL &
the year B BRERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET T
Final dividend in respect of the POBE 1R 5 [ 4t/ SR A A9 B
previous financial year, approved FERBREEREBR

and paid during the following year, 6/8NL(2014 5 : 19.53(l)

of HK6 cents (2014: HK19.5 cents)

per ordinary share

192,485 624,309
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

31  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd) 3l RE - RERKRE(E)
(c)  Share capital () R=X
Authorised and issued share capital AT REBITRA
2015 2014
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RH#A kg Btn 28 8
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
F& TiERr Fhx Tiam
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each FAXE{E0.01 BT
VE R 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRARERR -
Number of Nominal value of
Par value Shares ordinary shares
HE BRHOBE EEREE
Note HK$ HK$'000 RMB'000
P BT )3 TErT ARBTR
At | January 2014 R2014%F 1 A1 H 00 4029950 40299 31,945
Shares repurchased B E kT iER D
and cancelled (i) 0.0l (15,106) (151) (120)
At 31 December 2014, 20146 12H318
| January 2015 and 2015F 1A 1B
31 December 2015 2015 12 A31 H 001 4,014,844 40,148 31,825
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5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

31

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(©

(d)

Share capital (Contd)

()

In 2014, the Company repurchased 15,106,000 of its own ordinary shares on
the Stock Exchange for a total consideration of HK$40,443,550 (equivalent
to approximately RMB32,145,000). All of the 15,106,000 repurchased
ordinary shares have been cancelled and the related issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant
to section 37(3) of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of HK$ 150,106 (equivalent
to approximately RMB120,000) was transferred from share premium to the
capital redemption reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase of shares of
HK$40,293,444 (equivalent to approximately RMB32,025,000) was charged to

the share premium reserve account.

Reserves

()

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZREBRKIZERERLD T
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BE - RERRE(E)
€ BRE#E)
() RW4F XAAEE

1]

(i

i X BT BE 15,106,000 1%
AFERR BHER
4044355078 TL(ME & R 4
A R #32,14500070 ) ° &
015,106,000 A% i 2] & 18 Bk
BTl ZZROHAEE
ERADTMNEBEITRAS
R - BEFEHE AR
F370) K TEROHWE
{B150,106 BTL(ABERKA
K #1200007T ) WEE €
BEHARMDEEEZRANE
14 - RO BRI EE
40293444 B TL(HBERKA
R # 32,025,000 70) B A X7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(d)

Reserves (Cont d)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries and relevant statutory regulations, appropriations to
the statutory reserve fund were made at 10% of profit after tax
determined in accordance with accounting rules and regulations of the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
This reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the PRC subsidiaries provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital,

and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all relevant exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
with functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt

with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note | (x).

Equity settled share-based payment reserve

Equity settled share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note | (t)(ii).

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

31 BA - RERREE)
d) fREE)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

FEEERE

BEREEREFLRMNA
BREEBURBEBETE
B AREREERAIR
% FEE TE B BR 1R A B
0%MEE#ESRN B
EREERENFMERY
50% ° & & T AR 8
REF AR R RET BRI
B hEARRERERT
PREMEAR25% - B
RERE - TATARDIK °

EXLRE

EXREERRRREFAR
BONEEREEMBR
RMELHNRBMBELE
B AR BRI () FAE
Ve RRRIE

HUERGEUROZNEE
#hidfe

NS BB SN RE
e HE AR B B 1 () (i) PSR
BB AN M HRAENE
ABRAERTAKEER
MARTTEEREER G
BENDAE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Cont'd)
(d)  Reserves (Contd)

(v)  Capital reserve

Capital reserve is resulted from transactions with owners in their
capacity as the equity owners. The balance comprises capital reserve
surplus/deficit arising from the difference between the disposal/
acquisition consideration and its net assets value at the respective
date of disposal/acquisition, and the capital reserve transferring from

the equity settled share-based payment reserve.

(vi)  Reserve - transaction with non-controlling interests

The balance represents difference between the net identificable assets

and the consideration paid for acquisition of non-controlling interests.

(e)  Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately RMB2,422,500,000 (2014: RMB2,631,137,000),
which may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course

of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to fund its property
development projects, provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing properties commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of gearing ratio. The Group defines this ratio as total interest-
bearing liabilities (includes bank loans and other borrowings convertible
notes and senior notes) divided by total assets of the Group. At 31
December 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group was 25.7% (2014: 13.2%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

31 BA - RERREE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

32

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk

arising from its equity investments in other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and bill receivables and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held by the Group are mainly
deposited in financial institutions such as commercial banks which maintain
sound reputation and financial situation. The credit risk is considered low and

the Group has exposure limit to any single financial institution.

In respect of trade and bill receivables, credit risk is minimised as the Group
normally receives full payment from buyers before the transfer of property

ownership.

In respect of other receivables due from third parties, the Group reviews the

exposures and manages them based on the need of operation.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees

at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in note 34.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group management reviews the liquidity position of the Group on an
ongoing basis, including review of the expected cash inflows and outflows,
sale/pre-sale results of respective property projects, maturity of loans
and borrowings and the progress of the planned property development
projects in order to monitor the Group's liquidity requirements in the short
and longer terms. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities excluding receipts
in advance, which the Group expects to settle by delivery of completed
properties. The contractual maturities are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 TREAREBERAAEBEGE)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 32 SREREERAAEE)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (b) REMEER (&)
2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRERAERE
More than More than
Within | | year but 2 year but
year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Carrying
-fFR BB-F BBWF Total amount
FEER BIRWE BIREF Bt fREE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Bank loans and other borrowings $R1TEFX M H S E 1,079,279 312,039 1275400 2666718 2,403,166
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 2,902,382 72,862 — 2975244 2975244
Convertible notes AERER 943,845 — - 943,845 844,906
Senior notes BRAER 89,287 89,287 783,291 961,865 630,614

5,014,793 474,188 2,058,691 7,547,672 6,853,930

2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AHARBRRASRE

More than More than

Within | | year but 2 year but

year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Carrying
—£R  BE-F HBAEMF Total amount
FRERX BIRMF ELREF a5t fRmE

RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBIOOO
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR

Bank loans and other borrowings $R{TE K K H G E 481,836 462,014 876267  1820,117 1,562,100
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 1,909,778 5225 — 1962029 962,029

2,391,614 514,265 876,267 3,782,146 3524,129
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

©

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash and borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
which expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest

rate risk respectively.

The Group does not anticipate significant impact to cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits because the interest rates of bank

deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements. The Group does not carry

out any hedging activities to manage its interest rate exposure.

(i) Interest rate profile

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 SREAREERAAEBGE)
(0 FERER

AEEFEERIERERS KT
SEEY  XBRHRE KFHF X
METFIEER - mFEFEME
EMNEFAER S RIEER SR
KRR RREMERR

AEERHRE MREFEVLE
BERERIEXEAYE  BRAR
MRTEFNELSEENET -

g BT TE KRR
BERHBREN S AEH
TR ERHEARETETL
w8 -

() FEEX

2015 2014
Effective Effective
Interest Interest
rate rate
iR BRA=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARBTR % ARETT
Net fixed rate borrowings: [EEFIEEEFE
Bank loans and RITERRHMEE
other borrowings 6.99 1,033,150 924 417,000
Convertible notes AERER 2221 844,906
Senior notes BAER 15.25 630,614
Variable rate borrowings: ﬁEﬂﬁJ%{’*E :
Bank loans and ROTERRAMEE
other borrowings 5.98 1,370,016 7.10 [,145,100
Total borrowings BEE 3,878,686 1,562,100
Net fixed rate borrowings & 7€ FI| & & &% 815
as a percentage of BEEFENAEDL
total net borrowings 65% 27%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(c) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's profit after tax and total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by approximately RMB5, 138,000 (2014:
decreased/increased profit after tax by approximately RMB4,294,000),

which has not taken into account of effect of interest capitalisation.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change in interest

rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis as 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01 % R MY =

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 32 SREREERAAEE)
(d)  Currency risk d) E¥ER

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily on bank deposits, AEEREINERR  TEXREHR

convertible bonds and senior notes to which the transactions relate. The RHABORITES - TERER

currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily US dollars and Hong Kong REERE - sIEBRRNEER

dollars. FERETRAT -

(i) Exposure to currency risk () EEmE
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of each TRAMAEEN S RE D
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets AHEHNEHEBRNEER
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional MINEBAENEEREE
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purpose, FBEEEMEERRE -
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the 2ImE  RERESEUAAR
spot rate at the end of each reporting period., BT WRE RS HRE

FREERBKE -

2015 2014
United States Hong Kong  United States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
XL BT eV BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTT ARKTE ARETR

Cash and cash equivalents H & RREZEY 721,652 2,364 110,407 154,615
Convertible notes AERER (844,906) o = =
Senior notes BERE (630,614) — . LB

Net exposure arising from  ERREERBAE
recognised assets EENERFE
and liabilities (753,868) 2,364 110407 154,615
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Bt 35 SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 32 SREREERAAEE)
(d)  Currency risk d) EXER
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBESH
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's MRBRERREAEERE
profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if foreign REEMIME b W% B
exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the B WRRMAHM
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all ERZERFITE  TXRE
other risk variables remained constant. TASBEMRBEFNB(R
REFE) TR E £ A
2015 2014
Effect on Effect on

Increase  profit after Effect on Increase  profit after Effect on

(decrease) tax and other (decrease) tax and other

in foreign retained components in foreign retained  components

exchange profits of equity exchange profits of equity

ratess  HRBI% Hign rates  EFRE1E HiEs

SHMEHEE FMERRE HEt¥o  MERX NERFRE  H4XHs

LACTER) FBENTE WEE LA(TR) MENPE GOEZ

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®TT

United States ET 5% 5,996 37,693 5% 5,508 5,520

Dollars (5%) (5,996) (37,693) (5%) (5,508) (5,520)

Hong Kong BT 5% 118 118 5% 7731 7731

Dollars (5%) (118) (118) (5%) (7,731) (7,731)

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis is calculated based on the

major net foreign currency exposure of the Group as at the reporting

date, assuming 5% shift of RMB against USD and HKD on the profit

after tax and retained profits and excluding differences that would

result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2014.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZfEE

BERBRATE

INEERESTIREARSE
BRRE R RN EEINER
BOFEFE(REMBRTIER
MBEREBAENS - AR
MEETLRABTLFEES%H
28)) KRTBEHBNE
BRRBRRAETRAEE
M2 EBsEMNER ° %
AT 2014 FROFER E &
T o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as available-for-sale unlisted equity securities (see note
I5).

The Group's unquoted investments are held for long-term strategic
purposes. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually against
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the

Group's long term strategic plan.

Fair value measurement

() Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique is listed in note | 1 (b).

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 cREAREERAAEGE)

(e)

BEEREEREAR

AEERESBEAEEEIEED
BAZEFNESREEENERE
BER (R I5) -

AEENARBERERFERER
Bz - AREEREFE LT
ERRRARSNARENMAZE
REXRELBMEFE—R &
FIFHE RS EA S B R ARG S
HIARREIE ©

() HBARBEHEHNZHIA

TREIRBRERARALT
TRAGTENERTARA

REFERZEMEIID)
5| 1B 7 7R A E FB 9 B A
YBRAIERMEREEEMS
BRETERA -
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5 75 ¥R & B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd) 32 SREREERAAEE)
() Fair value measurement (Contd) ) DABIHEE)
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d) () BAREHENZBIAE)
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
asat 3| asat 31
December December
2015 2014
Fair value at categorised Fair value at  categorised into
31 December into Level 2 31| December Level 2
2015 R2015 6 2014 R20144F

R20I5F 12831 R R20145 12A318
128318 2ERE-R 2A31B 2BRE-R
MARE WMARERE MARE MARERHE
RMB'000 $'000 $000 $000
AR%TR ARBTR AR®TT ARETR

Recurring fair KEMAAETE
value measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale investments:  AIHEHEIRE :
— Wealth management products — 281 & m - — 37,000 37,000
Liabilties: BfE:
Derivative financial instruments: $TE& BT A :
— Embedded derivative - ERRRENRAL
component of the PTHEE D
convertible notes 202,626 202,626 e -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Contd)

() Fair value measurement (Contd)

()

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont d)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
and fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of wealth management products in Level 2 is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive upon expiry or
termination at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the

related current interest rates.

The fair value of the derivative component of conversion option and
redemption option embedded in the convertible bonds is determined

using binomial tree model.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

32 SREREERAAE(E)
() RDREFEE)

()

(i)

BRAREHENEBTAE)

B 20145 R20I15F 12A
3RILEFE  F—REF
B2 AW EEMER - NE
BARBHE=F - A58
MNBRABRBEDRESR
BYRORSHRERE B
R A2 8 o

F_RARLEAEFBHE
EARGAZE

F_RNERERAAER
fhat AR B RN ERE HRY
BHOERIRLSE BT
Bt RABRITHE -

RARBREFNBRERE
LEEHEZITERI A
AEER-RAHNELE

=1

T

WHBEAREIRHZBE
EREEHALE

A& BR B AN Sl S A AR B
RRERIAREBEEAR
2015% K2014F 128318
MARBEIREAZR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

33 COMMITMENTS 33 RiE

(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 contracted but not () M20I5F 12 A31 BEFTAEREH

provided for in the financial statements were as follows: BRRABERENETRENT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTT

Construction and development contracts BEREREN 2,146,456 1,926,765

Land agreements TR 228,770 330,588

2,375,226 2,257,353
(b) At 3l December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under non- (b) M20I5FI12A31 8 REFAH

cancellable operating lease are payables as follows:

HEEHERNARKERSRE
HEHERMT :

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Within | year —ER 57,441 53534
After | year but within 2 years —FRERMER 51,828 47,385
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERER 104,352 115,000
After 5 years Bk 47,000 =

260,621 215919

The Group leases a number of building facilities under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

224 HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED #/EEKRIZR AR A 7

AEERREZHERERZEET
Rit e HANS —RAREER
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33 COMMITMENTS (Contd)

©

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments under non-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

33 AREE)

©

R2015F 12431 B @ RETAHE
HEEHEREARSZEESRE
FEERIT

2015 2014
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT

Within | year —FR 59,830 7,683
After | year but within 2 years —FRERMENR 57,277 4112
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRER 134,572 3653
After 5 years hFE 93,830 9,934

345,509 25,382

The Group leases out a number of properties under operating leases. The

leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to |5 years. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

AEERBEERELBLREY
¥ -HBNS-RA/AMFETH
FoREHEREIAES
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

34

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and penalty
owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group's guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
the earlier of the buyer obtained the individual property ownership certificate and

the full settlement of mortgage loans by the buyer.

The maximum amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted
to the purchasers of the Group's properties at the end of each reporting period is

as follows:

34

RAKE
R’&

AEBAETRITRAEENEET
A MEBERMK HN KB ERME
R - REBEERGT  HZEETER
BEAZR WAKEAREEEREN
RBETERZOELEMN TRITOE
AR FERIR - AEBEHERDH
HEZBEFRLBHE  EE2ERN
RENEERE R 2BANRBER (AR
PERE)RL

RERERRALERENEE S ERM
BBREMARTELNEAEREE
M

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities RASKEMEE A ERN
granted to purchasers of the Group's properties BEREMmBITEL N ER 2,818,864 2,551,035

The directors consider that it is not probable that the Group will sustain a loss
under these guarantees as the Group can take over the ownerships of the related
properties and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
banks. The directors of the Company also consider that the fair market value of the
underlying properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage loans guaranteed

by the Group in the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of these guarantees

as its fair value is considered to be minimal by the directors of the Company.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T

EZRR ARAKENREEBANE
WAL HERBEYE  WREAK
BRRTXNOEMSE Dt AKE
PRARZFERMETER - AR
RAIESNRR  WEHHEREERTH
7o AEENENAATEEERAS
BFERORERREER

HRARRIEERARAFERNDAE

BIE - WAKEY ARG A SERERE
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B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BAEEBIN - BUAAREIIR)

35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEAEBLRZ
(a)  Key management personnel remuneration @ TFEEBABHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEFEERASHMOENT
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain THRBRAAARESEIANEE
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: e RERE TR HESR
XIEEE - HIWT :
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Contribution to defined contribution FERMTURGTE
retirement plans 462 392
Wages, salaries and other benefits in kind I8 HFehHEMEYEM 23,500 26,978
Equity settled share-based payments R EB RN AERANR 554 468
24516 27,838
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). FMAmESN B TKAI(FLH
BIEES(b)) °
(b)  Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions (b) LEHRAHBERZNERMY

None of the above related party transactions falls under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

TRBEBT R TER LHRA
FTHAZMEENBEERXSAHR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRFREBIN  BAAREIR)

36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 AREBHNBMBEMRRE
Note 2015 2014
Pyt RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETFTT
Non-current assets EREBERE
Interests in subsidiaries RFRAIR R 1,755,981 1,317,157
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 1&& * 819 5V R K A KR IE 1,611,965 1,243,150
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEN 602,122 133,275
2,214,087 1,376,425
Current liabilities nREBEE
Other payables and accruals H it et R ERT R 43,943 30,620
Convertible notes ABRER 844,906 —
888,849 30,620
Net current assets TRBEEFE 1,325,238 1,345,805
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 3,081,219 2,662,962
Non-current liability ERBAE
Senior notes BEAEE 626,894 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,454,325 2,662,962
Capital and reserves RAR 31(a)
Share capital PR A 31,825 31,825
Reserves (5] 2,422,500 2,631,137
TOTAL EQUITY B 2,454,325 2,662,962

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T
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38

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NON-ADJUSTMENT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend.

Further details are disclosed in note 31(b).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate parent and
uttimate controlling party of the Group to be Most Trend Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders. This entity does not produce financial

statements available for public use.

37

38

B RAR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREERBIN - BAARKIIR)
REMAEARER
RERERE  EFEZHRERBR
B E—HHFERERMEIIb) °

HEERBAERE
RNISENANAR EEREAEE
ERENRAIRGRERATRERERE
RAOR ZARREBERRESEM
RUREBERATEHEREERRRE &
BE - ZERLEGEELAFAEN
BREK -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREERN  GUARKIIR)

39

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND 39
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few
amendments and a new standard which are not vyet effective for the year ended 31
December 2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

REZ20I5F 12831 BLEFECEMG
BRERPWERT - FEAURZENT

Emﬁ/g‘E

BEAMBHRRTERY  BEREE
REEeCEMEZEET R —EME
B RSB R ERRBEWNISF
12431 BIEFRNARER B AR %
KM - K THRA AT AR E
B -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

BUTR#SH 2%
B E S HREEXR
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle | January 2016
BIFR B R s S HERI20 1 2R 220 145 B A1, F R 201651 A 18
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of | January 2016
assets between an investor and its joint venture or joint venture
BIRRBI B R S RIE |05k R BIRR @R ERIF28RIERT A - KEZ REH 22 7] 2016F I A1 H
AEEPRZALELIAEE
Amendments to IFRS | |, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations | January 2016
BIRAEmEERE | IRERTA RS ERFR R E B 2016 A1 H
Amendments to IAS |, Disclosure initiative | January 2016
REFHEAE ISRIERTA - KEFHE 2016F I A1 H
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation | January 2016
BIBR& T ERIE | o5 R BB G RHERIESRIERT A - BB A a7 E R #3577 %) &E 2016 A1 H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2017
BIFRM B IRELERIE 5% - KEEFEAHIUA 20171818
IFRS 9, Financial instruments | January 2018
BB E AR - 2H TR 2018F1A1R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED REBIEIZERAERLD T

AEBEETEZEBIERRERE
AHRMTE - HZB5 2582 A
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AEERBZRENZE

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ExXTREMNE

Percentage of

interest of

the Company

No. Property Type  Term of land Floor area AT

53 RS il T FER BHEER 3yt
sq.m

FAK

Portion of office and retail units of office Medium 1,836 100%
Haode Yinzuo, commercial i Hj 382
|8 Zhangjiang South Avenue, N

Zhanggong District, GES

Ganzhou,

Jiangxi Province,

PRC

i

N

N

EEE

EILRAEI8H

FIRIRE

MARTEBMIED

2 Guangcai Trade Plaza Convention Center of convention center Medium 33,823 100%
Ningxiang Trade Center, gRPL FHA
2 Yuxing Road, Yutan Town,

Ningxiang County,
Changsha,

Hunan Province,
PRC

i

ik

&AM

B
TEAEEFRIR
BHEBEMRTL
HWEHBEHGERT L

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & 231



232

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
rEERBZRENE

No.

Property

ik M5

Type
fcFic)

Term of land

T EFR

Floor area
BHEHEE
sq.m

AR

Percentage of
interest of
the Company
ERT
LAl

Portion of Jewel Market and Convention Center of
Wuzhou Trade Center,

| West Shundi Avenue,

Changzhou District,

Wuzhou,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

PRC

R

Btk Bn R

&M

RME

SRR BRI 5
BNEEDRTLERRRERT LD

Portion of Small Commodity Market of Zone B of
Jining Trade Center,

Taibai West Road and State Road 105,

Jining,

Shandong Province,

PRC

I

WRE

BT

B
RNATEREE | 05BER EE
BEHEYRTOBE

N R D

convention center
ZREFL

commercial

[GES

HYDOO INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED ZRERKIZERERLDT

Medium
HH]

Medium
R A

18,250

50481

100%

100%
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